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Corporate Profile and Strategy

» B I R SR R —— T —— S

Corporate Profile f

Samsonite International S.A. (together with its consolidated y '
@

subsidiaries, the “Company”) is the world’s largest travel .

luggage company, with a heritage dating back more t‘én

E et

100 years. The Company is principally engaged in the

design, manufacture, sourcing and distribution of luggage,

business and computer bags, outdoor and casual bags, and

travel accessories throughout the Id, primarily under the F
Samsonite®, American Tourister®, High Sierra® and Hartmann®

brand names as well as other owned and licensed brand

names. The Company’s core brand, Samsonite, is one of the

most well-known travel luggage brands in the world.

MAEREBERAA (EREGZSHMBLAR > SB[ A2F] =
EHRRARETEZELF A I100FERAEE c KAREE
#FFEEE® ~ American Tourister® ~ High Sierra® & Hartmann® F k8 A B
HtERAAMNMRE  REREERERA; HE - RERY
HITZH BHERERE . PIERAEBUARRITERSG - &
NARLCRBFTFERERREBRETERMEZ—

* For identification purposes only
EHHER

2 Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2012
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Samsonite

International S.A.'s

Strategy

je to gain market share
ing the strength of
the Company’s brands,

Samsonite, Amerﬁan 'R)urlgter %

High Sierra and Hartmann.

BEGMEN BERQIABIRETETE -
American Tourister ~ High Sierra &
Hartmann V& 1 » BB A TISHEE ©

|
Improve
Efficiency

Continually improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of
the Company’s supply chain
and global distribution network.

ESEEs&K BEREADAMEER 2R
D EHBERE R LR o

Introduce new and innovative
product designhs, adapted to
the needs of consumers in
different markets, while

% true to the Company’s
?e%ues of lightness,

strength and functionality.

BlF SIAFTERAIFERRTULER
BTENEEEEE  AKESEALH
MR MEE — BE - AR IR -

Invest in R&D

Increase the Company’s
investment in R&D and
marketing broadly in line with
sales growth.

REERAR WNAQTETFEREH
FHNRE  EHEREFEERAHR
& o

incipal strategies:

Product
Diversification

Allocate more resources to the
product categories that present..
the greatest opportunity for the
Company to diversify its

product offerings and gain
market share.

EmEZnit 7REZERETREAAT
TRIERERAS KBRS MR
SNERER -

Growth

Focus on achieving growth
organically, and at the same
time making acquisitions that
have a compelling strategic
and financial rationale.

EBHRRE SEENEARER  FRFHER
Bg & A S E AR 5| DB SR o

HEBEABRERARE 3
ZO—ZHFH
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For the year ended

December 31,2012, the Company’s:
BZE201246 12 A3 HILEE - AXFM
|
Net sales increased to a
record level of US$1,771.7
million, reflecting a 13.2%
increase from the previous
year. Excluding foreign
currency effects, net sales
increased by 16.8%.

HEFEER 7N TABETNHRT
% MEFHEI132% ° MIGE RS
2, HEFHEER16.8% °

Net Sales
i

13.2%

Adjusted Net Income
e TN

22.2%

Adjusted EBITDA

I BEBITDA

15.4%

4 Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2012

Financial Highlights

|
Reported profit for the

year increased by 60.8% to
US$166.6 million.

F R HRERNIER60.8% E166.6H
BXte

|
Adjusted Net Income?
increased by 22.2% to
US$167.2 million.

ERRFBN BR22%F1672EHE

°o R

Adjusted EBITDA? increased
by 15.4% to US$286.5
million.

4% 5 BEBITDAE £ 15.4% £286.5H
EESTR

|
Excluding the estimated
impact of foreign currency
translation, reported profit for
the year, Adjusted Net
Income and Adjusted EBITDA
increased by approximately
65.2%, 25.4% and 19.7%,
respectively.

MWERINERE W LT E » FABRRG
) RFEF U A R KL FEEBITDA 2
B R #465.2% ~ 25.4% % 19.7% °

|
Adjusted EBITDA margin®
increased to 16.2% for the
year ended December 31,
2012 from 15.9% for the year
ended December 31, 2011.

42 8 B EBITDA R B =°H 8 £201145F
12A31MBLEEEMNI59% EHZEEZE
201251231 BIEFER16.2% °

Net Sales o
Growth by ................................
Region 218.3%
BTS2 2012 $684.2
HETFHEER 2011 $578.3
uss(m)
2 (AR)

700—

-
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200—
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Europe North America Latin America

e B EEM mTEM
2.9% 228.8% 23.6%
$465.4 $499.9 $112.6
$479.1 $388.2 $108.6

A\




. ___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
BE12A31ALFE

LEBETLS - SREEBRIS Vg @mald) Diewenmaey S, FHEHL
Expressed in millions of US Dollars, except per share data 2012 2011 Percentage change
Net sales HEFHE 1,771.7 1,565.1 13.2%
Profit for the year FERER 166.6 103.6 60.8%
Adjusted Net Income? EREFERAN 167.2 136.8 22.2%
Adjusted EBITDA? #EEEEBITDA’ 286.5 248.3 15.4%
Adjusted EBITDA margin? RFEEBITDARI =R 16.2% 15.9%

Basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREERR 0.11 0.06 83.3%
(Expressed in US Dollars per share) (UABRETZ5)

Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share’ ERESREARBERF" 0.12 0.10 20.0%
(Expressed in US Dollars per share) ABRETEY)

Notes Fff&E

1 Adjusted Net Income, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of non-recurring costs and charges and certain other non-cash
charges that impact the Company’s reported profit for the year. See “Management Discussion and Analysis — Adjusted Net Income” for a
reconciliation from the Company’s profit for the year to Adjusted Net Income.

RAEFZRARFIFRRSHUHARIE » HMBREBEFALRATRREANE THRECEERAREAURETEMIRSBANTE - BRAL R TFREFESHEFUN
AWEER B2 [EEBNWESN —EARFRAL

2 Adjusted EBITDA, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of non-recurring costs and charges and certain other non-cash charges.
The Company believes Adjusted EBITDA is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance and of the underlying
trends of its business. See “Management Discussion and Analysis — Adjusted EBITDA” for a reconciliation from the Company’s profit for the year
to Adjusted EBITDA..
FETAEEBITDARFFIFRSHFFT BT R - AMBRE THEEUREAREAURETHMFRSBEANYE - XAARAGKARBTIDABINERH T BAKEXERTE
HERNBEIES - BEARQAAFRRNELAZBITDANEER » F26H [ EEERED N — KHEEBITDA] ©

3 Adjusted EBITDA margin, a non-IFRS measure, is calculated by dividing Adjusted EBITDA by net sales.
IBEEBITDAFIERAIFIFRSHSET & T A » LUSHHZEEBITDARR A SHE BT H ©

4 Adjusted earnings per share, a non-IFRS measure, is calculated by dividing Adjusted Net Income by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period.

KAEGRBFIRIFIFRSHBTETR » UEHEFRABRUBRBITEMIMEF IR B EFRE ©

Net Sales Travel Business Casual Accessories Other
Growth by ................... )}ﬁ}ﬁﬁi% .................. ﬁ(%ﬂ .................. BEH: ................... E ﬂﬁ ..............
Product 214.4% 0.0% 234.1% 212.5% 21.5%
Category 012 §1,3571  $189.6 $109.7 §79.7 $35.7
BEREBHEASD 201 $1,1867  $189.6 $81.8 $70.8 $36.2
ZHEFRER

USS$(m)

£5(EE)

1,500 —

1,200 —

900 —

600 —
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- 201

HEEEBRERAR
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The Company generated
US$203.0 million of cash
from operating activities
during 2012 compared to
US$64.5 million during 2011.
As of December 31, 2012,
the Company had cash and
cash equivalents of US$151.4
million and financial debt of
US$35.4 million (excluding
deferred financing costs of
US$3.1 million), providing the
Company with a net cash
position of US$116.0 million.

RATR0NEFEELETHMER
£203.0B8ET > M2011F 56458
BEJT e M20126128318 » XA F
ReRREEZEBYARISI4BEET
TRIBER3IEEET (MERELH
ERA3IEEETR)  MAARZER
£B116.0BEET °

6 Samsonite International S.A.
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|
The Company completed the
following acquisitions during
the year:

+ High Sierra (“High Sierra”),
which provides the Company
a strong brand and product
offering and a larger foothold
in the North American casual
bag market; and

* HL Operating Corp. doing
business as Hartmann
(“Hartmann”), which gives
the Company a strong brand
to expand its presence in the
luxury luggage and leather
goods market.

Both acquisitions create
opportunities to leverage the
Company’s well-established
global distribution network
and retail presence to
significantly expand the
brands both in the U.S. and
internationally.

AARREATHATRIBEEIE :

e High Sierra ([High Sierral]) » BZA&A
ARM—EEL BRIV RERERME
& RELEZINKREEmSHBERK
HmEiRE ; &

e HL Operating Corp. BA Hartmann
([Hartmannl) BE&MREXEE - AR
ARRB—EEHLBYINERE - E5
BITERkEAmSEAETmSMEE

MEWBEEGARQARAREELRRE

RBANZIRS SHRERTEMSME

ERE BHUABREEEZERERER

kg o

On March 18, 2013, the
Company’s Board of
Directors recommended
that a cash distribution in
the amount of US$37.5
million, or US$0.02665
per share, be made to the
Company’s shareholders,
a 25.0% increase from the
US$30.0 million distribution
paid in 2012.

M2013%F3H18H ' AAFEEEESE
BARATRRELHIZISEEEZTRER
0.02665E= THRE DK » B2012F K
FH30.0EBETDIRIER25.0% °



Chairman’s Statement

IRHRE

| am pleased to report another very

encouraging set of results. Our sales
grew strongly in Asia and the US,
and despite the troubled situation in
the Eurozone, there was a useful
advance in this region.

RARALHBES ARENEE - BARZNKREE
MEEREREY HABTELZRNE  ZEERD

R A=z
%l:l,m °

is the first full year post the listing of the Company on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
in June 2011, and | am pleased to report another very
encouraging set of results. Although general economic
performance across many of our key markets has been uneven, the growth in

2012

tourism and travel, which underpins our business, has been robust. As a result,
our sales grew strongly in Asia and the US, and despite the troubled situation
in the Eurozone, there was a useful advance in this region. The Company
also made two important acquisitions to complement our Samsonite and
American Tourister brands: High Sierra, purchased for US$108.0 million, is an
outdoor lifestyle brand with a strong position in casual luggage; and Hartmann,
purchased for US$34.0 million, is a leading travel goods brand in the luxury
segment with a heritage dating back to 1887.

An important feature of the economic landscape in 2012 has been the
stronger US dollar. We are pleased that the Company has achieved the results
reported below in spite of this considerable headwind: this affected mainly Euro

012EBRQTR2011E6 AEBTBHAR
SHERARERLTENEEATEFE -
TAMRAZHBES ATENES - RER
FZETETENEEBEERRT— R
BFEBERNRKEXERDARBRS -
It BMREMREENHERERES -
HABMTEFZ2RE ZERERDASE
AATTETMEEZRIEEE - U
75 E & American Tourister @ f& : LL108.08
BETWBRNRBTEmBEEERBLN
B INESE T KR High Sierra s R UA34.0BEE
TWEER 1887 R ~ BRIEAME SRS
5B T hRIEEE & R W8 Hartmann ©

02FEBERBNE - ERRMAREET -
RATREFELFRE THIS AT 28EE - &M
HILRRBIRE - BEETTELERTRERE

HEEARERAR
—O——FEH
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Chairman’s Statement EEiHE

REE - EARRE R -

economies and India, with pressure on input costs and the negative translation
impact of sales and profits into our reporting currency.

In 2012, the Company’s total net sales increased by 13.2% from the previous
year to a record US$1,771.7 million. Excluding foreign currency effects, net
sales increased by 16.8%. Reported profit of the Company increased by a
substantial 60.8% to US$166.6 million. However, in the report below, some
key measures are reported with some adjustments, and this is designed to give
a clearer picture of the underlying performance of the business. In the main,
the adjustments relate to one-off costs associated with the listing in 2011, as
well as certain non-cash charges. On this adjusted basis, Net Income increased
by 22.2% to US$167.2 million.

Adjusted EBITDA, which we view as an important measure of the Company’s
overall profitability, increased by 15.4% to US$286.5 million. On the same
basis, the EBITDA margin on sales advanced slightly from 15.9% to 16.2%.

One area of significant improvement over 2011 is the cash flow generated from
operating activities, which increased from US$64.5 million in 2011 to US$203.0
million in 2012. This contributed to a net cash position of US$116.0 million at
the end of the year, despite expenditure on acquisitions of US$142.0 million.

Earnings per share on an adjusted basis increased from US$0.10 in 2011 to
US$0.12 in 2012. The Board has previously indicated its intention to follow a
progressive distribution policy, and given these strong results, has recommended
that the cash distribution to shareholders should be increased from US$0.02132
per share paid in 2012 to US$0.02665 per share to be paid in 2013. This
represents a total cash distribution of US$37.5 million.

Our Board of Directors granted share options to certain directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries on January 8, 2013. The share options
entitle the recipients to subscribe to an aggregate of 15,532,227 new ordinary
shares. Our share award scheme assists the Company in attracting skilled and
experienced personnel, incentivises them to remain with the Company, and
motivates them to strive for the future development and expansion of the
Company by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests
in the Company.

Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2012

The strength of our business rests on the building blocks
of the regions, and the individual markets within each
region. All of our key markets have their own particular
consumer tastes and distribution characteristics. It is our
ability to adapt to these widely differing requirements,
whilst at the same time strictly controlling brand image
and quality, that sets our company apart.

BMNEBE IR FHEURSHEERTISNERE D - RAMENEIETSHE
BEHERBEEERRR ISR - RMEEERSEMNER - AREZHREER

RENE » HEHRARAERE N R EHERER
EFRESRMNPREEEREETE

2012 » RATMHE FREAEREAF L H
13.2% > Al1,771. 7B BETTHEHE © MR
ERSE . $EEFHELEH168% AR FME
BRI AN EF608% E1666BEET ° A
o TS - P EBABTEDERE
#25R  BEEEEWRIMERHIERERE - 5
BEFEEN2011 FH BN — BN
RETIHRSBAEH o RULCHEREE . F
WA EF222% E1672EBBET ©

RO AKFAZEBTDA R EA DR RER
FEDWEBFEIE  HEAH154%F
286.5 B E X T o IRAEE%E » EBITDARIH
REHEREMN159% B EAF16.2% °

AATB01 1 FEREAERENEP—BAL
BB EESRER2011FN6ASHESR
T EAB2012FEH20308EBET BER
SREFPERFRFEL116.0BEBET
SARWBEEEH 142 0FBETHBX ©

RISREREENENERBAH2011FNE
JROI0OET EAZ2012FEMNER012ET -
EESRTERTEEEREREN DIRBCK -
MR EEEE  EESEEORFEDL
KRS D IRER2012ERITHIER0.02132%
TUIEE2013F # FiRAT 98 AR 0.026655 7T »
REDRBFEAIISHEET °

EMMESEN2013F1ASABARATIRE
HWEBARETESRESRBERE - BRE
TR AR A 15,532,227 R T B Y
FER o BAFAIBR D SE BT EIEBIZAR A TR S| Z,
RECHLEMAS  BEESAALATEBE



There are several factors responsible for the continuing strong performance of
our business. Firstly, we have consistently applied the strategy outlined in my last
report and described above. In essence we are a company that seeks to achieve
the benefits of global scale whilst at the same time tailoring our products to the
tastes of local markets. The Company has a highly developed sourcing and logistics
infrastructure supported by effective, frequently updated systems. However, the
strength of our business rests on the building blocks of the regions, and the
individual markets within each region. All of our key markets, from the US to
China to Germany have their own particular consumer tastes and distribution
characteristics. It is our ability to adapt to these widely differing requirements,
whilst at the same time strictly controlling brand image and quality, that sets our
company apart. Not only do we go local in terms of product; we aim to staff our
operations around the world with local talent imbued with an understanding of
what drives consumers in their respective geographies.

Secondly, the travel and tourism market, a key driver of our business, continues
to expand, with global inbound tourists reaching 1 billion for the first time in
2012 according to the World Tourism Organization (UNWTO). Not only is Asian
tourism growing at a fast rate, especially into and out of China; in more mature
markets, the increase in the number of routes flown by budget airlines continues
to drive demand. Changing regulations on cabin baggage on aircraft and the
increasingly common practice of weight-based charging for hold baggage have
made consumers more aware of volume capacity and lightness in luggage.

Thirdly, we have responded to these shifting requirements with innovative
product designs supported by relevant marketing campaigns. The extent
to which Samsonite invests in advertising its brands globally ahead of our
competitors, explains why our business has gained share in many key markets.
We are always looking for new ways to excite our customers’ interest with new
features, new looks and new materials on our products.

Fourthly, it is noticeable this year how much the American Tourister brand
has contributed to our overall results, especially in Asia. Whilst Samsonite,
the world’s leading travel goods brand, accounts for a high percentage of our
sales, the more affordable American Tourister product ranges are finding a
large market of customers seeking a more accessible international brand. This
has also been a strong year for the brand in the US, and we are gaining some
traction in Europe.

Thus, in 2012, sales under the Samsonite brand on a constant currency basis,
increased by 9.7% to US$1,295.7 million (73.1% of sales). On the other hand,
American Tourister increased by 47.4% to US$354.6 million and now accounts for
20.0% of total sales. Most of this growth (over 80% of the increase) was in Asia.

As mentioned above, the strong dollar had an impact on our business this year, in
particular against the Euro (which ended the year at an average rate of US$1.29
versus US$1.40 for 2011) which reduced our reported sales by approximately
US$28.0 million. The other significant currency affected was the Indian Rupee
(down from an average rate of US$0.022 to US$0.019 over the year) with a

WHRBRERMHBERARARSERNEE
BB REHIRA QBRI R RIER

EMEBNEFERDRADBEARZER
Z- BN RMIERERRAL-HRER
LMRRERE - KRB AE LR —BHEH
BERAERENLE  BRESTRERN
MEEMTHISRK - RAREBBERRAN
RERMRER  RANRKEENNERS
EXHF - A RPINEBELRFHLEN
REEERTESHNERESD - RFAEN
ITEDS  BEEXEZETEUZREEE
BEBRIEEERWRE D #H5E - B
BRESSNER - BENREEGGEERR
HE o EARQNRLIE M - RITEEERL
BehAnms  BRMTRERSHERNE
BORAEHHE B N AV A T T

HR o FARMERBEEE N NREET S
BEER BB RREAS (UNWTO) -
202FMBRABBEETEETEA - T2
THEMREE (LEPENASRR HERE
BAR) AEER > EERBNTS  BE
MEDTMGHE EFAFEHEBER - YR
BFRTSTEETHEZERSTRITTRES
WEENER  EEHEEFEETERND
RE

o
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B= > ZHMCEBHERLHIRIERANE
st DERELESNER - HIFBR
RERERERRERERLEE  LARMY
EBREETENSRADENRR - HM
TERBIRASCS - B R  HONE R

AR B 3 AP 7 o Y R o

509 » ZNE E American Tourister i K% & 179
BREBNWERMERTEH  LHETME - #F
AYRBEENREERDE  FTEEBER
MEENKRT S B EEEEEN
American Tourister FE R IMEBSKEVE B EIFE &
BN BEAREETAETS - NEEZRETE
ZETBRERY  EEINTEERESER °

it R20125F  FHFEmBHEERIREE
EWMEEFT7%E1,2957THEET 14
$HE B M73.1%° % — J5 H > American
Tourister VS8 & 88 £ F+47.4% £3546 B &
£t BIRMEHEEHEEMN20.0% - IERKX
D (EREAIB0% LALE) SFRIEM o

HEBEBRERAR
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Chairman’s Statement EEiHE

reduction in US dollar reported sales of approximately US$14.8 million. Allowing
for these shifts and looking at constant currency comparisons, Asia and the US
were the main drivers of growth in 2012, both in excess of 20.0%. Europe felt
the full-year effect of the Eurozone crisis, pushing growth in Euros down to
single digits (and slightly negative in US dollars). A similar low growth rate was
recorded in Latin America, wholly due to the impact of physical import controls
being imposed in Argentina, our third largest market in the region.

Asia is Samsonite’s largest region by a wide margin, with sales of US$684.2
million accounting for 38.6% of total company sales. Excluding foreign currency
effects, sales growth in 2012 was 21.0%, which although an excellent result,
is lower than previous years. This reflects in part the maturing of the business,
as last year's base is considerably higher than the year before. It is also the
result of some softening in the Chinese economy and difficult conditions in
the Indian market. Despite these challenges, we are pleased with the result in
the Chinese market where sales were up 20.4%, driven by a strong American
Tourister performance and the continuing expansion of points of sale. Although
there is a new realism in expectations of the Chinese economy, it will remain
the lynchpin of our Asian business, and we
continue to invest in new retail distribution
- last year we added almost 200 points of
sale to bring the total to just under 1,000.
South Korea has become our second biggest
market in Asia, with sales growth of 33.7%
coming mainly from American Tourister TV
home shopping business and new Samsonite
Red casual brand which has rapidly attained
critical mass. 2012 was a difficult year in India,
but better economic conditions and some
reorganizing of our operations saw improving
results in the latter part of the year. Another
market where the Company made progress
was Japan, where the sales advanced 27.4%.
We have successfully opened more counters
in department stores, and the Company’s Deux Moncx premium leather goods
brand has also made good progress. Mention should also be made of some
of the smaller markets such as Thailand (sales up 16.9%), Indonesia (sales up
61.9%) and the Philippines (up 32.8%), which will grow in importance over
the next few years.

2012 was a great year for our North American business. Our organic business
benefited from a raft of new product listings, and this reflected the strength of
our business model which gives the local team freedom to tailor our products
closely to the requirements of major retail partners and consumers. It was
encouraging to see listings not only with department stores, but some important
gains in hypermarket chains and electronic retailers. Sales increased by 28.9%
on a constant currency basis. Excluding the impact of the acquisitions of High
Sierra and Hartmann, the increase was still an impressive 22.3% in what is quite
a mature market. Both Samsonite and American Tourister contributed to the

Samsonite International S.A.
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growth in the market, with sales up 21.6%
and 23.7%, respectively. It is too early to assess
the performance of High Sierra and Hartmann,
which derive most of their sales from the
American market. However the integration of
both businesses is substantially complete, and
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plans are well advanced to expand product
ranges and distribution.

It was a more difficult year in Europe, with

sales up 4.9% on a constant currency basis.

We are pleased with the progress in Germany, where turnover increased
by 14.9%, and it has now become our number one market in the region.
However, conditions were tough in Southern Europe, with Italy down 15.7%
and Spain down 9.2%. Most other markets performed adequately, with some
of the emerging territories doing particularly well, most notably Russia, South
Africa (part of this region) and Turkey where sales were up 37.5%, 33.2%
and 13.6%, respectively. The new Curv Firelite model shows promise and the
new polypropylene S'Cure case has been a great success. On the other hand
a dearth of new product introductions dented the business category. There is
now a strong pipeline of introductions for 2013.

Our Latin American business continues to suffer from the effects of import controls
in Argentina, where our sales contracted by 23.8% in constant currency terms.
Overall, sales for the region increased by 7.5%, with the two key territories of
Chile and Mexico up 11.0% and 11.9%, respectively. One of the main sources
of growth in these markets is the back-to-school backpack business under the
Xtrem brand, which has done well. Brazil, where we are extending our points of
sale, was up 14.1% and represents a major opportunity in the future.

Most of the growth in 2012 came from travel products, up 18.5% in constant
currency terms, and now accounting for 76.6% of the total Company sales.
Globally, the hardside luggage market has been buoyant, and we have especially
strong product ranges in this category. Also, much of the growth under the
American Tourister brand has been in the travel segment. It was a disappointing
year for the business category: whilst sales were up 20.8% in the US, we could
only manage 5.9% in Asia and a fall of 19.3% in Europe. Some of this was
due to late product introductions, as we completely overhauled our ranges in
this segment, and as noted above next year should be stronger. The casual
category increased by 36.6%, reflecting in part the contribution of High Sierra,
but the Company also benefited from an expanded product offering. It is also
encouraging to report that accessories were up 17.2%, as we continue to invest
in new product offerings, and we also made some progress in small leather
goods, umbrellas and handbags, although this is still a very limited activity.

One of the great strengths of our business is the ability to invest far more than
our competitors in our brands, and this remains a key element of our product and
marketing strategy. However, in 2012, although our spend remained substantial, at
6.6% of sales, it was down US$5.6 million, or 4.6% on the previous year. The reason
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Chairman’s Statement EEiHE

for this is primarily mix, with faster growth in the US diluting the overall spend,
but it was also affected by some curtailing of spend to maintain the profitability of
the European business in the face of tough economic conditions. In the future we
expect our investment in marketing to increase broadly in line with sales.

As mentioned earlier, this has been a difficult year for currency. In Europe
especially, the effect of a higher Renminbi on margins has been significant,
although we have been able to mitigate the impact with two price increases.
Whilst the strength of our brand has supported these increases, this situation
is not repeatable indefinitely. Already, as sentiment towards the Eurozone has
improved, the Euro has reversed some of the losses of last year, but the eventual
outcome cannot be predicted with any certainty. Our factory in Szekszard,
Hungary has doubled output and we are exploring other possibilities to
manufacture closer to markets in the US and Europe. However, Asia will continue
to be the base for sourcing many of our products, and we are working with
partner factories to improve productivity in the face of rising labour costs.

Capital expenditure was virtually unchanged on last year: up from US$37.2
million to US$37.9 million. Most of this related to the expansion of capacity in
Szekszard, and further investment in retail stores. There will be a substantial
one-off increase planned for 2013 to US$72.6 million for the construction
of a new warehouse in Europe, further retail expansion and some additional
investment in machinery and equipment.

Net cash flow from operating activities increased substantially in 2012, from
US$64.5 million to US$203.0 million. This reflected a US$84.8 million increase
in cash flows from operating assets and liabilities, as well as the US$30.4 million
increase in Adjusted Net Income year-on-year.

The Company’s net cash position at the end of the year, and our improving
cash conversion from EBITDA, will provide a strong platform for future growth,
through investment in our organic business, and by acquisition. We believe the
Company can take advantage of a highly-developed international distribution
platform and experienced management team to expand our stable of brands
focused on the travel, business and casual bag segments, as well as accessories.
The global market for these products is still fragmented, and we expect to find
opportunities to augment our business across categories and markets.

It is my strong view that a good strategy is one which is consistent. It's worth
reiterating the main points of our own, because at all levels this informs our
day-to-day management of the business. These are, to:

¢ Continue to gain market share by leveraging the strength of the Company’s
brands, Samsonite, American Tourister, High Sierra and Hartmann;

¢ Introduce new and innovative product designs, adapted to the needs of
consumers in different markets, whilst maintaining our core values of
lightness, strength and functionality;

¢ Improve the efficiency and effectiveness of our supply chain and global
distribution network;

Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2012
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e Increase our investment in R&D and marketing broadly in line with sales
growth;

e Allocate more resources to the business, casual and accessory categories,
where the Company’s share is relatively low; and

e Actively evaluate acquisition opportunities that have a compelling strategic
fit, leveraging a strong management team and balance sheet capacity.

It is hard to discern a clear trend to the global economy in the near term. It
would appear that America is recovering and the outlook for most markets in
Latin America is positive. Chinese growth appears steady, and there should be
firmer conditions in India. The outlook for most other Asian economies also
looks encouraging. On the other hand, there is a greater degree of volatility
in sentiment in Europe. Better financial conditions have yet to translate into
improved consumer confidence in Southern European countries and we remain
cautious about this area. That said, these markets now account for less than
20.0% of our business in the region. On balance our view is that the outlook is
somewhat more positive for next year than last as economic sentiment improves
and with continued buoyancy in the travel and tourism industry. We believe
the Company is well placed to implement its growth strategy and to further
strengthen its position as the global market leader in travel goods.

An annual report of course, by definition, deals with the financial outcome of
our endeavours. There is no equivalent way to report on the human element
to our business, but it seems to me that more effective teamwork is what often
differentiates one company from another. In this department | have no doubt
that Samsonite scores highly, and without such a committed team of people,
we could not hope to manage such a diverse business. | would like to thank
all of our people across the world for another year of success on many fronts.
There is now strong momentum in the business, and we can look forward to
the future with confidence.

174 }'4‘» ////ff-/

Timothy Charles Parker
Chairman

March 18, 2013
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Samsonite International S.A. (together with its consolidated subsidiaries,
the “Company”) is the world’s largest travel luggage company, with a
heritage dating back more than 100 years. The Company is principally
engaged in the design, manufacture, sourcing and distribution of luggage,
business and computer bags, outdoor and casual bags, and travel
accessories throughout the world, primarily under the Samsonite®, American
Tourister®, High Sierra® and Hartmann® brand names as well as other
owned and licensed brand names. The Company’s core brand, Samsonite,
is one of the most well-known travel luggage brands in the world.

MBEEERERAR (EREGEHMBARABAIALA]) REKERRETEHAR  #BEE
1001 AE S o BT EZUZHFE® - American Tourister® > High Sierra® % Hartmann® S8 B H
B R AR MME  REKREERSH  HiE > RERSHITEH  BHAREME - PIHEER
REBURRITERY - A2 RAZKUREFFESEHRE BRETZHAMEZ—

* For identification purposes only

& L5

Samsonite International S.A.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWED T

The Company sells its products through a variety of wholesale distribution
channels and through its company operated retail stores. Its principal luggage
wholesale distribution customers are department and specialty retail stores,
mass merchants, catalog showrooms and warehouse clubs. The Company sells
its products in Asia, Europe, North America and Latin America. As of December
31, 2012, the Company’s products were sold at more than 45,000 points of
sale in over 100 countries.

Management discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the
Company’s audited consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"”) as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. Certain comparative
amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the
current year. None of the changes impacts the Company’s previously reported
consolidated net sales, gross profit, operating profit, income tax expense, profit
for the year, earnings per share, net cash generated from operating activities,
investing activities or financing activities, or the statement of financial position.

Net Sales

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by region for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, both in absolute terms
and as a percentage of total net sales.
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BZE1283101LEE
Year ended December 31,

2012

SHEFH
e Bt FTErn

US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales

2012F 201 LEER

2011 2012 vs 2011
G 2) WRERTEZ

SHEFR Aok MR B oL

Aotk % increase % increase (decrease)

(decrease) excl. foreign currency effects

Net sales by region:
R EE D 2 HEFRE ¢

Asia G2 684,154 38.6% 578,316 37.0% 18.3% 21.0%
Europe BUM 465,383 26.3% 479,089 30.6% (2.9)% 4.9%
North America 1t 3 499,924 28.2% 388,190 24.8% 28.8% 28.9%
Latin America $I T M 112,556 6.4% 108,601 6.9% 3.6% 7.5%
Corporate 13 9,709 0.5% 10,951 0.7%  (11.3)% (11.3)%
Net sales $HE 558 1,771,726 100.0% 1,565,147 100.0% 13.2% 16.8%

Net sales increased by US$206.6 million, or 13.2%, to US$1,771.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2012, from US$1,565.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales increased
by 16.8%. The Company continues to benefit from the worldwide increase
in travel. Per the World Tourism Organization (UNWTO), International tourist
arrivals grew by 4% in 2012 to over one billion for the first time ever.

Samsonite International S.A.
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The Company’s US Dollar reported net sales during 2012 were negatively ~ ANRATR2012EUETHIRNHEE FHEEE
impacted by the strengthening of the US Dollar, most notably against the  THHEMSEESE - HPUHBTRONEE
Euro and the Indian Rupee. Euro denominated net sales were translated to ~ tbBRAREE - BZE2012F 1231 BLLFEMN
US dollars at an average foreign exchange rate of US$1.29 for the year ended ~ B TS HHE TR T IEE1 20= TR E
December 31, 2012 compared to US$1.40 for the year ended December  HZET - MEBZE2011F12831ALEEEFH
31, 2011, which negatively impacted reported net sales by approximately — E{E&140%7T - HYHRHEBEERER
US$28.0 million. Net sales denominated in Indian Rupees were translated to ~ S/Z#280F BT » BZE2012%F 128311
US dollars at an average foreign exchange rate of US$0.019 for the year ended It FEUENEELL EE N HEEFEIRTIE
December 31, 2012 compared to US$0.022 for the year ended December  fH0.019% TiEHRET  MEZE20115F128
31, 2011, which negatively impacted reported net sales by approximately 31 BIEFEFHEEH0.022E T - HYHR
US$14.8 million. HEFENAETEN148HEBET ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis EEERED T

Brands

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by brand for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, both in absolute terms
and as a percentage of total net sales.

om b

TREFIEZ2012F128318 20114512
B31BLEFEZRREE D 2 HEFREHM
LB ERGHE FRAER DI -

HBZE12B31ALEE

Year ended December 31, 20125 81201 14 L 8
2012 2011 2012 vs 2011
& G4 TBRE X &2
HEFRE SHERE Bt BiCRD) BED L
FXEr Bk FEr Batk % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales (decrease) excl. foreign currency effects
Net sales by brand:

RmEEI D 2 HEFHE ¢
Samsonite #FE 1,295,706 73.1% 1,223,353 78.2% 5.9% 9.7%
American Tourister 354,563 20.0% 249,873 16.0% 41.9% 47.4%
High Sierra' / Hartmann? 29,623 1.7% 3,630 0.2% 716.1% 716.1%
Other Hfth® 91,834 5.2% 88,291 5.6% 4.0% 6.4%
Net sales $HE&F58 1,771,726 100.0% 1,565,147 100.0% 13.2% 16.8%

Notes Ffz

T The High Sierra brand was acquired on July 31, 2012. Prior to the acquisition, Samsonite Australia was a distributor of High Sierra products.
Net sales under this distribution arrangement were US$3.6 million during 2011 and were US$2.1 million during the portion of the year ended

December 31, 2012 that preceded the acquisition.

ARATMR201287 A 31 BULES High Sierra B #& ° Samsonite Australia RUKEBAT B High Sierra ER D 857 © RIBAD R HNHEEFEN 2011 FAI6EEET  MEZR

2012F 12831 HIEFEWEATR S BRI 1 BBET -

2 The Hartmann brand was acquired on August 2, 2012.
ARDFR20124F8 A2 B ULEE Hartmann G A& ©

3 Other includes local brands Saxoline, Xtrem and others.
H A IE A G R Saxoline ~ Xtrem B ELAB G o

I

I I I
Ne;SaIes by B”rand Samsonite American High Sierra/  Other
RREED 2 HEFR AR Tourister Hartmann Hith

2012 201

Net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by US$72.4 million, or 5.9%, for
the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the previous year. Excluding
foreign currency effects, net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by 9.7%.
Net sales of the American Tourister brand increased by US$104.7 million, or
41.9%, for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the previous
year. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the American Tourister
brand increased by 47.4%. Asia accounted for US$85.7 million, or 81.8%, of
the US$104.7 million increase in American Tourister brand sales for the year.
These increases were attributable to expanded product offerings and further
penetration of existing markets, which were all supported by the Company’s
targeted advertising activities.

Samsonite International S.A.
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Product Categories EmEh

The Company sells products in four principal product categories: travel, ZAATHEENERRENBEEEEZREH :
business, casual and accessories. The travel category is the Company’s largest 5% + &5 » KRB REM - REBRBEALQ
category and has been its traditional strength. The following table sets forth TR AERER - BEEL®RE - TRHES
a breakdown of net sales by product category for the years ended December ~ #HZE2012%12831H %2011 12831H 1t
31,2012 and December 31, 2011, both in absolute terms and as a percentage ~ FERERER B D ZHEFEEPM - LB
of total net sales. HERGEEFHEEAI LI

|
HE12B310ILEEE

Year ended December 31, 20124E 8220114 L 8
2012 2011 2012 vs 2011
i CRA) WHRERFES
HEBRE HEFH Eba=4 MR B DL
SFEEm BAk FEx BA % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales (decrease) excl. foreign currency effects
Net sales by product category:
RERERNED 2 HEFEE
Travel jkiz 1,357,054 1,186,683 75.8% 14.4% 18.5%
Business 7% 189,561 189,582 12.1% 0.0% 2.4%
Casual xE 109,743 81,849 5.2% 34.1% 36.6%
Accessories Eiff 79,662 70,786 4.5% 12.5% 17.2%
Other Efb 35,706 36,247 2.4% (1.5)% 4.2%
Net sales S5 & F 58 1,771,726 1,565,147 100.0% 13.2% 16.8%
I
Net Sales by Product Category Eel Business ajal Fcessories Other
RERBRBD 2 HEFE i i tkm Btk Hith
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The US$206.6 million increase in net sales for the year ended December 31,
2012 compared to the previous year was largely driven by an increase in net
sales in the travel product category, which increased by US$170.4 million, or
14.4%. Country-specific product designs, locally relevant marketing strategies
and expanded points of sale were the key factors contributing to this increase.
Net sales in the business product category remained consistent year-on-year,
and increased by 2.4% excluding foreign currency effects. The slight constant
currency increase in business product category net sales was driven by a 20.8%
increase in North America, a 6.7 % increase in Latin America and a 5.9% increase
in Asia due to additional product placements and expanded offerings. These
increases were marginally offset by a 19.3% decrease in Europe resulting from
the economic challenges within the region, as well as the timing of product
introductions, a strong competitive environment and stock reductions at key
retailers limiting sell-in. Net sales in the casual product category increased by
US$27.9 million, or 34.1%, partly attributable to the acquisition of High Sierra
and as a result of the Company’s strategic focus on the expansion of its casual
product offerings. Net sales in the accessories product category increased by
US$8.9 million, or 12.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared
to the previous year, reflecting expanded product offerings in this category. Net
sales in the other product category decreased by US$0.5 million, or 1.5%, for
the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the previous year, reflecting
the Company'’s focus on its core product offerings.
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Distribution Channels

The Company sells products through two primary distribution channels:
wholesale and retail. The following table sets forth a breakdown of net
sales by distribution channel for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total
net sales.

TEHRE
AAFEEMBETESHREHEER it
BREE . TRHEIIEZE2012F128318
R2011FENANBLEEERHRES D
ZHHEFEBM UEBHERGHETEL
DR -

BZ12A318LLEE
Year ended December 31,

2012F 2011 FLLE
2012 2011 2012 vs 2011
#10(R4) MERE R &>
HEFH SHEFH At (R4 B2t
FEx At SFEEn B % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales (decrease) excl. foreign currency effects
Net sales by distribution channel:
ROERBE D ZHEFH ¢
Wholesale #t 2% 1,425,537 1,252,893 80.0% 13.8% 17.9%
Retail 2& 336,417 301,301 19.3% 11.7% 15.1%
Other HAth' 9,772 10,953 0.7% (10.8)% (10.8)%
Net sales $5E&F 58 1,771,726 1,565,147 100.0% 13.2% 16.8%
Note Hi&E
1 Other primarily consists of licensing income.
HitF ERERBERA -
I
Net Sales by Distribution Channel WI le Retal E
B HREND 2 HETH By B i

2012 201

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company expanded its points
of sale by approximately 5,000 to a total of more than 45,000 points of sale
worldwide as of December 31, 2012.

The wholesale channel accounted for US$172.6 million, or 83.6%, of the
US$206.6 million increase in net sales for the year ended December 31, 2012
compared to the previous year. Net sales in the retail channel increased by
US$35.1 million, or 11.7%, over the same period. These increases are primarily
due to points of sale expansion and targeted product offerings. On a same
store constant currency basis, net sales in the retail channel increased by 7.1%.
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Samsonite is the world’s largest travel luggage company. Our
products are sold in more than 45,000 points of sale in over 100
countries. We achieved strong double digit growth across Asia and
North America, and stable constant currency growth in Europe and
Latin-America in 2012. Overall, our net sales increased by 13.2%
year-on-year to a record US$1,771.7 million in 2012.
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Net sales for the Asian region increased by US$105.8 million, or 18.3%, to
US$684.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, from US$578.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Excluding foreign currency
effects, net sales increased by 21.0%.

The strong growth in Asia continues to be driven by the American Tourister
brand, which accounted for US$85.7 million, or 81.0%, of the increase in net
sales for the Asian region for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to
the previous year. American Tourister now comprises 39.2% of the net sales
in the Asian region compared to 31.6% for 2011. Net sales of the Samsonite
brand, which accounted for 59.0% of net sales in Asia during 2012, increased
by US$21.7 million, or 5.7%, from the previous year and by 6.7% excluding
foreign currency effects.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$87.0 million, or
20.2%, for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the previous
year. Net sales in the business product category increased by US$5.0 million,
or 4.9%, compared to the previous year. Net sales in the casual product
category increased by US$12.6 million, or 50.4%. Net sales in the accessories
product category increased by US$3.8 million, or 25.9%, compared to the
previous year.

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$96.0 million, or 19.2%,
for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the previous year. Net
sales in the retail channel increased by US$9.8 million, or 12.5%), compared
to the previous year. On a same store constant currency basis, net sales in the
retail channel increased by 9.0%. Over 700 points of sale were added in Asia
during 2012, for a total of more than 6,350 in Asia at December 31, 2012.

Along with additional product offerings and points of sale expansion, the
Company’s success has been bolstered by its continued focus on country-specific
product and marketing strategies within Asia to drive increased awareness of
and demand for its products. On a constant currency basis, net sales increased
in all countries in the Asian region for the year ended December 31, 2012
compared to the previous year. China continues to lead the Asian region in
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net sales, contributing 26.0% of the regions net sales on 23.1% year-on-year
growth. Net sales in India suffered from weak consumer sentiment during most
of the year, as well as a strong US Dollar. Net sales denominated in Indian Rupees
were translated to US dollars at an average foreign exchange rate of US$0.019
for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to US$0.022 for the year
ended December 31, 2011, which negatively impacted reported net sales by
approximately US$14.8 million. South Korea continues to experience robust
sales growth driven by the success of the American Tourister and Samsonite
Red brands.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the Asian
region by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total
regional net sales.

TFEE26.0% » REFLR23.1% ° Eﬂfgf‘é”i‘m%ﬁ
FHFARBDEEEEENEITARES
iﬁ@%goﬁimuiuﬁmamigu
HEELEENHE FREIZTIIEE0019%
TRERET MBZE2011F12A318LF
ETHIEER0022ET E¥¢$$ﬁiﬁ’§§%ﬁ
ERAEFENI4SEESRT MEEE
American Tourister & Samsonite Red uu)ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁk
ThmsRSaShEHERER

TREHEZE2012F128318 K20115F12
A3 B EEZRMEMEE S 2 TN EH
EFEEM UBHERG I EHEFEE
FEEILLIIR

BZE12A31BLFE

Year ended December 31, 20124 812011 H 8
2012 2011 2012 vs 2011
120 ORi4>) HPREE 5 5082
HEFH HEFE Aot 1204 Bt
TER Btk FER Btk % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % net sales (decrease) excl. foreign currency effects

Net sales by geographic location':

Bt BB < SHEFE

China FE 178,035 144,594 25.0% 23.1% 20.4%
South Korea Fg%& 122,921 93,969 16.2% 30.8% 33.7%
India ENE 102,329 109,846 19.0% (6.8)% 6.7%
Japan A7 66,013 51,984 9.0% 27.0% 27.4%
Hong Kong &%’ 56,473 48,392 8.4% 16.7% 16.3%
Other EAth 158,383 129,531 22.4% 22.3% 23.6%
Net sales $HE& 528 684,154 578,316 100.0% 18.3% 21.0%

Notes Hfs

T The geographic location of the Company’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the

country in which its end consumers were actually located.

AAREEFENHINES A RREEERNER » LR —ERLHEEEERMENER
2 Includes Macau.
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Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales for the
European region increased by 4.9%. Euro denominated

ROPE

net sales were translated to US dollars at an average
foreign exchange rate of US$1.29 for the year ended
December 31, 2012 compared to US$1.40 for the previous
year, which adversely impacted reported net sales by
approximately US$28.0 million. US Dollar reported net
sales for the European region decreased by US$13.7 million, or 2.9%, to
US$465.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, from US$479.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Excluding Italy and Spain, net sales for the European region increased by
US$9.4 million, or 2.6%, year-on-year and by 10.5% excluding foreign
currency effects. The Company’s business in Italy and Spain were negatively
impacted by the weak consumer sentiment brought about by the economic
challenges in Southern European countries.

Local currency sales growth has been strong in several markets due to the
positive sell-through of new product introductions and the continued success
of products manufactured using the Curv material, which were brought to
market with effective marketing strategies and local sales teams. Germany
is now the Company’s leading market in Europe, representing 13.9% of
net sales, with robust double-digit constant currency sales growth during
the year ended December 31, 2012. The Company continued to penetrate
the emerging markets of Russia, South Africa and Turkey with year-on-year
constant currency net sales growth of 37.5%, 33.2% and 13.6%, respectively.

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the Samsonite and American
Tourister brands increased by 3.4% and 79.2 %, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2012 compared to the previous year. American Tourister now
comprises 5.2% of the net sales in the European region, compared to 3.1% in
the previous year, as the Company penetrates the market at lower price points.

13.7 55
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Germany

Net Sales Growth
TR &7 B A I R

On a constant currency basis, net sales in the travel product
category increased by US$31.7 million, or 8.4%, year-on-
year. Net sales in the business product category decreased z
by 19.3% for the year ended December 31, 2012 as a result

of the economic challenges within the region, as well as France
the timing of product introductions, a strong competitive Net Sales Growth
environment and stock reductions at key retailers limiting B A

sell-in. Net sales in the casual product category decreased by
7.4% excluding foreign currency effects primarily due to the z
absence of Lacoste and Timberland licensed products in 2012.

On a constant currency basis, net sales in the accessories Russia
product category increased by 10.4% and net sales in the Net Sales Growth
other product category increased by 20.8%. Mz Y B A IR

Net sales in the wholesale channel decreased by US$23.2 7'
million, or 5.9%, for the year ended December 31, 2012
compared to the previous year. Net sales in the retail channel increased & Z2012F 128318 L FE# B RBEH
by US$9.5 million, or 10.7%, year-on-year. On a same store constant EFEBREFHP232BEETRS.9% °©
currency basis, net sales in the retail channel for the European region increased ~ZEEREHEFERFERISEEET
by 6.8%. H10.7% - HERERHEEEHEE &
NETEREHEFHIER68% °
The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the European
region by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2012 and TR B E2012F 128318 K20114F
December 31, 2011, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total 12 831 B It FE R EE 5 2 BN
regional net sales. BIHEFHAM  UEBHERGKHMEHEE
FREAEA L -

BZE12A31BLFE

Year ended December 31, 20124882011 EH 8

17 2012 2011 2012 vs 2011
20 O 2>) MRER &

SHEFH Bt EMORP) BH L

FEx Bo % increase % increase (decrease)

US$'000 % of net sales (decrease) excl. foreign currency effects

Net sales by geographic location':
B BEID 2 SHEFE

Germany & 61,077 12.7% 5.6% 14.9%
France Bl 61,024 12.7% 2.4)% 6.1%
Belgium Lb AR’ 59,561 12.4% (2.3)% 6.3%
Italy AR 67,549 14.1% (22.5)% (15.7)%
Spain FaIEZF 46,973 9.8% (16.8)% 9.2)%
Russia f#2& 87 28,020 5.8% 28.2% 37.5%
United Kingdom %[ 30,120 6.3% 21% 3.4%
Other EAth / Z /n/ 124,765 26.2% 0.2% 8.2%
Net sales $5E&F 58 WM/ 479,089 100.0% (2.9)% 4.9%
Notes Ktz

1 The geographic location of the Company’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the
country in which its end consumers were actually located.
ARARHEFENBAUESMRREEERNER - AT —ERBKIHHEEEBRTENER -

2 Net sales in Belgium were US$25.1 million and US$24.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.
Remaining sales consisted of direct shipments to distributors, customers and agents in other countries.
HZE20125128318R2011F 12831 ALLEE » EHFIBHEEFES RS 1 BEBENR24ABEET - B THHECEEERETHMERN S5 - EF A
RARIER o
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Net sales for the North American region increased by
] US$111.7 million, or 28.8%, to US$499.9 million for the
NORTH
AMERICA

year ended December 31, 2012, from US$388.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2011. Excluding foreign
currency effects, net sales increased by 28.9%. Excluding
net sales attributable to the recently acquired High Sierra
and Hartmann brands, net sales increased by US$86.2
million, or 22.3%.

The North American region had double-digit year-on-year net sales growth
in both of the Company’s core brands, Samsonite and American Tourister,
and across all product categories and all distribution channels. These increases
were largely due to the Company’s continued focus on marketing and selling
regionally developed products, which has enabled it to bring to market products
designed to appeal to the tastes and preferences of North American consumers.
Strong consumer demand for the Company’s products has allowed it to continue
to gain additional product placement with its wholesale customers. Including
the impact from acquisitions, more than 3,400 points of sale were added
during 2012 for a total of more than 26,900 points of sale in North America
at December 31, 2012.

Net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by US$72.5 million, or 21.6%, and
net sales of the American Tourister brand increased by US$10.8 million, or 23.7%,
for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the previous year.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$82.8 million, or 25.2%,
year-on-year. Net sales in the business product category increased by US$6.3
million, or 20.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the
previous year. Net sales in the casual product category more than doubled
from the previous year, in part due to the High Sierra acquisition. Net sales
in the accessories product category increased by US$5.0 million, or 38.4%,
year-on-year.
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Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$96.6 million, or 33.6%,
for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the previous year. Net
sales in the retail channel increased by US$15.2 million, or 15.1%, year-on-
year. On a same store constant currency basis, net sales in the retail channel

increased by 3.8%.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the North
American region by geographic location for the years ended December 31,
2012 and December 31, 2011, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of

total regional net sales.

BE2012F12A31HILEFEHBREHE

BRI A TN 6AEETH33.6% &

EREHEFHERFERIS2EEBERT R
15.1%  ZIEREHEEEMELE  TER
EIHEFREIER3.8% °

TREHEHZ2012F12A8318 R2011F
12831 B EERbUES S 2 EM

HEHEFEPME  UBHERIGBEHE

FERBEADLIER -

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

Net sales by geographic location:
R BB 2 SHEFE

United States Z[El
Canada & X

Net sales $HEF %58

Note FizE

2012

SHERHE
FEx Aot
US$'000 % of net sales

94.0%
6.0%

469,773
30,151

499,924 100.0%

2012F 2011 FLLEL

2011 2012 vs 2011

$Zhn CRi2) MBREL S

SHEFHE Bo #ICHL) B2t

Ep Bat % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales (decrease) excl. foreign currency effects
360,314 92.8% 30.4% 30.4%
27,876 7.2% 8.2% 9.6%
388,190 100.0% 28.8% 28.9%

T The geographic location of the Company’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the
country in which its end consumers were actually located.
FAARHEFENBAVENFRRHEERNER - AR -ERKIEEEERIENER -
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Net sales for the Latin American region increased by US$4.0 million, or 3.6%,
to US$112.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, from US$108.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Excluding foreign currency
effects, net sales increased by 7.5%.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, net sales in Mexico increased by
11.9%, excluding foreign currency effects, compared to the previous year.
Net sales in Chile improved by 11.0% year-on-year, excluding foreign currency
effects. The double-digit growth in both Mexico and Chile was due in large
part to the strength of luggage sales and robust consumer purchases of
backpacks for the back-to-school season. Local brand Xtrem also continues
to flourish in Mexico and Chile. The Company made significant progress in
the emerging market of Brazil with year-on-year net sales growth of 14.1%,
excluding foreign currency effects, led by points of sale expansion. Net sales
in Argentina continued to be negatively impacted by import restrictions
imposed by the local government. Excluding Argentina, net sales for the
Latin American region increased by US$11.5 million, or 12.2%, excluding
foreign currency effects.

Net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by US$0.9 million, or 1.8%, for
the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the previous year, while
net sales of the American Tourister brand decreased by US$1.4 million,
or 20.9%, as local brands Saxoline and Xtrem comprised an increasing
share of the region’s net sales. Net sales of the local brands Saxoline and
Xtrem increased by US$1.0 million, or 4.2%, and by US$2.9 million, or
11.9%, respectively.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$2.3 million, or 4.7 %,
year-on-year. Net sales in the business product category increased by US$0.3
million, or 2.1%. Net sales in the casual product category increased by US$0.6
million, or 2.1%. Net sales in the accessories product category decreased by
US$0.4 million, or 2.6%, year-on-year while net sales in the other product
category increased by US$1.2 million.

Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2012

Chile
Net Sales Growth
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Net Sales Growth
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214.1%

T EMbEHEFREREZ2011F12831
HIEFEMI1086EEETIEMIOEESET
H36%ZE B E2012F12A31B L FE W
126EEER - WIRE R FE - $HEFHIT
R75% °

MWERE R E . BHE201NFE 12831 LFE
EFEHEEFREREFIZM.9%  MERER
& BFHEFRERFIEM1.0% o FEFF
REFNENMSIER FEHMTEHEHERY
FEREHEMEAERAB BN - EibH
W Xtrem M E BT ST R B RF SR HELE - &
ATEEAHETBEEEARE - HHEH
BRET MREAFE HEFERFER
14.1% o FIRIESHE SR ES I EHBNE
HERYE O PRFIEESE - MIRMRE > BT =
it R & TR PRI X &R 58
=5t 5122% ©

YL EF - BE2012F12A31BLEFEHF
B E R ENROIEEEAR18%
American Tourister i hE 8555 75 88 A 1t R f&E
Saxoline &z Xtrem b #Z b R EH & F MM EE
FrEAMRD1 4T EETH209% © AN
& Saxoline & Xtrem S5/ F 58D FIIEMN1.0B B
ENH42% K29BEETH11.9% °

MREERERHE FERFIER2IEEET
H4.7% ° WS ERERHEFHEERIIEE
£ W2.1% o REERLERIS & F LM
06EBETN21% - R ERERHEFE
BRERDVOLIEEET » 52.6%  MEMER
RIS EFEL I 2EBET ©



72 4.0:55%

Adjusted EBITDA

72 0.85%%

Net Sales

HEFRH o FREBITDA o,
2 3.6% 2 4.6%

UsS$m) Et(E8E) US$m) Xt (5#)

150 — 20 -

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$3.2 million, or 4.3%, for
the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the previous year. Net sales
in the retail channel increased by US$0.7 million, or 2.0%, year-on-year. On
a same store constant currency basis, net sales in the retail channel increased
by 14.5%.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the Latin
American region by geographic location for the years ended December 31,
2012 and December 31, 2011, both in absolute terms and as a percentage
of total regional net sales.

HERE  BHE2012F12A31 B ILFE#LE
iE‘E%’%‘r‘?%‘Eiﬁﬂﬂus 2EBERTHLZI% - BE
REHEFERFERITBEEEZET &
20% o RIERIEHEEEEE  TERE
SHEFRIER 145% ©

TREFIEZE2012F 128318 K2011F 128
3VHIEFERIISMER D 2 T M tE
HEFEPM - UEHEREEHEFER
FEADLLIIR -

HZ12A310LLEE

Year ended December 31, 20124E 882011 E LB}
2012 2011 2012 vs 2011
120 ORi4>) MEREE H S8
HERE HETEE B #mOR) B
F&TT BAH FEx BAL % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales (decrease) excl. foreign currency effects

Net sales by geographic location:

B BB S 2 SHEFE
Chile & 54,998 50,158 46.2% 9.6% 11.0%
Mexico &7 34,240 32,790 30.2% 4.4% 11.9%
Argentina PR IE 9,823 14,218 13.1% (30.9)% (23.8)%
Brazil B7&° 9,628 8,481 7.8% 13.5% 14.1%
Other HAth? 3,867 2,954 2.7% 30.9% 30.9%
Net sales $HE&F58 112,556 108,601 100.0% 3.6% 7.5%
Notes Kz

T The geographic location of the Company’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the

country in which its end consumers were actually located.
AARHEFENBAVENFRMEEERNER - SR —ERKIHEEEERAENER -

2 The net sales figure for Brazil includes net sales attributable to sales made to third party distributors in Brazil.

BENEEFESBEEEREANE =D HEFHNEERENHEEFE -

3 The net sales figure for Other primarily represents sales made through the Company’s distribution center in Uruguay but does not include net sales

attributable to sales made in Brazil to third party distributors.

Hit S FRABIERAQARABBRNENIHP OMEHNHEE - A TEERBANE =12 HEFHNEERIENHETFE -

HEBEABRERARE
ZO—ZHFH
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Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

Cost of sales increased by US$112.5 million, or 15.9%, to US$820.7 million
(representing 46.3% of net sales) for the year ended December 31, 2012
from US$708.2 million (representing 45.2% of net sales) for the year ended
December 31, 2011. Cost of sales increased in line with increased net sales.
The increase in cost of sales as a percentage of net sales was primarily due to
unfavorable currency impacts, as well as a shift in the Company’s product mix
which reflected increased sales of American Tourister products that yield lower
gross profit margins.

Gross profit increased by US$94.1 million, or 11.0%, to US$951.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2012, from US$856.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011. Gross profit margin decreased from 54.8% for the year
ended December 31, 2011 to 53.7% for the year ended December 31, 2012.
This decrease was attributable to the factors noted above.

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses increased by US$55.6 million, or 13.5%, to US$466.5
million (representing 26.3% of net sales) for the year ended December 31,
2012, from US$410.9 million (representing 26.3% of net sales) for the year
ended December 31, 2011. This increase, which was reflected in additional
freight to customers, commissions, rent and increased personnel expenses, was
primarily due to the increase in sales volume in 2012. Distribution expenses as
a percentage of net sales remained consistent year-on-year.

Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2012
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Marketing Expenses

The Company spent US$117.2 million (representing 6.6% of net sales) on
marketing for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to US$122.8
million (representing 7.8% of net sales) for the year ended December 31, 2011,
a decrease of US$5.6 million, or 4.6%. Excluding foreign currency effects,
marketing expenses decreased by US$1.8 million, or 1.4%. During 2012, the
Company employed more targeted and focused advertising and promotional
campaigns. The Company believes the success of its efficient advertising
campaigns is evident in its net sales growth, and remains committed to enhance
brand and product awareness and drive additional net sales growth through
marketing activities.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by US$7.5 million, or 6.6%, to
US$121.1 million (representing 6.8 % of net sales) for the year ended December
31, 2012 from US$113.6 million (representing 7.3% of net sales) for the year
ended December 31, 2011. Although general and administrative expenses
increased in absolute terms, such expenses decreased as a percentage of net
sales by 0.5 percentage points as the Company maintained tight control of its
fixed cost base and leveraged it against strong sales growth.

=12

AAREEHE T EBEZHBZE2011EF12A
BNALEFEEINSEEETULHEFE
7.8%)FEA5.6BEBETRA6% ZEE2012
FENANALEEENI2EEET(EHEE
FEE6.6%) o WRREHTE » EHATRD
18ABETH1.4% ° R20125F » RAFKR
HEZHEERERESSERERETE -
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ERIRTY » WS BIEEBEHTIBIRARME
MEBRMBEURBEEIIMEEFHER

— M R ATHBE
—RRITHAXBEEZE2011F12A83181E
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Other Income (Expenses)

The Company recognized net other expenses of US$4.4 million and other
income of US$0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 and December
31, 2011, respectively. Other expenses for 2012 include acquisition costs of
US$6.4 million, which are primarily comprised of costs associated with due
diligence and integration activities, severance, and professional and legal fees
for the acquisitions of High Sierra and Hartmann that were completed during
2012. Other income for the year ended December 31, 2011 includes US$0.9
million of restructuring charges that were reversed to reflect a refund from
certain local governmental agencies for upfront employee related payments
made in connection with restructuring initiatives in 2009.

Operating Profit

The Company’s operating profit was US$241.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012, an increase of US$31.8 million, or 15.2%, from an
operating profit of US$209.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011.
Excluding acquisition costs, operating profit increased by 18.2% year-on-year.

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs decreased by US$53.6 million, or 75.9%, to US$17.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2012 from US$70.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011. This decrease was primarily attributable to the absence
of certain non-recurring costs and charges related to the recognition of the
remaining unamortized discount of US$28.6 million on the former amended
senior credit facility upon repayment in full of such facility following the
completion of the Company’s listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited in June 2011 (the “Global Offering”), as well as US$24.8
million of transaction costs related to the Global Offering.

Profit before Income Tax

The following table sets forth the Company’s profit before income tax, and
certain non-recurring costs and charges affecting such profit before income tax,
for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Hipr A (%)
BHZE2012F12831BK2011E 1283181k
FE > AATFDRIBREMEAFEILIEE
ENREMBAOIEERIT - 2012F HAth
HXEERERRNc4AEEET  TEEFH
Wi High Sierra & Hartmann BB BB E
RESTE ERNAAURBEERAEZE
A BEWBEER2012F %MK « HZE2011
F1R2A3BLEFEHMRABERESEHEE
FO9EEER  RIMETEMBINHERE
2009 FF E4H ¥ BRI TE(HE S ABRATRIE -

mEBF

AR BEEBRNBEEZ201MFENANBLEE
E2009E B ETEMINSAEEETHI52%
ZEHZE20NENANBLEEE4TEESE
TC © MBRUEBRIAS » & RRIRFIER182% ©

FHBEER

FURERAHREBE20NENABLEEE
706EBETRAS3.6EEXETH75.9%
ZEZE2012F12831HLEE1705ESE
T ZMBEEEARTJETRAQTRN
2011 F6 ARBEBRERBMABERATER
FR(T2BRBE]) ARBYEEAHLBE
BRiEEmERNRRR T RBHEAIR286H
BETABRNE THEEERARER WU
REBRRBENRIHA248BEET -

FrigBianamFl

TREHEZE2012F12831HK20115F12
A31BLFERQBFAERANGRAR L
ZIEBANEFNE THEEMERARER -

BZ12A310LFE
Year ended December 31,

HFET27
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars
Profit before income tax FriS B AR A
(Plus) Minus: () R
Expenses related to acquisition activities Wi E B AR EA R 2

BNRSRERR SR SH R
FrERR B EESN R BB 32

Additional interest expense recognized on
immediate recognition of unamortized
discount on debt

Expenses related to the Global Offering 2IRFERBERX
Global Offering Stabilization Proceeds EHRBEBEEEE
Reversals of restructuring charges BEBEHZER

FRSHLATER - MBRE T
FEEMERAREN

Profit before income tax, excluding certain
non-recurring costs and charges

2012 2011
224,700 139,298
(6,417) =
(28,639)
(24,805)

3,474

877

231,117 188,391

Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2012



Profit before income tax increased by US$85.4 million, or 61.3%, to US$224.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2012 from US$139.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2011.

Excluding the impact of the items noted above, profit before income tax
increased by US$42.7 million, or 22.7%, to US$231.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012 compared to the previous year.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by US$22.4 million, or 62.8%, to US$58.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2012 from US$35.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

The Company’s consolidated effective tax rate for operations was 25.8% and
25.6% for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively. The effective tax rate is calculated using a weighted average income
tax rate from those jurisdictions in which the Company is subject to tax, adjusted
for permanent book/tax differences, tax incentives, changes in tax reserves and
the recognition of previously unrecognized deferred tax assets.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, based upon an evaluation of all
relevant evidence, the Company concluded that US$47.2 million of previously
unrecognized deferred tax assets should be recognized. Of the US$47.2 million
of previously unrecognized deferred tax assets, US$12.3 million was recognized
as a benefit within income tax expense in the consolidated income statement
and US$34.9 million, which relates to deferred tax assets for pension plans, was
recognized through other comprehensive income in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year of US$166.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012
increased by US$63.0 million, or 60.8%, from US$103.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011. Excluding the estimated impact of foreign currency
translation, profit for the year increased by approximately 65.2%. This increase
was primarily driven by the Company’s robust sales growth while maintaining
tight control of operating costs, followed by the absence of non-recurring costs
and charges recognized in conjunction with the listing of the Company’s shares
and the repayment of its former amended senior credit facility in 2011. Adjusted
Net Income, a non-IFRS measure, increased by US$30.4 million, or 22.2%, to
US$167.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 from US$136.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2011. Excluding the estimated impact of
foreign currency translation, Adjusted Net Income increased by approximately
25.4%. See the reconciliation of profit for the year to Adjusted Net Income
below for a detailed discussion of the Company’s results excluding certain
non-recurring costs and charges and other non-cash charges that impacted
reported profit for the year.

ISR aNBER 2011 FE12831BLEEE
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Basic and diluted earnings per share increased to US$0.11 for the year ended
December 31, 2012 from US$0.06 for the year ended December 31, 2011.
Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share, a non-IFRS measure, increased
to US$0.12 for the year ended December 31, 2012 from US$0.10 for the year
ended December 31, 2011. The weighted average number of shares outstanding
increased for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the previous
year by 55.1 million shares as a result of the weighted average impact of the
issuance of new shares by the Company in the Global Offering. No shares were
issued during 2012.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA, which is a non-IFRS measure, increased by US$38.3 million, or
15.4%, to US$286.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 from
US$248.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Excluding the estimated
impact of foreign currency translation, Adjusted EBITDA increased by
approximately 19.7%. Adjusted EBITDA margin increased to 16.2% from 15.9%
as the Company maintained tight control of its fixed cost base while experiencing
strong sales growth.

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Company’s profit for
the year to Adjusted EBITDA for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011.

BREAREEREABEZE2011F12831H1E
FE006ETIEMBEZE2012F12A31BIEFE
E01M%ET » ERAREREAREERF(—8
FEIFRSEI K ETE T A) MBIE2011F 128310
IEFEO010ETTIBMERZ2012F 1283181
FREO0.123ETT - AAATEIRBERTHRG
FIMBEF L BE201F12A318ILEF
B MEFBRTENMNOBEREFIEM
55,100,0008% © 2012 AR EATHAIRAD o

#E:FAE EBITDA

KRR EBTDA B —IEJEIFRS B TETE - |
HZE201M%E 12831 HIEFE2483F5BET
EIN383E B ETHR154% EEE2012F 12
A31BEFE2865H 8 ETT  MERINERE
RfhET S22 KR EBTDARE INLI19.7% ©
BARARA TR RGBS HBEERA - W28
BYHEER  FILEAZBTDATERA
15.9% EFAZE16.2% °

THREHEZE2012512831H0 &2011$
RANBLEEERQATFRNRAELRA
EBITDA YR o

UTFETL25
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

BZE12B31HLFE
Year ended December 31,

Profit for the year FR@A
(Plus) Minus: ¢hn) 3%

Income tax expense FrSHB %
Finance costs BKkER
Finance income AU A
Depreciation e
Amortization #eE

EBITDA EBITDA

(Plus) Minus: (hm) 3R
Other adjustments’ HhF#

Adjusted EBITDA #ZJIEEEBITDA

2012 2011
166,627 103,618
(58,073) (35,680)
(18,229) (71,879)

1,187 1,247
(31,770) (30,158)
(8,491) (8,333)

282,003 248,421
(4,518) 168
286,521 248,253

Note KizE

T Other adjustments primarily comprised of ‘Other income (expense)’ per the consolidated income statement.

HitAE T ZBEFARERTH[EMBRA (B8%) |-

The following tables present a reconciliation from profit (loss) for the year to
Adjusted EBITDA on a regional basis for the years ended December 31, 2012
and December 31, 2011.

Samsonite International S.A.
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HE2012F12A31BILEE
Year ended December 31, 2012

UFET25] E)| BN db =M HTEM 1> 3 =k
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia Europe | North America Latin America Corporate Total

Profit (loss) for the year FRiEF (FH8) 64,469 32,750 23,732 10,774 34,902 166,627
(Plus) Minus: (hm) R -
Income tax FRSH
(expense) benefit (Bx) IR (20,136) (9,889) (14,398) 1,732 (15,382) (58,073)
Finance costs B%EA (3,553) (648) (344) (1,951) (11,733) (18,229)
Finance income BFSUR A 211 188 16 25 747 1,187
Depreciation e (10,436) (12,985) (3,396) (2,162) (2,791) (31,770)
Amortization b5 (4,207) (1,943) (400) (1,930) 11) (8,491)
EBITDA EBITDA 102,590 58,027 42,254 15,060 64,072 282,003
(Plus) Minus: (hm) 3 :
Other adjustments’ HhFg (31,051) (21,484) (37,862) (2,143) 88,022 (4,518)
Adjusted EBITDA #ZIEEEBITDA 133,641 79,511 80,116 17,203 (23,950) 286,521

HZE2011F 128310 ILEE
Year ended December 31, 2011

UFET25] M BN b ZEM BTEM ¥ A&t
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia Europe North America Latin America Corporate Total
Profit (loss) for the period HRias (EE) 46,051 33,666 38,782 6,603 (21,484) 103,618
(Plus) Minus: (hm)

Income tax expense FriSBiFA X (13,447) (11,367) (465) (1,497) (8,904) (35,680)

Finance costs BEEA (2,780) (16,477) (400) (1,798) (50,424) (71,879)

Finance income g1 ON 142 184 9 26 886 1,247

Depreciation wE (9,017) (11,519) (3,204) (1,892) (4,526) (30,158)

Amortization #HeE (4,207) (1,922) (274) (1,930) = (8,333)
EBITDA EBITDA 75,360 74,767 43,116 13,694 41,484 248,421
(Plus) Minus: (hm) 3R

Other adjustments' HigFg (29,784) (9,127) (16,072) (2,758) 57,909 168
Adjusted EBITDA FAEEEBITDA 105,144 83,894 59,188 16,452 (16,425) 248,253

Note Hi=E

T Other adjustments primarily comprised of ‘Other income (expense)’ per the consolidated income statement. Regional results include intercompany royalty
income (expense).

HittAEETEEEGFSWERPH [HAKA (BX) | - tEBEHEFLABNWERBA (BAX) ©
I

. " I I I
Adjusted EBITDA by Region Asia Europe North America Latin America
RILE &5 2 KFEEBITDA M BOM =S AT EN

26% 22%
2% 5. M 329 69

43% 40%

2012 201
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The Company has presented Adjusted EBITDA because it believes that, when
viewed with its results of operations as prepared in accordance with IFRS and
with the reconciliation to profit (loss) for the year, Adjusted EBITDA provides
additional information that is useful in gaining a more complete understanding
of its operational performance and of the trends impacting its business. Adjusted
EBITDA is an important metric the Company uses to evaluate its operating
performance and cash generation.

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS financial measure and as calculated herein may not
be comparable to similarly named measures used by other companies and should
not be considered as a measure comparable to profit (loss) for the year in the
Company’s consolidated income statement. Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an
analytical tool and should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute
for, an analysis of the Company’s results of operations as reported under IFRS.

Adjusted Net Income

Adjusted Net Income, which is a non-IFRS measure, increased by US$30.4
million, or 22.2%, to US$167.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012
from US$136.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Excluding the
estimated impact of foreign currency translation, Adjusted Net Income increased
by approximately 25.4%.

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Company’s profit for
the year to Adjusted Net Income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011.

AATEHIETHEEBDARRSEAE - EF
REELEE (IRIB RS HRELN B BRI (8
1B)ETHIR)E KRR BIDABREESE
# BARELHETHESERARSEHSE
FERIAEEY o ASHHRE EBITDA 24 B FARGHALE
ERENRIREN —BEEEETE -

WA st B K &S TR EBITDA B — B IEIFRS
MKFETE  SRkAEEMARMERE
P BN ETEETHER  BEFERA—
BEARN BEREWERR T FRER (E18) At
BRI A - £HZBITDAES —EH T
TEARERHRE  BTERABIRIN
BARATMRIEIFRS FT 2RIV E BT ©

FEEHES N
KREFIRA BB IRSUKTEIE B
HE2011F12A31BILFE1368EEBET
30 ABBETH222% ZEHE2012612
B31RLEFE1672BEET ° MRINERE
fhat /8 ERAEFWA EF254% -

TREHNEZE2012512831 B K2011F12
B31HLLFE  AQBFRENELHART
U NEHER o

UFETE7
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

HENAALFE
Year ended December 31,

FRRF
RS BT

Profit for the year
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

Profit attributable to the equity holders IRRERE AR
(Plus) Minus: (hn) 3%
Expenses related to acquisition activities U BESE B AR AR X
Change in fair value of put options ROLHIEN A ESS
Amortization of intangible assets’ EREERE

Expenses related to debt repaid in conjunction
with the Global Offering

Expenses related to the Global Offering SHREERBARX
Global Offering Stabilization Proceeds RIRBFEREBRIIE
Reversal of restructuring charges / EEERRE/ (EEER)
(restructuring charges)
Tax adjustments PIERE
Adjusted Net Income”’ EREERA’

EERFRAEFRANERNEEMX

2012 2011
166,627 103,618
18,188 16,870
148,439 86,748
(6,417) =
(8,908) (8,644)

(8.491) (8,333)

(23,240)
(24,805)
3,474

877
5,041 10,638

167,214

136,781

Notes Ffz

T Amortization of intangible assets above represents charges related to the amortization of other intangible assets with finite useful lives that were recognized
in conjunction with the acquisition of the Company by the CVC Funds in 2007, as well as the acquisitions of High Sierra and Hartmann in 2012.
R A AR IR ER 2007 F CVC B S WUIBA A R 2012 F 2482 RS High Sierra I Hartmann SSETER N EALEIRE RS GNEF EEBRANEBINER -

2 Represents Adjusted Net Income attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
AR ARERE ABGSHETRA -
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The Company has presented Adjusted Net Income because it believes this
measure helps to give securities analysts, investors and other interested parties
a better understanding of the Company’s underlying financial performance.
By presenting Adjusted Net Income, the Company eliminates the effect of a
number of non-recurring costs and charges and certain other non-cash charges
that impact its reported profit for the year.

Adjusted Net Income is a non-IFRS financial measure, and as calculated herein
may not be comparable to similarly named measures used by other companies
and should not be considered as a measure comparable to profit for the year
in the Company’s consolidated income statement. Adjusted Net Income has
limitations as an analytical tool and should not be considered in isolation from,
or as a substitute for, an analysis of the Company’s results of operations as
reported under IFRS.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management policies is to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, to provide returns for
shareholders, and to fund capital expenditures, normal operating expenses,
working capital needs, and the payment of obligations. The Company’s primary
sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating activities, invested cash,
available lines of credit and its ability to issue additional shares. The Company
believes that its existing cash and estimated cash flows, along with current
working capital, will be adequate to meet the operating and capital requirements
of the Company for at least the next twelve months.

The Company’s net cash generated from operating activities was US$203.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to US$64.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2011. The US$138.5 million increase in cash
generated from operating activities was primarily due to a US$84.8 million
increase in cash flows from operating assets and liabilities, as well as the US$30.4
million increase in Adjusted Net Income year-on-year.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, net cash used in investing activities was
US$179.2 million, an increase of US$143.4 million compared to the previous
year. This increase was primarily due to the US$142.0 million of cash outflow
for the acquisitions of High Sierra and Hartmann during the year. Capital
expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2012 amounted to US$37.9
million.

Net cash used in financing activities was US$16.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012, a decrease of US$153.8 million compared to the previous
year, primarily resulting from the absence of transactions in 2012 associated
with the 2011 Global Offering. The Company declared and paid a distribution
of US$30.0 million to shareholders from its ad hoc distributable reserve during
the year ended December 31, 2012.
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WAt B EHEFRA R —IEIEIFRS
MBFTETA  SARTEAMATRERR
BNt E TRETLE - BFEER—
HEANBGFERERTFREF TR
FFETHR - KREFWUAES—EINIA
=EBHRS - ATEERSBIRIALER
DERIBIFRS Fr 2ROV LB DA ©

RBEEREFER
RAREREERRTEBBEARSHIGERL
SRS - MRRIEHEER - HEARMZ  —R
CERXREBELATERUESRINE
o RRERBESTERFRELTH 2R
TRE  RERE  WAEEHERHBTH
IREVBED o ARNEMEE - HRARERMEETH
TRE - MERBEEES - BEURNAR
AARRED T EAEEREARTER

HZE2012F12A31BLEEE » XAREETE
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143 4B BET - IR EERBFAUE
High Sierra &% Hartmann W &7 H 142.08
BETRH - BE2012F 128318 LEFE
BRI EIIOFEET °
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Indebtedness
The following table sets forth the carrying amount of the Company’s loans and
borrowings as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

=R
TREIIADXTA2012F 128318 %2011
F12A31 BMNERKRERWIRAE -

R128318
As of December 31,

2011

UTFETL25

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

Revolving Credit Facility RBREERE
Finance lease obligations MEEESEE
Other lines of credit HitZE%E
Total loans and borrowings BRREERE
Less deferred financing costs BRI REE A AN

Total loans and borrowings less deferred
financing costs

BN R AR REAE R E R A

78
15,008

15,086
(3,319)

11,767

The Company had US$151.4 million in cash and cash equivalents at December
31, 2012, compared to US$141.3 million at December 31, 2011.

On July 2, 2012 the Company increased its existing revolving credit facility
(the “Revolving Facility”) from US$100.0 million to US$300.0 million. The
facility can be increased by an additional US$100.0 million, subject to lender
approval. The Revolving Facility has an initial term of three years, with a one
year extension at the request of the Company and the option of the lenders.
The interest rate on borrowings under the Revolving Facility is the aggregate
of (i) (a) LIBOR (or EURIBOR in the case of borrowings made in Euro) or (b)
the prime rate of the lender and (ii) a margin to be determined based on the
Company’s leverage ratio. The Revolving Facility carries a commitment fee of
0.175% per annum on any unutilized amounts, as well as an agency fee. The
Revolving Facility is secured by certain assets in the United States and Europe,
as well as the Company’s intellectual property. The Revolving Facility also
contains financial covenants related to interest coverage and leverage ratios,
and operating covenants that, among other things, limit the Company’s ability
to incur additional debt, create liens on its assets, and participate in certain
mergers, acquisitions, liquidations, asset sales or investments. The Company
was in compliance with the financial covenants as of December 31, 2012.
At December 31, 2012, US$269.0 million was available to be borrowed on
the Revolving Facility and US$25.0 million of borrowings were outstanding
on the facility along with the utilization of US$6.0 million of the facility for
outstanding letters of credit extended to certain creditors.

Certain members of the consolidated group maintain credit lines with various
third party lenders in the regions in which they operate. These local credit
lines provide working capital for the day-to-day business operations of such
subsidiaries, including overdraft, bank guarantee, and trade finance and
factoring facilities. The majority of these credit lines are uncommitted facilities.
The total aggregate amount outstanding under the local facilities was US$10.3
million and US$15.0 million at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively.
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The following represents the contractual maturity dates of the Company’s loans
and borrowings (excluding the impact of netting agreements) as of December
31,2012 and December 31, 2011.

T & % & R2012F128318 K20114F
12A31BAARERRER (MR FELEE
HEFE)NENEEA -

UFETE7
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

On demand or within 1 year RERIMER
Between 1 and 2 years 1E22F
Between 2 and 5 years 26 F5F

Over 5 years HBIESF

®12H31H

As of December 31,
2011
15,015
26
37
8
35,394 15,086

Hedging
The Company’s non-U.S. subsidiaries periodically enter into forward contracts
related to the purchase of inventory denominated primarily in US Dollars
which are designated as cash flow hedges. Cash flows associated with these
derivatives at December 31, 2012 are expected to be US$95.8 million within
one year.

Other Financial Information

Working Capital Ratios

Inventory Analysis

The following table sets forth a summary of the Company’s average inventory,
cost of sales and average inventory days for the years ended December 31,
2012 and December 31, 2011.

£
AATMNIEEEMB AR ERF L EEBEEE
EUERAZENTFENERREH  HEEY
TETEETRESREND o 120129128318
HEFPETETEERRSRBHENR-—FAB
95.8EBETT °

HihA5E s

HEESILE

FENT
TREFIEE20129F12831BR2011%E128
B EFEAATTEEIEE - HERAEARTF
9178 A SHE -

UFET27
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

BZ12A3BLEE
Year ended December 31,

Average inventory' FHEE'
Cost of sales SHEMA
Average inventory turnover days? Fi9FEEE AR’

2012 2011
257,237 229,831
820,721 708,199

114 118

Notes Ffz
1

FHEFEREREERBMIRARNFEFEN T I -

by the number of days in the period.
BEPBNTYFEBE B HASNZHENFOFERUZHENHEERSE  BRUZHBNBEE -

The Company’s average inventory increased in 2012 (US$277.5 million
at December 31, 2012 compared to US$237.0 million at December 31,
2011) from 2011 (US$237.0 million at December 31, 2011 compared to
US$222.7 million at December 31, 2010) to support increased customer
demand and new product introductions, as well as to support the High
Sierra and Hartmann acquisitions.

Average inventory equals the average of net inventory at the beginning and end of a given period.

Average inventory turnover days for a given period equals average inventory for that period divided by cost of sales for that period and multiplied

2012F AR NTFHFE (A20125F 1283110
#2775B B X MMR2011F12A831HEI
523708 B E5T) 820114F (A20115128
31H%A237.08 8% MMR20105F12831
BRIB2227EBET) &N UXEHEFS
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Trade and Other Receivables

The following table sets forth a summary of the Company’s average trade and
other receivables, net sales and turnover of trade and other receivables for
the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

FEWBRFX & H fth FEYL B IE
TREFHIEZ2012F12831BR20115E128
1BLEFE  AARFHRBIRR R E A&
WRTE - SHEIFRE » IR FEINERTN R HAth IR
RIEEE A #E -

BZ12A31ALFE

LTFEREF Year ended December 31,

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
Average trade and other receivables’ T FEUR BRI R E b FEULFRIE 196,856 158,847
Net sales SHEFHE 1,771,726 1,565,147
Turnover days of trade and other receivables® FEWER AR H A PR FhE B e B 2 41 37

Notes Kz

T Average trade and other receivables equal the average of net trade and other receivables at the beginning and end of a given period.

P39 P UK AR e LA B WK TR 5 A FE 48 P A 9 B S R PR R AR e HL At P W SR IEDF BRI P19 B

2 Turnover days of trade and other receivables for a given period equals average trade and other receivables for that period divided by net sales for

that period and multiplied by the number of days in the period.

S E M B EUART R H B OREE A SRS N2 A TR AR R At W RUR R ARS8 - BRI AR -

The Company's average trade and other receivables increased in 2012
(US$222.2 million at December 31, 2012 compared to US$171.6 million at
December 31, 2011) from 2011 (US$171.6 million at December 31, 2011
compared to US$146.1 million at December 31, 2010) in line with the increase
in net sales.

Trade receivables as of December 31, 2012 are on average due within 60 days
from the date of billing.

Trade and Other Payables

The following table sets forth a summary of the Company’s average trade and
other payables, cost of sales and turnover days of trade and other payables for
the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

2012 7R A A 19 FE IR BR T I EL Ath FE IR GRIE
(FR20125F12B31AA2222@ B % MR
2011E12A31HAIB171.6 BB ET) 82011
F(A2011F12A31BAB171.6BEERT
20108 12 A31HAIA 1461 BB ET)Em -

BHETFRRER B o

R2012F 12 A31 B 2 BRERR F I ABRER
E AT 60 A RBIE o

FE 1T BR AN R H B 1 FRIE
TREFNREZE2012F12831AR2011F
12A3MBLEFERATEYEMSERERREH
BT FRIE ~ SHER A AR R BRFA R H A
EAFIERE B EME -

UFETE5
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

BZ12A310LEE
Year ended December 31,

Average trade and other payables'
SHEMA

Cost of sales
Turnover days of trade and other payables?

FHIREAN IR R At TR

FES BRI A A4 FOR B B 8°

2012 2011
324,524 308,536
820,721 708,199

144 159

Notes Kz

T Average trade and other payables equal the average of trade and other payables at the beginning and end of a given period.

PR AR e HL A B FROEAR S A4S R A R A ) R SR B A BRI HL At FE AT RO P 198 -

2 Turnover days of trade and other payables for a given period equals average trade and other payables for that period divided by cost of sales for

that period and multiplied by the number of days in the period.

HE RN R IRR R AN R A BB SRR RN TR IR R AR RURRR R S E R - BRUZMENAE -
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The increase in average trade and other payables at December 31, 2012
(US$362.5 million at December 31, 2012 compared to US$286.6 million at
December 31, 2011) from December 31, 2011 (US$286.6 million at December
31,2011 compared to US$330.5 million at December 31, 2010) was primarily
due to increased inventory purchases period over period and the timing of
such purchases. The decrease in turnover days of trade and other payables in
2012 from 2011 was primarily due to an increase in cost of sales attributable
to higher net sales, partially offset by an increase in average trade and other
payables year over year.

Trade payables as of December 31, 2012 are on average due within 105 days
from the invoice date.

Capital Expenditures

Historical Capital Expenditures

The following table sets forth the Company’s historical capital expenditures for
the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

2012512 A31 B BN IR R B A ER
FRIE (2012512 A31H B3625E B Xt
MmmM2011F 12831 AR A286.6 BB ETT) &
201158128318 (R20115F12 831852866
BEXET MM2010F128318 8153305
BEET)IEM FTEHRBARBEFEEM
RBERER c 2012 F BT IRA R HEMEMATK
BREAYE201FRED  TEHNEETF
FEIEMEHEEREA L EBS Tk
BRI HAD RS TR R S 1R 1R TR 8H o

R2012F12A31 H 2 BN RAF I RHNE
FERHEET 105 BRI -

=Nk

BEEARMAX
TREFAQATANREE2012F128318K
2011 FE12A3ALEFEENBEERES

P STEL ]

BZ1N2AALEE
Year ended December 31,

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
Land T i 2,449 85
Buildings BF 2,562 513
Machinery, equipment, MRS - RfE - HEVERSIERHM

leasehold improvements and other 32,930 36,574
Total capital expenditures BRI AR 37,941 37,172

Planned Capital Expenditures

The Company’s capital expenditures budget for 2013 is approximately
US$72.6 million. The Company plans to construct a new warehouse in
Europe, refurbish existing retail stores, open new retail stores and invest in
machinery and equipment.
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EHER
TREBMMN2012F12831BEAQX TSR
ReREABERIEENESNEEMNES
EEAME -

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes scheduled maturities of the Company’s
contractual obligations for which cash flows are fixed and determinable as of
December 31, 2012.

EEUAREA
Payments Due
15226 2FB5EF

UFET25 Bt 1R Between Between BBSF

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Total Within 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years Over 5 years

Loans and borrowings BRRER 35,394 35,330 22 42 -
Minimum operating BRIEKEHEN

lease payments 207,367 59,373 47,743 78,421 21,830

242,761 94,703 47,765 78,463 21,830

M2012F12A310 » BRERBRA DR
BHERN  ARBABEAEANEES

As of December 31, 2012, the Company did not have any material off-balance
sheet arrangements or contingencies except as included in the table summarizing

its contractual obligations above. BRALZHSHAEE -
Gearing Ratio BEL =

TREHAQTR2012F12831 B KR 2011
FNABEREERMBRELZRE K
)~ ERBERERLE .

The following table sets forth the Company’s loans and borrowings (excluding
deferred financing costs), total equity and gearing ratio as of December 31,
2012 and December 31, 2011.

HZEN2BNALEE

LFER2F) Year ended December 31,
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011
Loans and borrowings BRRER

(excl. deferred financing costs) (BPRIEAE B0 & RS ) 35,394 15,086
Total equity 4% 1,086,105 945,200
Gearing ratio’ 1Bt = 3.3% 1.6%

Note HfzE
T Calculated as total loans and borrowings (excluding deferred financing costs) divided by total equity.
RERRERAE (MERELRERA) BRUAESBETE -
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Other Information

Human Resources and Remuneration

At December 31, 2012, the Company had approximately 7,070 employees
worldwide, compared to approximately 6,640 employees at December 31, 2011.
The Company regularly reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees
according to the relevant market practice, employee performance and the
financial performance of the Company.

Strategic Review and Prospects
During 2012, the Company continued to implement its strategic plan in the
following areas:

Positive financial results
All key company metrics showed considerable growth for the year ended
December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011.

o Net sales increased by 13.2% to US$1,771.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales increased
by 16.8%.

e Adjusted Net Income increased by 22.2% to US$167.2 million.

e Adjusted EBITDA increased by 15.4% to US$286.5 million.

e Adjusted EBITDA margin increased to 16.2% from 15.9% reflecting the
Company’s ability to leverage its cost base against strong sales growth.

e The Company generated US$203.0 million of cash from operating activities.

Significant investment in advertising and promotion

The Company maintained its significant investment in marketing, which
amounted to approximately 6.6% of net sales, reflecting its commitment
to advertise and promote its brands and products to support sales growth
worldwide.

New products in the market

The Company continued to focus on innovation and ensuring that its products
reflect local consumer tastes in each region. Innovation and a regional focus
on product development are key drivers of sales growth and are the means
to deliver quality and value to the Company’s customers.

Expanded distribution network

The Company continued the further expansion of its distribution network by
adding approximately 5,000 points of sale during the year ended December
31, 2012.
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Acquisitions
The Company sought out acquisition opportunities that presented a
compelling strategic and financial rationale. The Company completed the

following acquisitions during 2012:

(a) High Sierra Sport Company

On July 17, 2012, certain of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries (the
“Samsonite Purchasers”) entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with
High Sierra Sport Company (“High Sierra”), pursuant to which, on July 31,
2012, the Samsonite Purchasers purchased substantially all of the assets of
High Sierra for a net cash consideration of US$108.0 million.

Upon the consummation of the acquisition, the Samsonite Purchasers
purchased substantially all of the assets of High Sierra ex-cluding cash, certain
receivables, and certain other retained assets and assumed all balance sheet
liabilities and certain contractual liabilities of High Sierra.

The acquisition gives the Company a strong brand and product offering that
provides a larger foothold in the North American casual bag market. It also
provides the Company with opportunities to leverage its well-established
global distribution network and retail presence to significantly expand the
High Sierra brand in additional markets in Asia, Europe and Latin America.

Please refer to note 8 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements
for further details on the acquisition of High Sierra.

(b) HL Operating Corp. doing business as Hartmann

On August 2, 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Samsonite Purchaser”) entered into a Merger Agreement with HL
Operating Corp. ("Hartmann”), pursuant to which, on August 2, 2012, the
Samsonite Purchaser completed the acquisition, by way of merger, of all
of the outstanding shares of the capital stock of Hartmann for a net cash
consideration of US$34.0 million.

Samsonite International S.A.
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fiartmann

The Hartmann brand has a 135-year heritage and a tradition of stylish design
and impeccable quality. The acquisition gives the Company a strong brand to
expand its presence in the luxury luggage and leather goods market as well as
opportunities to leverage the Company’s well-established global distribution
network and retail presence to significantly expand the Hartmann brand both
in the U.S. and internationally.

Please refer to note 8 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements
for further details on the acquisition of Hartmann.

Future Prospects
The Company’s growth strategy will continue as planned for 2013, while
focusing on the following:

e continue to gain market share by leveraging the strength of the Company’s
brands, Samsonite, American Tourister, High Sierra and Hartmann, across
all of its markets while continuing to capitalize on the robust growth in
international travel;

e expand the geographic reach of the newly acquired High Sierra and
Hartmann brands;

e introduce new and innovative product designs, adapted to the needs of
consumers in different markets, while staying true to the Company’s core
values of lightness, strength and functionality;

e improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the Company’s supply chain
and global distribution network;

e increase the Company’s investment in R&D and marketing broadly in line
with sales growth;

e allocate more resources to the business, casual and accessory product
categories, where the Company’s share is relatively low; and

e actively evaluate acquisition opportunities that have a compelling strategic
fit, leveraging a strong management team and balance sheet capacity.

The Company aims to deliver top-line growth, maintain gross margins,
increase Adjusted EBITDA margins and enhance shareholder value.
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Management Discussion and Analysis EIEE&RED T

Qualitative and Quantitative Market Risks

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers. Maximum
exposure is limited to the carrying amounts of the financial assets presented in
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

The Company'’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the
demographics of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry
and country in which customers operate, as these factors may have an influence
on credit risk. There is no concentration of credit risk geographically or with
any single customer.

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer
is analyzed individually for creditworthiness before the Company’s standard
payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to
their credit characteristics, including aging profile, and existence of previous
financial difficulties. Trade and other receivables relate mainly to the Company’s
wholesale customers. Customers that are graded as “high risk” are placed
on credit hold and monitored by the Company, and future sales are made
on an approval basis.

Financial Guarantees
The Company'’s policy is to provide financial guarantees only on behalf of
subsidiaries. No other guarantees have been made to third parties.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
the obligations associated with its financial liabilities.

The Company’s primary sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating
activities, invested cash, available lines of credit and its ability to issue additional
shares. The Company believes that its existing cash and estimated cash flows,
along with current working capital, will be adequate to meet its operating and
capital requirements for at least the next twelve months.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings that
are denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies
of its subsidiaries.

The Company periodically uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its
exposure to currency risk on product purchases denominated in a currency
other than the respective functional currency of its subsidiaries. The forward
exchange contracts typically have maturities of less than one year.

Interest on borrowings is denominated in the local currency of the borrowing.
Borrowings are generally denominated in currencies that match the cash flows
generated by the underlying operations of the borrowing entity.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company monitors its exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings
on variable rate debt instruments. Although the Company does not currently
have any interest rate hedging instruments, it may from time to time enter into
interest rate swap contracts to manage interest rate risk.

Other Market Price Risk

Equity price risk arises from available for sale equity securities held by the Company’s
defined benefit pension plans to fund obligations that are used to measure periodic
net pension costs. Pension plan liabilities are presented net of pension plan assets
in the Company’s consolidated statement of financial position. The Company’s
investment strategy is to generate investment returns on pension plan assets in
order to satisfy its defined benefit pension plan obligations. The Company engages
professional pension plan asset managers to assist in this process.

The estimated pension obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits
attributed to employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement
date without considering future compensation levels), exceeds the fair value
of the assets of the Company’s pension plans, which is primarily the result of
the performance of equity markets and low interest rates during prior years.
Future market conditions and interest rate fluctuations could significantly impact
future assets and liabilities of the Company’s pension plans and future minimum
required funding levels.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERERRE

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company is pleased to present this
Corporate Governance Report for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Company recognizes that sound corporate governance
practices are fundamental to its effective and transparent operation and to its
ability to protect the rights of its shareholders and enhance shareholder value.

The Company has adopted its own corporate governance manual, which is
based on the principles, provisions and practices set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (as in effect from time to time, the “CG Code") contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company complied with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code throughout the period from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012,
except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 discussed below regarding
the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") and the deviation
from code provision F.1.3 discussed below regarding the Company’s Joint
Company Secretaries.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and CEO should
be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Timothy Parker, the CEO of the Company, is also the Chairman of the
Board. The Company believes this is appropriate because having Mr. Parker
serve as both the CEO and the Chairman provides the Company with strong
and consistent leadership. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is adequately ensured by the operations of the Board, which is
comprised of highly experienced individuals including three Executive Directors
(including Mr. Parker), three Non-Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors. Moreover, Mr. Parker is not a member of either the
Audit Committee or Remuneration Committee of the Board, and each of the
Audit, Remuneration and Nomination committees is comprised of a majority
of Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Code provision F.1.3 provides that the company secretary should report to the
Chairman and CEO.
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Mr. John Livingston, the Vice President, General Counsel and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company, reports to the Company’s Chief Financial Officer
("CFQ"). The Company believes this is appropriate because Mr. Livingston is
based at the same location as the CFO and works closely with him on a day-
to-day basis. In addition, Mr. Livingston works directly with the Company’s
Chairman and CEO, and with the chairpersons of the various Board committees,
with respect to corporate governance and other Board-related matters. Each
of Ms. Lo Wun Sei and Ms. Lau Pik Lee, the Company’s other joint company
secretaries during 2012 who served in such capacity from January 1, 2012 to July
4, 2012 and from July 4, 2012 through December 31, 2012, respectively, and
were based in Hong Kong, reported to Mr. Livingston. The Company believes
this is appropriate because their primary role as joint company secretary was to
assist Mr. Livingston in ensuring that the Company complies with its obligations
under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own policies (the “Trading Policy”) for securities
transactions by directors and relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company on terms no
less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, all directors have confirmed that they complied with the
required standard set out in the Trading Policy during the year ended December
31, 2012. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests in the Company’s shares
as at December 31, 2012 are set out at pages 76 to 77 of this Annual Report.

The Board of Directors and Senior Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company, and
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. In addition, the Board is responsible for overseeing the
corporate governance and financial reporting of the Company and for reviewing
the effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control. To assist it in
fulfilling its duties, the Board has established three board committees: the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee (for
details of which see pages 54 to 56 of this Annual Report).

The day-to-day operation of the business of the Company is managed by the
CEO and his management team.

The Board has established clear guidelines with respect to matters that must
be approved or recommended by the Board, including, without limitation,
approval and adoption of the Company’s annual operating budget and capital
expenditure budget; the hiring or dismissal of the CEO, Chief Financial Officer,
Joint Company Secretary or certain other members of the Company’s senior
management team; and approving and recommending significant transactions.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
potential legal actions against its directors and senior management.
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Composition of the Board, Number of Board Meetings and
Directors’ Attendance

The Board consists of nine directors, including three Executive Directors (“ED"),
three Non-Executive Directors (“NED"), and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors (“INED"). The biographical details of each director and their respective
responsibilities and dates of appointment are included in the “Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 62 to 68 of this Annual Report. None
of the members of the Board is related to one another.

There were ten meetings of the Board held during the year ended December
31, 2012. The following is the attendance record of the directors at Board and
committee meetings, and at shareholder meetings held during the year:

ESTHE EFTTHABREE
H R R

EEERNEESAN  BEZEHTES
(THITEE]) - ZHBFHTES ([EHT
BEE]) R=EBIFITES ([BUFY
TEE]) BESZEEHBREEEAZ
BERZEAPHERAFHRECCEZSE
WIBE=ZRSREEE| -8 -EEEHE
R LI BAT MR -

HZE202F12A31BLEE  EE2HF
HtRE& -  THAFRESHRESER
ZESSERBRRAG2THE

HERE

Attendance

g ENZEEE BEZEE FHzEe BRERBFAE RERAE

kel Board of Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual General ~ General
Category Directors' Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting

Timothy Charles Parker ED, Chairman and CEO  10/10 - 11 - 11 11
YITES « TERTEER

Kyle Francis Gendreau ED 10/10 = = = 171 1”71
HTES

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala ED 9/10 - - - 11 11
HTES

Nicholas James Clarry NED 9/10 4/4 11 - 0/1 11
FPITEE

Keith Hamill NED 10/10 4/4 - - 11 11
FHTES

Bruce Hardy McLain NED 9/10 = = 2/3" 1”71 11
FHTESR

Paul Kenneth Etchells INED 10/10 4/4 11 3/3 171 171
BYEHTES

Miguel Kai Kwun Ko INED 9/10 4/4 11 3/3 0/1 171

= R BIFPITES

Ying Yeh INED 9/10 4/4 11 3/3 11 1/1

=R BIKPITES

Note iz

' Mr. Nicholas Clarry attended one meeting of the Remuneration Committee on behalf of Mr. Hardy McLain under a power of attorney granted by Mr. McLain.

Nicholas Clarry e R Y% Hardy Mclain £ FF 2 REENRR Mclain EEHE-RFHESSEH -

Each INED has provided the Company with an annual confirmation of his or her
independence, and the Company considers each of the INEDs to be independent
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notice of regular Board meetings is given to all directors at least 14 days in
advance, and reasonable notice is generally given for other Board meetings.
Annual meeting schedules and the draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to directors in advance. Arrangements are in place to allow
directors to include items in the agenda, and final agendas together with board
papers are sent to directors at least 3 days before each regular Board meeting,
and as soon as practicable before other Board meetings, so that the Board can
make informed decisions on matters placed before it. Each director also has
separate and independent access to the senior management where necessary.

Minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the Joint Company Secretary. Draft
minutes are circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting.

If a director or any of his or her associates has a material interest in a transaction,
that director is required to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at the meeting for approving the transaction.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company uses a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment,
election and removal of directors, which is set out in the Company’s Articles
of Incorporation and is led by the Nomination Committee, which will make
recommendations on new director appointments to the Board for approval.

Each of the NEDs and INEDs is engaged on a service contract for a term
of 3 years, subject to re-election. Each of the EDs is also party to a service
contract, with their appointment subject to re-election. Further details of the
appointment, election and removal of directors are set out in the “Directors
and Senior Management” section on pages 62 to 68 of this Annual Report.

Induction and Ongoing Development

Each newly appointed director receives a formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction to ensure his or her understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and awareness of a director’s responsibilities and obligations.
All directors participate in continuous professional development in order to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Each member of the Board
attended training on corporate governance, regulatory developments or other
relevant topics during the year ended December 31, 2012, and directors are
continually updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory regime
and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
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Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s website and
are available to shareholders upon request. Meetings of the Board committees
generally follow the same procedures as for meetings of the Board.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit Committee and has adopted written terms
of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee. The Audit
Committee consists of five members, namely Mr. Paul Etchells (Chairman of
the Audit Committee) (INED), Mr. Miguel Ko (INED), Ms. Ying Yeh (INED), Mr.
Nicholas Clarry (NED), and Mr. Keith Hamill (NED).

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, at least one member of the
Audit Committee possesses appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
or related financial management expertise in discharging the responsibilities of
the Audit Committee.

All members have sufficient experience in reviewing audited financial statements
as aided by the auditors of the Company whenever required.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
Company’s financial reporting process and internal controls, to monitor the
integrity of the Company’s financial statements and financial reporting, and to
oversee the audit process.

There were four meetings of the Audit Committee held during the year ended
December 31, 2012. The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Audit Committee during 2012:

e Reviewed and approved the internal audit work plan for 2012, and received
periodic updates on the status of internal audit activities from the Company’s
Director of Internal Audit;

e Reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls for the year
ended December 31, 2011;

e Reviewed the annual financial statements, annual results announcement and
annual report for the year ended December 31, 2011 and recommended
approval of such documents to the Board;

e Reviewed the independence of the Company’s external auditors and
recommended the re-engagement of the external auditors for the year ended
December 31, 2012;
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e Reviewed the interim financial statements, interim results announcement and
interim report of the Company for the six months ended June 30, 2012, and
recommended approval of such documents to the Board;

¢ Reviewed and approved the scope of the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2012 and the
fee proposal for such audit;

e Reviewed arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties; and

¢ Met twice with the Company’s external auditors without the presence of the
Executive Directors or management.

In addition, during the first three months of 2013 the Audit Committee
reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls for the year
ended December 31, 2012; reviewed the annual financial statements, annual
results announcement and annual report for the year ended December 31, 2012
and recommended approval of such documents to the Board; and reviewed
the independence of the Company’s external auditors and recommended the
re-engagement of the external auditors for the year ending December 31, 2013.

Nomination Committee

The Board has established a Nomination Committee and has adopted written
terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee. The
Nomination Committee consists of five members, namely Mr. Timothy Parker
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (ED), Mr. Paul Etchells (INED), Mr.
Miguel Ko (INED), Ms. Ying Yeh (INED), and Mr. Nicholas Clarry (NED).

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, to make recommendations to the Board
with respect to any changes to the composition of the Board, and to assess
the independence of the INEDs. When identifying suitable candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall (where applicable and appropriate) use open
advertising or the services of external advisers and consider candidates from a
wide range of backgrounds on merit and against objective criteria.

There was one meeting of the Nomination Committee held during the year
ended December 31, 2012. The following is a summary of the work performed
by the Nomination Committee during 2012:

e Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

e Assessed the independence of the INEDs and concluded that each of the
INEDs satisfied the independence requirements applicable to INEDs; and

e Considered the retirement and re-nomination of directors to stand for re-
election to the Board at the Company’s 2012 annual general meeting of
shareholders.
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Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee and has adopted written
terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee.
The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Miguel
Ko (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (INED), Mr. Paul Etchells (INED),
Ms. Ying Yeh (INED), and Mr. Hardy McLain (NED).

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
directors and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration, as well as
to determine the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and
certain members of senior management.

There were three meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during the year
ended December 31, 2012. The following is a summary of the work performed
by the Remuneration Committee during 2012:

¢ Reviewed and approved the compensation of each member of the Company’s
senior management, including the Executive Directors, for 2012;

e Reviewed the Company’s Share Award Scheme and recommended to the
Board that the Share Award Scheme be proposed to the shareholders for
approval; and

¢ Reviewed the parameters for determining grants of share options to be made
under the Share Award Scheme.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
The following is a general description of the emolument policy of the Company,
as well as the basis of determining the emoluments payable to the directors:

The remuneration of directors is determined by the Board, which receives
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee. The remuneration of
directors also has to be approved by special resolutions at the annual general
meeting of the shareholders of the Company. One of the NEDs and all of the
INEDs received directors’ fees. Executive Directors did not receive any directors’
fees.

Under the Company’s current compensation arrangements, the Executive
Directors and senior management receive cash compensation in the form of
salaries as well as bonuses that are subject to performance targets.

On September 14, 2012 the Company’s shareholders approved and adopted
the Company’s Share Award Scheme. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme
is to attract skilled and experienced personnel, to incentivize them to remain
with the Company and to motivate them to strive for the future development
and expansion of the Company by providing them with the opportunity to ac-
quire equity interests in the Company. Awards under the Share Award Scheme
may take the form of either share options or restricted share units, which may
be granted at the discretion of the Board to directors, employees or such other
persons as the Board may determine.
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At December 31, 2012, no awards had been granted under the Share Award
Scheme. On January 8, 2013 the Company granted to certain Executive Directors
and employees of the Company share options exercisable for an aggregate of
15,532,227 ordinary shares in the Company.

Remuneration of the directors (including fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses,
and other benefits) was approximately US$3.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012. The aggregate amount of emoluments for the five highest
paid individuals of the Company, including certain Executive Directors, was
approximately US$5.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. No
amounts have been paid to the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company, or as compensation
for loss of office for the year ended December 31, 2012. No directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments to which they were entitled for the year
ended December 31, 2012.

The following table summarizes the emoluments, by band, of the ten members
of the Company’s senior management for the year ended December 31, 2012:
US$250,000 - 500,000: 4 employees

US$500,000 — 750,000: 3 employees

US$750,000 — 1,000,000: 1 employee

Over US$1,000,000: 2 employees

External Auditors and Auditors’ Remuneration

The auditors’ statement about their reporting responsibilities for the Company’s
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on page 85
of this Annual Report.

The fees in relation to the audit and related services for the year ended December
31, 2012 provided by KPMG, the external auditors of the Company, were as
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Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated
Financial Statements
The Board acknowledges that it holds responsibility for:

e Qverseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the Company with
a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company; and

e Selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently with
the support of reasonable judgment and estimates.

The Board ensures the timely publication of the financial statements of the
Company.

Management provides explanations and information to the Board to enable
it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other information to
be approved.

The Board strives to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of
the Company’s financial reporting, including annual and interim reports, other
inside information announcements, and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators and information required
to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the Company’s assets and for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Internal Controls
The Board places great importance on internal control and is responsible to
ensure that the Company maintains sound and effective internal controls.

The Company’s internal audit department reviews the adequacy and effectiveness
of the internal control system. The internal and external audit plans are discussed
and agreed each year with the Audit Committee.
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The Board has reviewed the overall effectiveness of the Company’s system of
internal control for the year ended December 31, 2012. The Board has delegated
to the Audit Committee responsibility for reviewing the Company’s internal
controls and reporting the committee’s findings to the Board. In conducting
such review, the Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, has (i) reviewed
the Company’s internal audit activities during the year and discussed such
activities and the results thereof with the Company’s Director of Internal Audit,
(ii) reviewed and discussed the scope and results of the annual audit with the
Company's external auditors, and (iii) reviewed with management the results of
the Company’s internal management representation process that was performed
in connection with the preparation of the annual financial statements. Based
on its review, the Board is not aware of any material defects in the effectiveness
of internal controls.

Communications with Shareholders and Investor Relations
The Company strives to maintain a high level of transparency in communications
with shareholders and investors. The Company keeps a constant dialogue with
the investment community through company visits, conference calls, information
sessions and participation in major investor conferences to communicate the
Company’s business strategies, developments and goals.

The Company’s annual and interim reports, the current version of the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation, the Company’s stock exchange filings, video webcasts,
press releases and other information and updates on the Company’s operations
and financial performance are available for public access on the Company’s
website, www.samsonite.com, and some of them are also available on the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend the Company’s Annual
General Meeting (“AGM") and other general meetings, to communicate
their views and concerns to the Board directly so as to ensure a high level
of accountability and also to stay informed of the Company’s strategies,
developments and goals.

The 2013 AGM will be held on June 6, 2013. The notice of AGM will be sent
to the shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

Shareholders Rights

Procedure for Shareholders to Convene a General Meeting

Any one or more shareholder(s) who together hold not less than 5% of the
issued and outstanding shares of the Company that carry the right to vote
at general meetings may convene a general meeting by depositing a written
request signed by such shareholders and addressed to the attention of the
Company’s Joint Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company
in Luxembourg or at the office of the Company in Hong Kong, the addresses
of which are set below.
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Such request must specify the objects of the meeting. If the Board does not
within two calendar days from the date of deposit of the request proceed
duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 28 calendar days,
the shareholders signing the request (or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all shareholders signing the request) may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings may be convened by the Board. No general meeting
convened by request of the shareholders may be held later than three months
after the date of deposit of the request.

Procedure for Shareholders to Make Enquires to the Board
Shareholders may make enquiries to the Board in writing by sending such
enquiries to the attention of the Company’s Joint Company Secretary at the
registered office of the Company in Luxembourg or at the office of the Company
in Hong Kong, the addresses of which are set out below. The Joint Company
Secretary will forward enquiries to the Chairman for consideration.

In addition, shareholders in attendance at any general meeting of the Company’s
shareholders may make enquiries at such meeting to the Chairman of the
Board, the chairmen of the various Board committees, or to other directors in
attendance at such meeting.

Procedure for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at

General Meetings

Upon a written request by (i) one or more shareholder(s) representing not less
than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders who at the date of such
request have a right to vote at the meeting to which the request relates, or (ii)
not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the Company on which there has
been paid up an average sum, per shareholder, of not less than HK$2,000, the
Company shall, at the expense of the shareholders making the request (a) give
to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may be properly moved and is intended to be
moved at that meeting, and (b) circulate to shareholders entitled to receive
notice of any general meeting a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with in the meeting.

Such request must be signed by all the shareholders making the request (or two
or more copies between them containing the signatures of all the shareholders
making the request) and deposited at the registered office of the Company in
Luxembourg or at the office of the Company in Hong Kong, the addresses of
which are set below.

Such request must be deposited (i) not less than six weeks before the meeting
in question in the case of a request proposing that a resolution be adopted at
the meeting, and (i) not less than one week before the meeting in the case of
any request that does not propose that a resolution be adopted at the meeting.
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In addition, one or more shareholder(s) who together hold at least 10% of
the Company’s issued and outstanding shares may request that one or more
additional items be put on the agenda of any general meeting. Such request
must be sent to the registered office of the Company in Luxembourg by
registered mail not less than five days before the meeting.

Except pursuant to the procedures described above, a shareholder may not
make a motion at a general meeting.

Procedure for Election to the Office of Director upon

Shareholder Proposal

A shareholder who intends to propose a candidate for election to the office of
director of the Company shall provide the Company’s Joint Company Secretary
with a written notice reflecting its intention to propose a person for election to
the office of director of the Company.

The notice shall be delivered by the shareholder at the registered office of
the Company in Luxembourg or at the office of the Company in Hong Kong,
the addresses of which are set out below, during a period commencing no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the convening notice of the meeting
scheduled for such election and ending no later than seven days prior to the
date of such meeting. Such notice must be delivered by a shareholder (not being
the person to be proposed) who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting.
In addition, the candidate proposed for election shall deliver to the Company’s
Joint Company Secretary a signed written notice reflecting his willingness to
be elected as director of the Company.

In accordance with Article 13.5 of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company,
the appointment of the director will be made by way of a general shareholders’
meeting of the Company and by ordinary resolution adopted at a simple majority
of the votes cast.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to one
of the following addresses marked for the attention of the Joint Company
Secretary:

Registered Office in Luxembourg:
13-15 Avenue de la Liberté
[-1931, Luxembourg

Principal place of business in Hong Kong:
25/F, Tower 2, The Gateway,

Harbour City, 25 Canton Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEE

General
The Board currently consists of nine directors, comprising three Executive
Directors, three Non-Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

In accordance with Code provision A.4.2 as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Under Article 8.1
of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the directors shall be elected by
the shareholders at a general meeting, and the term of office of a director shall
be three years, upon the expiry of which each shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2012, Mr. Keith Hamill, Mr.
Miguel Kai Kwun Ko and Mr. Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala retired by rotation,
and having been eligible, offered themselves for re-election as directors at the
2012 AGM. All three were re-elected at the AGM by majority vote.

The terms of the other six directors will expire at the June 6, 2013 AGM of the
Company, and such directors will be subject to re-election at the AGM.

Directors

The Board is responsible and has general powers for the management and
conduct of the Company’s business. The following table sets out certain
information concerning the directors:
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e Fie B ZEHH ZRHE
Name Age Position Date of Appointment Principal Responsibilities’
Timothy Charles 57 Executive Director, Chairman As Non-Executive Chairman: Overall strategic planning
Parker and Chief Executive Officer November 2008 and management of the
PITES - TERTEEH As Chief Executive Officer: Company
January 2009 IRA TR R AL iR &
RIFHATER © 20085118 kER
FITBHEE : 200918
Kyle Francis 43 Executive Director and Chief January 2009 Management of the
Gendreau Financial Officer 2009414 Company’s finance and
PITEERIEEE treasury matters
EEANRWEIER
AESH
Ramesh Dungarmal 53 Executive Director and February 2011 Management and
Tainwala President, Asia-Pacific and 2011424 development of the
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HE Fie B ZIEAMH FTERE
Name Age Position Date of Appointment Principal Responsibilities'
Nicholas James Clarry 41 Non-Executive Director October 2007
FHITES 20074108
Keith Hamill 60 Non-Executive Director October 2009
FHTES 20095108
Bruce Hardy MclLain 60 Non-Executive Director October 2007
(Hardy) IEHITES 2007108
Paul Kenneth Etchells 62 Independent Non-Executive May 2011
Director 2011454
BYFHITES
Miguel Kai Kwun Ko 60 Independent Non-Executive May 2011
=R Director 2011454
BYFHTES
Ying Yeh 64 Independent Non-Executive May 2011
f Director 2011454
BYFHITES
Note FfizF

' As is usual for a company of this size, the Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors do not have specific operational responsibilities but

rather, with the benefit of their particular experiences, provide strategic guidance and leadership to the Board.
RIEEER  ARSHENAT > FRTESRBYUFNTESTRBELEST  RARSZEEEREAROESSRMUKKISEERES -

Executive Directors

Mr. Timothy Charles Parker, aged 57, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and is also the Chairman of the Board of Directors. He has served
as Chairman of the Company since its incorporation on March 8, 2011 and
has been the Chief Executive Officer of the consolidated group since January
2009. Mr. Parker is responsible for the Company’s overall strategic planning
and management. He served as Non-Executive Chairman of the consolidated
group from November 2008 until January 2009, and as Executive Chairman
of the consolidated group since January 2009. Mr. Parker has a long history of
managing large businesses. Prior to joining the Company he was chief executive
of: The Automobile Association (2004 to 2007), the car-repair firm Kwik-Fit
(2002 to 2004), Clarks, the shoemaker (1997 to 2002) and Kenwood Appliances
(1989 to 1995). Mr. Parker currently holds a non-executive directorship with, and
is the chairman of, Autobar Group, a non-executive directorship with Archive
Investments and is an advisor to the CVC Funds. He has previously held non-
executive directorships with Alliance Boots, Compass and Legal and General.
Mr. Parker has also previously advised ministers and senior civil servants on
nationalized industry policy in his capacity as an economist at the British Treasury
(1977 to 1979). Mr. Parker holds a BA in Philosophy, Politics and Economics from
the University of Oxford, Oxford, the United Kingdom (1977) and a Masters in
Business Studies from London Graduate School of Business Studies, London,
the United Kingdom (1981).
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Mr. Kyle Francis Gendreau, aged 43, has served as an Executive Director
of the Company since its incorporation on March 8, 2011 and has been the
Chief Financial Officer since January 2009. Mr. Gendreau is responsible for
managing all aspects of the Company’s finance and treasury matters. He has
served as an executive director of the consolidated group since January 2009.
Mr. Gendreau joined the Company in June 2007 as Vice President of Corporate
Finance and as Assistant Treasurer. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Gendreau
held various positions including vice president of finance and chief financial
officer at Zoots Corporation, a venture capital-backed start up company (2000
to 2007), assistant vice president of finance and director of SEC reporting at
Specialty Catalog Corporation, a listed catalog retailer (1997 to 2000) and a
manager at Coopers & Lybrand in Boston (1991 to 1996). Mr. Gendreau holds
a BS in Business Administration from Stonehill College, Easton, Massachusetts,
USA (1991) and is a Certified Public Accountant in Massachusetts.

Mr. Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala, aged 53, has served as an Executive
Director of the Company since February 2011 and is the Company’s President
for Asia-Pacific and the Middle East. In his role as President, Mr. Tainwala‘s
principal responsibility is to manage and develop the Company’s business in Asia
Pacific. The responsibilities of this role include the Company’s manufacturing
operations in India as well as marketing and sales in the Middle East, West Asia
and Australia. Mr. Tainwala has been the General Manager of the Company’s
Middle Eastern operation since January 2007 and has been the Chief Operating
Officer of the Company’s Indian operation since June 2000. Prior to joining the
Company in November 1995, Mr. Tainwala worked in the plastic processing
and consumer goods industries including with Tainwala Chemicals & Plastics
(India) Limited with which he was associated from 1985 to 2008. Mr. Tainwala
was an entrepreneur in the plastic processing and consumer goods industries.
Mr. Tainwala is also an independent non-executive director of Donear Industries
Limited and of Basant Agro Tech (India) Ltd., both listed on the Bombay Stock
Exchange and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited. Mr. Tainwala holds
a Masters degree in Management Studies from the Birla Institute of Technology
and Science, Pilani, India (1982).
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Nicholas James Clarry, aged 41, has served as a Non-Executive Director
of the Company since October 2007. Mr. Clarry is a partner at private equity
house CVC Capital Partners, which he joined in 2003. Since joining CVC Capital
Partners he has been involved in a number of investments and is currently a
director of entities in the Formula One group and the holding company of the
Autobar Group, the European vending services business. Prior to joining CVC
Capital Partners, Mr. Clarry worked in the mergers and acquisitions divisions
of Morgan Stanley (2000 to 2003) and Goldman Sachs (1996 to 2000). Mr.
Clarry began his career with JP Morgan Asset Management where he worked
from 1994 to 1996. Mr. Clarry holds a BA in Economics from the University of
Cambridge, Cambridge, the United Kingdom (1993).

Mr. Keith Hamill, aged 60, has served as a Non-Executive Director since
October 2009. He was initially appointed by RBS in 2009. Mr. Hamill has
extensive experience as both an executive and non-executive director of major
international corporations. He is currently the chairman of Horsforth Holdings
Ltd., a privately held investment holding company for a number of leisure
businesses, and Gladedale Limited (since February 2013). He is also currently a
non-executive director on the board of a number of other companies including
easyJet plc (since 2009) and Max Property Group plc (since 2010), both of
which are listed on the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Hamill’s prior experience
also includes being chairman of inter-dealer broker Tullett Prebon plc (2006 to
2013), stockbroker Collins Stewart plc (2000 to 2006) and software developer
Alterian plc (2000 to 2011), all of which were listed on the London Stock
Exchange, and chairman of Endell Group Holdings Limited (parent company
of Travelodge Hotels Limited) (2003 to 2012), and insurance broker Heath
Lambert Limited (2009 to 2011) and HGL Holdings Limited (2005 to 2011).
He was also previously a non-executive director of the distribution business
Electrocopments plc (1999 to 2008), which was listed on the London Stock
Exchange, and publisher and printer Cadmus Communications Inc. (2002 to
2007), which was listed on NASDAQ. He was chief financial officer of Forte plc
(1993 to 1996), WH Smith plc (1996 to 2000) and the company which was then
named United Distillers International Limited (1990 to 1993), and a director of
financial control at Guinness plc (1988 to 1991). Mr. Hamill was also a partner
at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (1986 to 1988). Mr. Hamill holds a BA in Politics
from the University of Nottingham, Nottingham, the United Kingdom (1974), is
a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants, England and Wales and was
previously Chairman of the Board of the University of Nottingham.
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Mr. Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy), aged 60, has served as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company since May 26, 2011. He has served as a non-
executive director of the consolidated group since October 2007. Mr. McLain
is a cofounder, and serves on the board, of CVC Capital Partners (formerly a
subsidiary of Citigroup known as Citicorp Venture Capital), from which he
retired as managing partner in December 2012. Mr. McLain joined Citicorp
Venture Capital in 1988, and in 1993 participated along with fellow managers
in the acquisition of Citicorp Venture Capital from Citigroup and the founding
of CVC Capital Partners. Since founding CVC Capital Partners he has been
involved in and held a number of directorships including within the Dorna
Sports Group (1998 to 2006), Rapala VMC OYJ (1998 to 2005), Punch Taverns
Plc (formerly known as Punch Group Limited) (1999 to 2002), Spirit Group
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Spirit Amber Holdings) (2003 to 2006),
and Kappa Holding BV (1998 to 2000). He is currently a director of Formula
One, the Colomer Group and the Lecta Group. Prior to joining Citicorp Venture
Capital, Mr. McLain worked for Citicorp’s investment management (1986 to
1987) and mezzanine finance (1987 to 1988) groups. Mr. McLain holds a BA
in Public Policy and Psychology from Duke University, Durham, North Carolina,
USA, where he graduated in 1976, and an MBA in Finance and Marketing from
UCLA, Los Angeles, California, USA (1981). He serves on the Board of Visitors
for both the Sanford School of Public Policy at Duke University and the UCLA
Anderson School of Management.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells, aged 62, has served as an Independent Non-
Executive Director since May 2011. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Swire Properties Limited, a leading developer, owner and operator of
mixed use, principally commercial properties in Hong Kong and the PRC, and
of China Foods Limited, a company engaged in food and beverage processing
and distribution, both of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Etchells has served as an advisor to Cassia
Investments Limited, a private equity firm, since November 2012. Mr. Etchells
has also held various positions at The Coca-Cola Company (1998 to 2010),
including deputy president of Coca-Cola Pacific (2007 to 2010) and president
of Coca-Cola China (2002 to 2007). Prior to joining The Coca-Cola Company,
Mr. Etchells held various positions at the Swire Group (1976 to 1998), including
managing director of Swire Beverages (1995 to 1998), general manager of the
Industries Division of Swire Pacific (1989 to 1995) and finance manager of the
Industries Division of Swire Pacific (1981 to 1989). Mr. Etchells holds a BA in
Political Studies from the University of Leeds, Leeds, the United Kingdom (1971)
and is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Miguel Kai Kwun Ko, aged 60, has served as an Independent Non-
Executive Director since May 2011. Mr. Ko has held various executive and non-
executive positions in international hotel companies and other corporations
in Asia. He is currently non-executive chairman of Starwood Hotels & Resorts,
Asia-Pacific, from which he retired as President, Asia-Pacific in 2012 after
working with Starwood Hotels & Resorts since 2000. Mr. Ko currently holds
non-executive directorships in Delta Topco Limited (a privately held holding
company for Formula One PLC) and Changi Airport Group, which he joined
in 2012 and 2010, respectively. Prior to joining Starwood Hotels & Resorts,
Mr. Ko held the position of deputy chairman and chief executive officer at
City E-Solutions (formerly known as CDL Hotels) (2000), various positions
including president at Pepsi-Cola International for Asia Pacific (1992 to 1999)
and various positions at ITT Sheraton Corporation (1979 to 1992). Mr. Ko has
also previously held various executive and non-executive directorships with
Millennium and Copthorne plc UK, Amarin Plaza, Thailand, City e-Solutions
Hong Kong (formerly known as CDL Hotels), Serm Suk Company, Thailand,
Royal Orchid Hotel (Thailand) Public Company Ltd and Civil Aviation Authority,
Singapore. Mr. Ko holds a BA in Economics from the University of Massachusetts
(1975) and a MBA from Suffolk University, Boston, Massachusetts, USA (1979).
He also qualified as a Certified Public Accountant in New Hampshire in 1982,
though does not currently practice.

Ms. Ying Yeh, aged 64, has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director
since May 2011. Ms. Yeh has extensive experience as an executive and a non-
executive director of major international corporations. She was the chairman
of Nalco Greater China Region until June 2011. Nalco is one of the world’s
largest sustainability service companies. Ms. Yeh currently holds non-executive
directorships at ABB Ltd (a company listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, the stock
exchanges in Stockholm (NASDAQ OMX Stockholm) and New York (NYSE)),
AB Volvo (a company listed on the OMX Nordic Exchange, Stockholm) and
InterContinental Hotels Group plc (a company listed on the main board of the
London Stock Exchange). Prior to joining Nalco, Ms. Yeh worked in various Asian
divisions of Eastman Kodak (1997 to 2009) and also held various positions with
the United States Government, Foreign Service (1982 to 1997). Ms. Yeh holds
a BA in Literature and International Relations from National Taiwan University,
Taiwan (1967).
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Directors and Senior Management EZERSREERE

Changes in Information of Directors EEEHED

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) (1) of the Listing Rules, please note the following ~ #R#EEWRAE1351B)) Ik - AAFET
changes in information concerning certain Directors of the Company that have ~ EBR20124 f #i# & T 8 & 3 4 (V& K
occurred subsequent to the publication of the Company’s 2012 interim report: ~ Z#EMT :

e Mr. Keith Hamill, a Non-Executive Director of the Company, was appointed ~ ® A< 2 & 3F #1T E 3 Keith Hamill S5 £ 7R

chairman of Gladedale Limited in February 2013 and retired as chairman 201352 AEZEE5 Gladedale Limited &
of Tullett Prebon plc in March 2013. & > W A20135 3 A BHE Tullett Prebon
plc EFE—H; o

e Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells, an Independent Non-Executive Director of the ~ © A2 B 38 M 3F # 1T & % Paul Kenneth

Company, has served as an advisor to Cassia Investments Limited, a private Etchells 6 4 B2012F 11 A BIEEFLE
equity firm, since November 2012. R HEIRE A T Cassia Investments Limited
HORERT ©

e Mr. Miguel Kai Kwun Ko, an Independent Non-Executive Director of the ¢ ARXBTBUIFHTESSHHLER

Company, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of 20133 A EZEAFIEERER D
Surbana Consultant International Pte Ltd., a Singapore based housing &) Surbana Consultant International Pte
construction company, in March 2013. Ltd. BB IEBITES ©

Senior Management BREEE

Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management of our ~EREERBEEXMNWEBNAEER - T
business. The following table sets out certain information concerning our senior ~ “ESIEHESRERBENETER

management:

"E Fie B

Name Age Position

Timothy Charles Parker 57 Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
HITES  TERTHES

Kyle Francis Gendreau 43 Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
HTEERIEES

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala 53 Executive Director and President, Asia-Pacific and Middle East
HITESREARPRIBEREE

Tom Korbas 61 President, Americas
ENEEE

Fabio Rugarli 48 President, Europe
BUNEREE

John Henry Sullivan (Jack) 60 President, Latin America
T EMNERR

Robert Thomas Zielinski 56 Chief Supply Officer
PIRMEFEAR B

Paola Tiziana Brunazzi 50 Vice President, Global Design and Development
EHERTRARERR

Andrew David Wells 52 Chief Information Officer
EfiBE

John Bayard Livingston 45 Vice President, General Counsel and Joint Company Secretary

BRE - REEERREELAUE
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Mr. Tom Korbas is the President of the Company’s Americas division and is
responsible for the overall management and development of the Company’s
business in the Americas. Mr. Korbas joined the Company in 1993. His previous
positions with the Company include: Vice President/General Manager of the
Company’s US wholesale business (2000 to 2004), Vice President of Sales
and Operations (1998 to 2000) and Senior Vice President of Soft-Side and
Casual Bags (1997 to 1998). Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Korbas was vice
president of operations (1986 to 1997), director of manufacturing operations,
and engineering manager for American Tourister. Mr. Korbas holds a BS in
Industrial Engineering from Northeastern University, Boston, Massachusetts, USA
(1973) and an MBA from Babson College, Wellesley, Massachusetts, USA (1976).

Mr. Fabio Rugarli is the President of the Company’s European division and
is responsible for the overall management and development of the Company’s
business in Europe. Mr. Rugarli joined the Company in 1989. His previous
positions with the Company include General Manager for Samsonite Italy (2002
to 2009) and Marketing and Sales Director for the luggage division in Italy
(1996 to 2001). Mr. Rugarli holds a degree in Business Administration from the
University Bocconi, Milan, Italy (1988).

Mr. John Henry Sullivan (Jack) is the President of the Company’s Latin
America division and is responsible for the overall management and development
of the Company’s business in Latin America. Mr. Sullivan joined the Company
in 1985, left in 1990 and rejoined in 1994. His previous positions within the
Company include: Vice President for the Mexico division and Vice President and
General Manager for the Latin America division of the Company. In 1990 and
1991 he was marketing director for the Monroe division at Tenneco Automotive.
Before rejoining the Company, he was with Frito-Lay International, the snack
food division of PepsiCo where he was vice president for marketing and sales
of the Puerto Rican division and president of the Caribbean division. Prior
to joining the Company in 1985, Mr. Sullivan was manager of international
affiliates at General Electric Consumer Electronics, and assistant sales manager,
marketing manager and franchise manager for southern Spain for Pepsi-Cola
International. He holds a BA in Chemistry from Williams College, Williamstown,
Massachusetts, USA (1974) and a MBA (Marketing) from Amos Tuck School at
Dartmouth College, Hanover, New Hampshire, USA (1978).
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Mr. Robert Thomas Zielinski is the Company’s Chief Supply Officer and
is responsible for the Company’s supply chain and the development of key
supplier partnerships. Mr. Zielinski joined the Company in 1992 and his previous
positions with the Company include: Vice President for Sourcing (2000 to 2009),
Director for Planning and Scheduling (1997 to 2000) and Senior Manager of
Forecasting (1994 to 1997). Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zielinski held
various production and distribution positions at Health-Tex Inc between 1977
and 1992. Mr. Zielinski holds a BA in Political Science from Providence College,
Providence, Rhode Island, USA (1979).

Ms. Paola Tiziana Brunazzi is the Company’s Vice President for Global Design
and Development, a position she has held since 2009. Ms. Brunazzi joined the
Company in 2006 as a project manager for the Lacoste brands. Ms. Brunazzi
has extensive experience in the luxury brands industry having worked as senior
designer, project manager and director of the design office at various fashion
houses including Tod’s S.p.A. (2004 to 2006), Dolce & Gabbana S.p.A. (2001
t0 2004), Sosir S.p.A. (Trussardi) (1999 to 2001), Coccinelle (1999), Sosir S.p.A.
(Trussardi) (1996 to 1999) and as a consultant with Fontana S.r.l. (1991 to 1996).
Ms. Brunazzi holds a masters degree in Fashion Design from Domus Academy,
Milan, Italy (1984).

Mr. Andrew David Wells is the Company’s Chief Information Officer and is
responsible for developing, structuring and implementing the Company’s global
information technology strategy and outsourced IT shared services. Mr. Wells
joined the Company in March 2009. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wells
was global chief information officer and senior vice president at Shire plc, a FTSE
100 pharmaceutical company (2000 to 2008), supply chain director for Bristol
Myers Squibb Central & Eastern Europe Division (1996 to 1999) and manager
of Information Services International at Mars (1986 to 1996). Mr. Wells holds
a M Eng (Masters of Engineering) from Cambridge University, Cambridge, the
United Kingdom (1994).
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Mr. John Bayard Livingston is Vice President, General Counsel and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Livingston is responsible for all of the
Company’s legal matters worldwide and provides counsel to senior management
and the Directors on matters of corporate governance. Mr. Livingston joined
the Company in July 2006 and was Vice President and General Counsel for
the Company’s Americas division until September 2009 when he became Vice
President and General Counsel of the Company. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Livingston was in-house counsel (2002 to 2006) at Reebok International
Ltd. and was an associate in the corporate department of Ropes & Gray (1995
t0 2002). Mr. Livingston holds a BA in Political Science from Colgate University,
Hamilton, New York, USA (1989), and a J.D. from Boston College Law School,
Newton, Massachusetts, USA (1994).

Company Secretary and Authorized Representative
Mr. John Bayard Livingston and Ms. Chow Yuk Yin Ivy are the Company’s joint
company secretaries while Mr. Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala and Ms. Chow
are the Company’s authorized representatives (pursuant to the Listing Rules).
Ms. Chow was appointed as a joint company secretary and an authorized
representative of the Company with effect from March 18, 2013.

During 2012, Ms. Lo Wun Sei served as a joint company secretary and an
authorized representative of the Company from January 1, 2012 until her
resignation on July 4, 2012. Ms. Lau Pik Lee served as a joint company secretary
and an authorized representative of the Company from July 4, 2012 through
December 31, 2012.

During 2012, the Joint Company Secretaries complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules regarding professional training. Ms. Lau resigned as the joint
company secretary and authorized representative on March 18, 2013.

Relationships between Directors and Senior Managers
None of the Directors or Senior Managers is related to any other Director or
Senior Manager.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2012.

Principal Activities

Samsonite International S.A. (together with its consolidated subsidiaries, the
“Company”) is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, sourcing and
distribution of luggage, business and computer bags, outdoor and casual bags,
and travel accessories throughout the world, primarily under the Samsonite®,
American Tourister®, High Sierra® and Hartmann® brand names and other owned
and licensed brand names. The Company sells its products through a variety of
wholesale distribution channels and through its company operated retail stores.
The principal luggage wholesale distribution customers of the Company are
department and specialty retail stores, mass merchants, catalog showrooms
and warehouse clubs. The Company sells its products in Asia, Europe, North
America and Latin America.

Results and Distributions to Shareholders
The results of the Company are set out in the consolidated financial statements
on pages 86 to 171 of this Annual Report.

The Board recommends that a cash distribution in the amount of US$0.02665
per share (the “Distribution”) be made to the Company’s shareholders
from its ad hoc distributable reserve. The payment shall be made in US
dollars, except that payment to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members in Hong Kong shall be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The
relevant exchange rate shall be the opening buying rate of Hong Kong
dollars to US dollars as announced by the Hong Kong Association of Banks
(www.hkab.org.hk) on the day of the approval of the Distribution.

The Distribution will be subject to approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company. For determining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from June 4, 2013 to June 6, 2013, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. The record date to determine which
shareholders will be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM will be
June 6, 2013. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on June 3, 2013.

*  For identification purposes only
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Subject to the shareholders approving the recommended Distribution at the
forthcoming AGM, such Distribution will be payable on or about July 12, 2013
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on June 20,
2013. To determine eligibility for the Distribution, the register of members will
be closed from June 18, 2013 to June 20, 2013, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be entitled to
receive the Distribution, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch Share Registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on June 17, 2013.

The Distribution will not be subject to withholding tax under Luxembourg laws.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Company’s performance by operating segment for the year
ended December 31, 2012 is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the Company’s reserves during the year ended
December 31, 2012 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity on pages 90 and 91 of this Annual Report and in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At December 31, 2012, reserves available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to approximately US$2.3 billion as shown in the statutory financial
statements of Samsonite International S.A. and calculated in accordance with
the Company'’s Articles of Incorporation.

Charitable Donations
Donations made for charitable and other purposes by the Company during the
year ended December 31, 2012 amounted to US$0.1 million.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company during the year ended December 31, 2012 are set out in note 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at December 31, 2012 are
set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

*  For identification purposes only
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Bank Loans
As at December 31, 2012, the Company had bank loans of approximately
US$35.4 million that were repayable upon demand or within one year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The aggregate percentage of purchases attributable to the Company’s major
suppliers during the year ended December 31, 2012 is as follows:

RITER
AATR2012F12A31BNBRTERN S
354BFBERL  BRERSIAN—FREE -

FTEERREERS
AT EFEHREFELEZ2012F12831
FLEEERGRBE-TOLAT :

Purchases

The largest supplier B AfERERE
Five largest suppliers combined A ALERE & HFEE

10.8%
35.2%

The percentage of the Company’s net sales that were attributable to the
Company’s five largest customers was less than 30% during the year ended
December 31, 2012.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their associates, or
any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had a beneficial interest in the
Company'’s five largest suppliers and customers.

Five Year Financial Information
A summary of the results, assets, and liabilities of the Company for the last five
fiscal years is set out on page 172 of this Annual Report.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation or the laws of the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg.

Purchase, Sale, or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the period from the Listing
Date to December 31, 2012.

Share Capital
Details of any movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

Samsonite International S.A.
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Directors
As at December 31, 2012 and up to the date of this Annual Report, the
composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors
Timothy Charles Parker

Kyle Francis Gendreau
Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala

Non-Executive Directors
Nicholas James Clarry

Keith Hamill

Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Paul Kenneth Etchells

Miguel Kai Kwun Ko

Ying Yeh

Biographical details of the directors of the Company as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 62 to 68 of this Annual Report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the 2013 AGM has or
is proposed to have a service contract that is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Except as disclosed in respect of Mr. Ramesh Tainwala’s interests in certain of
the Company’s continuing connected transactions on pages 79 to 83, none
of the directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance subsisted during or at the end of the year to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares

As at December 31, 2012, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

1. Long position in the shares of the Company

EERRSTHASREG R4EEH K
BZEERRE

R2012F 128318 ARAEERBSIT
BABRAATRHEAEEE (RHESRE
ERp (TBSRBEHRM]) EXVBZE
) ZROREBERDPHEERERSRE
ERPIEXVEBE 7RSO BMERATR
BERBERGARARAZERRAR (B
FEREE S REBERH 2 BRERIGRTE ]
EWEEIREREZ2ERIAXR) » HAE
RARDBREEF RAERAIEXVIBE
352 EF 2 B R MRS TR AIMEE10
B2 A EHBITAZERETESR B 2EZ
ZEFR) (MEEF]) ERTHERQAR
EBBAEXRZFAERAAZERRARN
T

1. RARRABRBZIFAE

R2012F 12 B3 AR ENEBRRIRGEE. IERENBAE DL

EEpnE ERME Number of ordinary shares held at Approximate shareholding

Name of Director Nature of Interest December 31, 20122 %

Timothy Charles Parker Beneficial owner 56,285,480 (L) 4.0
BEREEA

Kyle Francis Gendreau Beneficial owner 5,409,648 (L) 0.38
BEREEA

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala Beneficial owner 10,192,034 (L) 0.72
BEREEA

Keith Hamill Beneficial owner 193,745 (L) 0.01
BEREEA

Samsonite International S.A.
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2. Interests in the shares of associated corporations 2. RHEEE B R DR S

2012612831 BFENEE TERENBAE D

L@ AR BRERHEE: Approximate
EEHE Name of Associated EEMtE Number of ordinary shares held shareholding
Name of Director Corporation Nature of Interest at December 31, 20122 %
Ramesh Dungarmal Samsonite South Beneficial owner and 4,552,020 (L) 12.83
Tainwala Asia Private interest in a controlled
Limited® corporation
BEEEAEAR
REEHEE NS
Samsonite Middle Interest in a controlled 8 (L) 40.00
East FZCOc corporation

REEHEE RS

Notes Fff&F

a

b

(L) represents long position.

L) RRFRE -

This amount includes 1,807,020 shares held by Mr. Tainwala as the beneficial owner, 556,000 shares held by Tainwala Holdings Private Limited and
2,189,000 shares held by Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited, of which Mr. Tainwala holds 33.96% of the issued share capital of Tainwala Holdings
Private Limited while Mr. Tainwala’s wife holds 79.08% of the issued share capital of Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited and therefore, Mr. Tainwala is
deemed to be interested in the entire equity interest in Samsonite South Asia Private Limited held by Tainwala Holdings Private Limited and Periwinkle
Fashions Private Limited. 60% of the equity interest in Samsonite South Asia Private Limited is held by the Company.

FZHEEEEREE A Tanwala KEFEM1,807,020 817 ~ Tainwala Holdings Private Limited 354 #9556,000888% 3 % Periwinkle Fashions
Private Limited 8#92,189,0008% 884 * HH Tainwala 5£4358 Tainwala Holdings Private Limited 33.96%MIE 4TS » M Tainwala %4
HIZF B8 Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited 79.08% B ATIRA - EIL » Tainwala EEWRIEHES Tainwala Holdings Private Limited &
Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited 5 Samsonite South Asia Private Limited P RR#& - #y2ZBfEZE © Samsonite South Asia Private Limited 60%#Y
RIEHADRRFE °

Mr. Tainwala holds 100% of the equity interest in Periwinkle Holdings Limited and therefore Mr. Tainwala is deemed to be interested in the entire
40% equity interest in Samsonite Middle East FZCO held by Periwinkle Holdings Limited. The remaining equity interest (60%) in Samsonite Middle
East FZCO is held by the Company.

Tainwala ZE4 358 Periwinkle Holdings Limited ZE8A%# » E it » Tainwala F 4 R1EHES Periwinkle Holdings Limited 7 Samsonite Middle East
FZCO FTi540% MR i) 2 EBREES  Samsonite Middle East FZCO 82T BR#E(60%) A A B)#%H o

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2012, none of the directors or R EXFrIREE SN 201256128318
chief executives of the Company have or are deemed to have interests or ~ AQABREERBSTHASBMERIFRIER
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company ~ AQ AR EEMEE LR (RESFRBEF
and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the  BISEXVE =z E ) 2% - HERHHE
SFO) which were notifiable to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong  #E&E F A EARIEE 5 R B E & H 5 XV
Kong Limited pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including  EBE7RSDMEMEARANTAREBHAR
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under SFIERATRZEZRIAR (BEREES
such provisions of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to be maintained ~ REIE KRG 2 BRAKUE S EFERIRER
by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or as otherwise ~BZEZERKXR ») RATARA AREFH
notifiable to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited %Rk B & EHIEXVIBEIS2EEFE 2 BT
pursuant to the Model Code. MPERIBEEETFRESITHERARAREE
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
the Shares and Underlying Shares

As at December 31, 2012, so far as the directors are aware, the following
shareholders (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company)
had 5% or more beneficial interests or short positions in the issued shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register required
to be maintained by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

1. Long and short position in the shares of the Company

EFERERBEG RAERRGZESR
RE

2012128318 BEEMA > UTH
R(TEEALAESHIRSTHAR) B
RATEBITROREERSPEEBETA
RATIRERBFREBERGIEXVEBE336
IFEE2ETMNS% R LNESESR

e
R

1. RERBABRBZHFARKE

BRREES

Name of Shareholder

o Ea e

Nature of Interest

2012512831 AFEH
ZERRDHAE
Number of

ordinary shares held at
December 31, 20122

1R RRAERIBEAD
Aot
Approximate
shareholding %

CVC Capital Partners SICAV-FIS S.A. Interest in a controlled corporation 228,281,766 (L)® 16.22
REEGEE NS

CVC Capital Partners 2012 Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 228,281,766 (L)° 16.22
REZEGEE NS

CVC MMXII Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 228,281,766 (L)® 16.22
REEHEE NS

CVC Portfolio Holdings Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 228,281,766 (L)® 16.22
REEFEE R

CVC Group Holdings L.P. Interest in a controlled corporation 228,281,766 (L)® 16.22
REEFEE R

CVC Capital Partners Finance Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 228,281,766 (L)° 16.22
REEFEE R

CVC Capital Partners Advisory Company Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 228,281,766 (L)® 16.22
REEFEE R

CVC European Equity Tandem GP Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 87,459,682 (L) 6.22
REEFEE R

CVC European Equity IV (CDE) Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 85,229,638 (L) 6.06
REEFEERNER

The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc Beneficial owner 122,431,784 (L) 8.70

BB ERRITEEER AT BEEEEA

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc Beneficial owner 122,431,784 (L) 8.70

BRI E RIRIT BEEEEA

Wellington Management Company, LLP Investment manager 112,246,196 (L) 7.98
REEBA

JP Morgan Chase & Co. Custodian Corporation/ 110,263,219 (P) 7.84
Approved lending agent
FAEEE EREHREA

JP Morgan Chase & Co. Investment manager 2,695,800 (L) 0.19
REEEA

JP Morgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner 16,841 (L) 0.00
BEEEEA

Morgan Stanley Interest in a controlled corporation 102,411,428 (L) 7.28

EEAR =3I REEFEE R

Morgan Stanley Interest in a controlled corporation 2,282,623 (S) 0.16

EEAR =3 FI REEFEE R R

Notes Hff&F

(L) represents long position. (S) represents short position. (P) represents lending pool.

(L) RRFAE () RRKR ° (P) RRAMBHRD -
Such 228,281,766 shares belong to the same batches of shares.

7%228,281,766 R RADBHE —HEARD -

122,431,784 shares are held directly by The Royal Bank of Scotland plc which is controlled by The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc.
122,431,784 BB T HEEHE RIRTEBBR A AEHNEEHERBITHEERS °
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2012, so far as the directors are
aware, no other persons (except the directors or chief executives) or corporations
had 5% or more interests or short positions in shares and underlying shares of
the Company which were recorded in the register required to be maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

Connected Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions

Set out below is information in relation to the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Company and required under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules to be disclosed in the Company’s annual report:

a) Transactions between Samsonite India and associates of
Mr. Ramesh Tainwala

Samsonite South Asia Private Limited (“Samsonite India”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into transactions with associates of Mr.
Ramesh Tainwala, a director of the Company, and certain members of his family
(the “Tainwala Group”) which relate to the operation of Samsonite India in the
ordinary and usual course of its business. Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and the Tainwala
Group are also substantial shareholders in Samsonite India.

Manufacturing agreement with Abhishri

On January 3, 2009, Samsonite India entered into a memorandum of
understanding with Abhishri Packaging Private Limited (“Abhishri”), a company
controlled by certain members of the Tainwala Group. Under this memorandum
of understanding, Abhishri purchases certain raw materials and components
from Samsonite India and manufactures hard-side luggage products on behalf of
Samsonite India. The price paid by Abhishri to Samsonite India for raw materials
and components is based on the current market price paid by Samsonite India,
and the price paid by Samsonite India for products manufactured by Abhishri is
determined based on Samsonite India’s current cost strategy, which also reflects
the cost of raw materials. The mark-up on costs charged by Abhishri for finished
products is eight percent on hard-side shells and ten percent on assembly of
luggage. The pricing under the memorandum of understanding is on normal
commercial terms as the mark-up charged by Abhishri is comparable to (or better
to the Company than) that charged by certain other third party manufacturers
who are not connected persons under agreements with Samsonite India.

Dealership agreement with Bagzone

On November 16, 2009, Samsonite India entered into a memorandum of
understanding with Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited (“Bagzone”), a company
controlled by certain members of the Tainwala Group. Under this memorandum
of understanding, Bagzone was appointed as a preferred dealer of Samsonite
and American Tourister products in India, which as of December 31, 2012 are

BREXFTHEERS > KB20129F128318 >
EZWFHNBEMEMAL (ESIEST
BAERIN) SCEBRAQTRG RIBER
B AHREEERARND ARER S RS GRA)
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sold in 87 exclusive Samsonite retail outlets operated by Bagzone. Samsonite
India directly rents nine of these outlets and is reimbursed by Bagzone for the
associated rental costs. The other 78 outlets are directly rented by Bagzone
who bears the costs of such rentals. Bagzone pays all operating costs of these
87 retail outlets. Bagzone receives a discount of 45 percent on the retail price
for products it purchases from Samsonite India and sells through the exclusive
Samsonite outlets it operates. Under a side letter between Samsonite India
and Bagzone dated January 1, 2011, the parties have agreed that the discount
available to Bagzone will be reviewed and amended as necessary from time to
time to ensure that the maximum profit margin available to Bagzone on retail
sales through exclusive outlets that it operates shall not exceed three percent of
Bagzone’s net sales. These transactions are on normal commercial terms as the
profit margin available to Bagzone is within a range that is reasonably consistent
with that made by other third party dealers in India to whom Samsonite India
sells products.

In addition to its exclusive Samsonite outlets, Bagzone purchases products
from Samsonite India to sell in its own multi brand outlet stores. For these
purchases Bagzone receives a discount of 45 percent on the retail price. These
purchases are on normal commercial terms as the discount available to Bagzone
is comparable to that offered to other third party dealers.

Dealership agreement with Samtain

On October 25, 1999, Samsonite India entered into a dealership agreement with
Samtain Sales Limited (“Samtain”), a company controlled by certain members of
the Tainwala Group. Under this agreement, Samtain was appointed as a dealer
of Samsonite products in India. On April 1, 2006, Samsonite India and Samtain
entered into a memorandum of understanding under which Samsonite India
agreed to acquire retail premises to be operated as exclusive Samsonite outlets
by Samtain. As of December 31, 2012, a total of two premises had been rented
by Samsonite India for this purpose. Samsonite India pays all rental costs for
these premises. Samtain pays all rental costs for a further two retail outlets.
Samtain pays all operating costs of these four retail outlets. Under a side letter
between Samsonite India and Samtain dated January 1, 2011, the parties have
agreed that the discount on maximum retail price at which Samtain purchases
products from Samsonite India will be reviewed and amended as necessary from
time to time to ensure that the maximum profit margin available to Samtain
on retail sales through exclusive outlets that it operates shall not exceed three
percent of net sales. These transactions are on normal commercial terms as the
profit margin available to Samtain is within a range that is reasonably consistent
with that made by other third party dealers in India to whom Samsonite India
sells products.
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Shop-in shop supply agreement with Planet Retail

With effect from April 10, 2008, Samsonite India entered into a supply agreement
with Planet Retail Holding Private Limited (“Planet Retail "), a company in which
the family of Ramesh Tainwala acquired a 49 percent interest on August 1,
2010. Under this agreement, Samsonite India supplies Samsonite and American
Tourister products to Planet Retail for sale in shop-in-shop concessions at its
Debenhams department stores. The discount available to Planet Retail under
the agreement is 45 percent of the retail price. This agreement is on normal
commercial terms as the discount available to Planet Retail is comparable to
that available to other third party dealers and the agreement was negotiated
with Planet Retail over two years before it became a connected person of
Samsonite India.

License and lease agreements with members of

the Tainwala Group

Samsonite India has entered into seven lease or license agreements for company
accommodation and office premises with members of the Tainwala Group.
These agreements are on normal commercial terms and the rent, license fees
and administrative charges payable thereunder are within the reasonable range
of the then prevailing market rates at the date of execution.

Aggregate value of transactions between Samsonite India and

the Tainwala Group

The aggregate value of payments made by Samsonite India to the Tainwala
Group under all transactions described above for the year ended December
31, 2012 was approximately US$5.6 million. The annual caps for the maximum
aggregate amount payable by the Company under transactions with the
Tainwala Group for the years ending December 31, 2012 and December 31,
2013 have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$15.7
million and US$20.2 million, respectively.

The aggregate value of payments made by the Tainwala Group to Samsonite
India under all transactions described above for the year ended December 31,
2012 was approximately US$11.3 million. The annual caps for the maximum
aggregate amount payable to the Company under transactions with the
Tainwala Group for the years ending December 31, 2012 and December 31,
2013 have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$23.3
million and US$32.8 million, respectively.
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b) Transactions between Samsonite Middle East and the rest of the Company

Samsonite Middle East FZCO (“Samsonite Middle East”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, is held 40 percent by Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and
members of the Tainwala Group. Because Mr. Ramesh Tainwala: (i) as a director
of the Company, is a connected person of the Company; and (ii) is entitled to
control the exercise of ten percent or more of the voting power in Samsonite
Middle East, Samsonite Middle East is also a connected person of the Company
under Rule 14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules.

With effect from June 16, 2011 (the “Listing Date"”), Samsonite Middle East
entered into a framework agreement with the Company (the “Middle East
Framework Agreement”) covering all transactions with other subsidiaries of
the Company in the ordinary and usual course of the Company’s business
including the purchase by Samsonite Middle East of finished products from
other subsidiaries of the Company, receipt and payment by Samsonite Middle
East of cross-charges and fees in relation to the sharing of global marketing,
promotion, product development and personnel costs between subsidiaries of
the Company and the payment by Samsonite Middle East of royalties in respect
of intellectual property rights licensed to Samsonite Middle East.

The Middle East Framework Agreement stipulates that all transactions between
Samsonite Middle East and the rest of the subsidiaries of the Company must be
on normal commercial terms consistent with those in intra-company transactions
between other subsidiaries of the Company and otherwise in compliance with all
applicable provisions of the Listing Rules. The Middle East Framework Agreement
will expire on December 31, 2013 and is automatically renewable for further
periods of no more than three years, subject to compliance with the then
applicable provisions of the Listing Rules, unless it is terminated earlier by either
party giving three months’ prior written notice.

The aggregate value of payments made by Samsonite Middle East to other
subsidiaries of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2012 was
approximately US$4.8 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate
amount payable by Samsonite Middle East to the rest of the subsidiaries of the
Company for the years ending December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013
have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$5.5 million
and US$6.4 million, respectively.

The aggregate value of payments made to Samsonite Middle East by the rest
of the subsidiaries of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2012 was
approximately US$1.6 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate
amount payable to Samsonite Middle East by the rest of the subsidiaries of the
Company for the years ending December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013
have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$2.3 million
and US$3.0 million, respectively.
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c) Transactions between Samsonite India and the rest of the Company

Samsonite India, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is held 40
percent by Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and members of the Tainwala Group. Because
Mr. Ramesh Tainwala: (i) as a director of the Company, is a connected person of
the Company; and (ii) is entitled to control the exercise of ten percent or more
of the voting power in Samsonite India, Samsonite India is also a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules.

With effect from the Listing Date, Samsonite India entered into a framework
agreement with the Company (the “India Framework Agreement”) covering
all transactions with other entities within the Company in the ordinary and
usual course of the Company’s business including the purchase by Samsonite
India of raw materials, components, spare parts, finished products and capital
assets from other subsidiaries of the Company, the sale of finished products by
Samsonite India to other entities within the Company, payment by Samsonite
India of cross-charges and fees in relation to the sharing of global marketing,
promotion and product development costs between entities within the Company
and the payment by Samsonite India of royalties in respect of intellectual
property rights licensed to Samsonite India.

The India Framework Agreement stipulates that all transactions between
Samsonite India and the rest of the Company must be on normal commercial
terms consistent with those in intra-company transactions between other
subsidiaries of the Company and otherwise in compliance with all relevant
provisions of the Listing Rules. The India Framework Agreement will expire on
December 31, 2013 and is automatically renewable for further periods of no
more than three years, subject to compliance with the then applicable provisions
of the Listing Rules, unless it is terminated earlier by either party giving three
months’ prior written notice.

The aggregate value of payments made by Samsonite India to the rest of the
Company from for the year ended December 31, 2012 was approximately
US$7.5 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable
by Samsonite India to the rest of the Company for the years ending December
31, 2012 and December 31, 2013 have been set pursuant to the requirement
of the Listing Rules at US$11.1 million and US$14.5 million, respectively.

The aggregate value of payments made to Samsonite India by the rest of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2012 was approximately US$23.6
million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable to
Samsonite India by the rest of the Company for the years ending December
31, 2012 and December 31, 2013 have been set pursuant to the requirement
of the Listing Rules at US$42.6 million and US$54.9 million, respectively.
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The above continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company, who have confirmed
that these transactions were entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and

(0) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

In addition, the Auditor of the Company was engaged to provide a limited
assurance report on the Company’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”. The auditor has issued its unqualified Limited Assurance Report
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Company in pages 79 to 83 of the Annual Report
in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s
report has been provided by the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken by the Company
during the year in the ordinary course of business are set out in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements. Other than those transactions disclosed
in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” above, none of
these transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float of more than 25% of the issued
share capital required under the Listing Rules during the period from the Listing
Date to the date of this report.

Auditor

The financial statements were audited by KPMG LLP, who shall retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment, and a resolution to this effect will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Timothy Charles Parker
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, March 18, 2013
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* EEF

The Board of Directors
Samsonite International S.A.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Samsonite
International S.A. and subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
position as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated income statement
and statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management'’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Samsonite International S.A. and subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

KPMe LLP

KPMG LLP
Providence, Rhode Island

March 18, 2013

*  For identification purposes only
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Consolidated Income Statement

makER

BZ12A318LLEE
Year ended December 31,

PE

UFETZS  GREEEHI Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, except per share data Note 2012 2011

HEFE Net sales 7 1,771,726 1,565,147

SHER A Cost of sales (820,721)  (708,199)
ER Gross profit 951,005 856,948
P EER Distribution expenses (466,471)  (410,889)
=513 Marketing expenses (117,211)  (122,822)
— MR RATER General and administrative expenses (121,132)  (113,613)
Hith (BAR) kA Other (expenses) income (4,449) 306

T Operating profit 241,742 209,930

BAFEUR A Finance income 24 1,187 1,247

Bii5E A Finance costs 24 (18,229) (71,879)
FHURER Net finance costs (17,042) (70,632)
BRETSRL AT @A Profit before income tax 25 224,700 139,298

FrsBip X Income tax expense 23 (58,073) (35,680)
FRER Profit for the year 166,627 103,618

IRERE A IR Profit attributable to the equity holders 148,439 86,748

FEHE PR A PR AR A Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 18,188 16,870

FREF Profit for the year 166,627 103,618

BREF Earnings per share

BRERREFET] Basic and diluted earnings per share
(UABRETZ5) (Expressed in US Dollars per share) 16 0.11 0.06

BEMIF AR AR S T SRR — B
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The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mE2ERER
BE1283181LFE
Wis Year ended December 31,
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Note 2012 2011
FREA Profit for the year 166,627 103,618
Hith 2 HEES : Other comprehensive loss:
ERBERERNEEEAEIN Recognition of previously unrecognized
IRIEBIIE deferred tax on defined benefit plans 23 34,899 -
ERREAGEIBEERE Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans 18 (26,829) (12,886)
HeREBEHN AT EE Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges (6,267) 5,401
BINEFSINBE LS (B5E) Foreign currency translation gains/(losses)
for foreign operations 8,134 (15,357)
Hih2EW s (F518) HB NMEH Income tax benefit (expense) on other
Mz (FA%) comprehensive income (loss) items 12,392 (1,586)
Hit2mEas (5518) Other comprehensive income (loss) 22,329 (24,428)
2 HUHBEE Total comprehensive income 188,956 79,190
RSB ARG 2E R REZE Total comprehensive income attributable to
the equity holders 169,982 64,585
FEREREEEERREEE Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests 18,974 14,605
FREEWREEE Total comprehensive income for the year 188,956 79,190

BEF TR AR S IS IR R — 70D o

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RW12A318
Wis December 31,

KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Note 2012 2011
ERENEE Non-Current Assets
M BEKZE - FE Property, plant and equipment, net 9 135,824 127,975
e Goodwill 10(a) 214,356 153,212
HithEFEE B8 Other intangible assets, net 10(b) 671,522 619,438
FERERIEEE Deferred tax assets 23(d) 55,302 14,023
HibhEEREWFIE Other assets and receivables 11(a) 22,793 18,500
FRBEELRE Total non-current assets 1,099,797 933,148
REEE Current Assets
FE Inventories 12 277,516 236,957
FEWR BRFR R ELAth FELUN R IE - JFRE Trade and other receivables, net 13 222,159 171,552
AN REMERE Prepaid expenses and other assets 11(b) 62,293 61,630
ReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 14 151,399 141,259

MENEEHARE Total current assets 713,367 611,398

EEHALE Total assets 1,813,164 1,544,546
EEREE Equity and Liabilities
e Equity:

&N Share capital 15 14,071 14,071

& Reserves 15 1,037,522 904,060
IRAEISE A (LS AEE Total equity attributable to equity holders 1,051,593 918,131
IR R Non-controlling interests 15 34,512 27,069
e AAER Total equity 1,086,105 945,200
FERBEE Non-Current Liabilities
BERRERK Loans and borrowings 17(a) 64 71
EERF Employee benefits 18 68,378 59,725
FTESRMIE Non-derivative financial instruments 15(g) 44,950 29,522
EAERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 23 113,809 120,307
HinB s Other liabilities 6,319 6,252
ERBABELE Total non-current liabilities 233,520 215,877
RENEE Current Liabilities
BRRERK Loans and borrowings 17(b) 32,234 11,696
EEEF Employee benefits 49,977 45,182
FEAS BRAR I EL At PR IR Trade and other payables 21 362,488 286,560
mEBHEAE Current tax liabilities 23(d) 48,840 40,031

mENE SRR Total current liabilities 493,539 383,469

B EHEE Total liabilities 727,059 599,346

En ke EEE Total equity and liabilities 1,813,164 1,544,546

MBEETFRE Net current assets 219,828 227,929

BEEABERABEE Total assets less current liabilities 1,319,625 1,161,077
BEMIF B R AR S B R R — D ° The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.

88 Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2012



Company-Alone Statement of Financial Position

AA T EAR R TR
R128318
Wis December 31,
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Note 2012 2011
ERENEE Non-Current Assets
REB A TNRE Investment in subsidiaries 27 866,682 866,682
HthE = Rk R B 2 Bl e TE Other assets and receivables due from subsidiaries 63,852 104,490
ERENVEELEE Total non-current assets 930,534 971,172
RENEE Current Assets
FEUS T S A B Y BRFA % EL At fE Wz 1E Trade and other receivables due from subsidiaries 5,385 548
AR EMEE Prepaid expenses and other assets 49 =
ReRkReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 765 868
mBEERRE Total current assets 6,199 1,416
EERE Total assets 936,733 972,588
EEREE Equity and Liabilities
s Equity:
A Share capital 15 14,071 14,071
s Reserves 15 903,642 936,532
A58 Total equity 917,713 950,603
REAE Current Liabilities
BERRERK Loans and borrowings 17 (3,096) (3,319)
FERHIE A R W R R B Ath e 7018 Trade and other payables due to subsidiaries 27 21,803 22,085
R R H A EA TR Trade and other payables 313 977
REHEEE Current tax liabilities - 2,242
TENEEHREE Total current liabilities 19,020 21,985
B EH5E Total liabilities 19,020 21,985
ERRkEEEE Total equity and liabilities 936,733 972,588
MENEEFRE Net current liabilities (12,821) (20,569)
EEARRBARE Total assets less current liabilities 917,713 950,603
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERRSEBR

RIPEE
P = Number of
UFETZS  BREEE BRI Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, except number of shares Note shares
HBE20115E12A3181LEE : Year ended December 31, 2011:
ek 20111818 Balance, January 1, 2011 2,221,394,998
FRHEA Profit for the year -
Hit2 e (B18) ¢ Other comprehensive income (loss):
EREEAIFT RIS EERE - BRSL Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans, net of tax 18 =
ReRBENPZ A FERE » NRBE Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax -
IMNESEE KB 18 Foreign currency translation losses -
FREEKE (FE) 25 Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year -
REFANRS » BT AR Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:
KREEZER Share-based compensation -
BEE L RIIRE R Guaranteed return on class B preference shares 15 -
BEEREBIRAERERE Conversion of preference shares to loan notes 6,15 (78,000,000)
Delilah Holdings S.a.r.| B f£3K Contribution of Delilah Holdings S.a.r.I. shares 6, 15 (2,143,394,998)
@ Delilah Holdings S.a.r.l.#Y Issuance of share capital to Delilah Holdings
RSB ARITRAR S.4.r.l. equity holders 6,15 1,286,036,999
RERBERFRTEBER Issuance of ordinary shares upon Global Offering 6, 15 121,100,005
B IRBERRANRT S A Transaction costs associated with Global Offering 6,15 -
ROHEIREAFEEE Change in fair value of put options 15 -
EFERERRKE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests -
HihR 5 Other transactions =
#e4 0 2011F128318 Balance, December 31, 2011 1,407,137,004
BE2012512A3181LFE : Year ended December 31, 2012:
6% 20121818 Balance, January 1, 2012 1,407,137,004
F =R Profit for the year -
Ht 2l (B18) ¢ Other comprehensive income (loss):
EREEAFTEINEEERE - RS Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans, net of tax 18 -
RIBERER N EREBF TN Recognition of previously unrecognized deferred tax
IEFER IR on defined benefit plans 23 -
ReREBEH 2 A TERE - HIRE Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax -
HNEEBE 5 Uk 2 Foreign currency translation gains -
FAZEKE (B5EB) #% Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year -
BEERANRS » BT AR Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:
ROHEIREAFEEE Change in fair value of put options 15 -
mRESEE AEE 2R DK Cash distributions to equity holders 16 -
B FERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests -
2tz 5 Other transactions -
#E64 0 2012128318 Balance, December 31, 2012 1,407,137,004

BEMIF B AR S R IR — DD
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The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.




&

Reserves

REBRF
(REHE1R) RiERE AR
BEEE R E Retained bR ABRE FERER
Class B KEIMBIARA BRE#E earnings Total equity Non-

BA preference Additional Translation HitfE (accumulated  attributable to controlling R
Share capital share reserve paid-in capital reserve  Other reserves deficit) equity holders interest Total equity
22,214 17,490 814,506 4,073 (79,709) (38,366) 740,208 22,644 762,852
= = = = = 86,748 86,748 16,870 103,618
= = = = (12,886) = (12,886) = (12,886)

= = = = 3,815 = 3,815 = 3,815
= = = (13,092) = = (13,092) (2,265) (15,357)

= = = (13,092) (9,071) 86,748 64,585 14,605 79,190

= = 200 = = = 200 = 200

= 6,489 = = = (6,489) = = =

(780) (23,979) (76,230) = = = (100,989) = (100,989)
(21,434) = = = = = (21,434) = (21,434)
12,860 = 8,574 = = = 21,434 = 21,434
1,211 = 224,041 = = = 225,252 = 225,252
= = (8,899) = = = (8,899) = (8,899)

= = = = = (2,226) (2,226) = (2,226)

= = = = = = = (5,390) (5,390)

_ _ _ — - = - (4,790) (4,790)
14,071 = 962,192 (9,019) (88,780) 39,667 918,131 27,069 945,200
14,071 - 962,192 (9,019) (88,780) 39,667 918,131 27,069 945,200
- - - - - 148,439 148,439 18,188 166,627

- - - - (16,390) - (16,390) - (16,390)

- - - - 34,899 - 34,899 - 34,899

- - - - (4,314) - (4,314) - (4,314)

- - - 7,348 - - 7,348 786 8,134

- - - 7,348 14,195 148,439 169,982 18,974 188,956

- - - - - (6,520) (6,520) - (6,520)

- - - - - (30,000) (30,000) - (30,000)

- - - - - - - (6,479) (6,479)

- - - - - - - (5,052) (5,052)
14,071 - 962,192 (1,671) (74,585) 151,586 1,051,593 34,512 1,086,105
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEEeRER
BE12A318LFE
Wis Year ended December 31,
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Note 2012 2011
RETERHERE ¢ Cash flows from operating activities:
FR@A Profit for the year 166,627 103,618
B TR DA R Rl B S S E B T 1S Adjustments to reconcile profit to
BEFERHER net cash generated from operating activities:
HERLEEERS » F5 Gain on sale and disposal of assets, net (211) (252)
e Depreciation 9 31,770 30,158
B EE#H Amortization of intangible assets 10 8,491 8,333
RIRRRE Provision for doubtful accounts 1,861 806
HEBEAEBERE Reversal of provision for restructuring activities - (877)
ROLHE A EEE Change in fair value of put options 8,908 8,644
EFRRAR SRR EIMNE EFE Net change in defined benefit pension plan 18 (17,260) (29,989)
FREF SR Non-cash interest expense - 32,806
FESREE R Non-cash share-based compensation - 200
FriSBiBE Income tax expense 23 58,073 35,680
258,259 189,127
ReEBERBERY Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(BRI B R2&) « (excluding the effects of acquisitions):
FEUR AR R Rz EL At FE LUK SR I8 Trade and other receivables (32,747) (33,244)
FE Inventories (20,671) (24,628)
HiRE&EE Other current assets 4,727 258
R R H B TRIE Trade and other payables 64,022 (6,906)
HithvEERERE  F58 Other assets and liabilities, net (13,510) (18,505)
REFEBFBRE Cash generated from operating activities 260,080 106,102
ENFE Interest paid (2,945) (4,299)
EEH Income tax paid (54,143) (37,301)
REEHSRE T Net cash generated from operating activities 202,992 64,502
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BZ12A318LLEE
Year ended December 31,

PEE
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Note 2012 2011
REFB2RENRE ! Cash flows from investing activities:
BEYE  BRERRE Purchases of property, plant and equipment 9 (37,941) (37,172)
IR GIBRKEERIRE) Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired 8 (141,953) =
HAh S FIE Other proceeds 713 1,401
RETHFAREFE Net cash used in investing activities (179,181) (35,771)
RMETB2RERE Cash flows from financing activities:
BIHAE R B R FTSFIE Current loans and borrowings proceeds 17 21,034 2,766
FERNEE R R A FRAT K Non-current loans and borrowings payments 17 - (279,051)
OREREAELZREDIK Cash distributions to equity holders 16 (30,000) -
BITRASFTS A Proceeds from issuance of share capital 6 - 225,252
ERIRBERENR S RAER R ERS Transaction costs associated with
Global Offering recognized in equity 6 - (8,899)
BREBAR Loan note payments 6 - (100,989)
S AERKETEA Payment of debt issue costs (1,069) (3,981)
ETFERERRE Dividend payments to non-controlling interests (6,479) (5,390)
RUESEE TR RS F5E Net cash used in financing activities (16,514)  (170,292)
RERBSEBYHIEM CRL) T4 Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7,297 (141,561)
RERREEEY M A1H Cash and cash equivalents, at January 1 141,259 285,798
EREFHHRERRSEEYNTE Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents 2,843 (2,978)
ReRkRLEEY - W12A31H Cash and cash equivalents, at December 31 14 151,399 141,259
BEMIF TR AR S B3R R — 3D ° The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1. Background
Samsonite International S.A. (together with its consolidated subsidiaries, the “Company”) is
principally engaged in the design, manufacture, sourcing and distribution of luggage,
business and computer bags, outdoor and casual bags, and travel accessories throughout
the world, primarily under the Samsonite®, American Tourister®, High Sierra® and Hartmann®
brand names and other owned and licensed brand names. The Company sells its products
through a variety of wholesale distribution channels and through its company operated
retail stores. The principal luggage wholesale distribution customers of the Company are
department and specialty retail stores, mass merchants, catalog showrooms and warehouse
clubs. The Company sells its products in Asia, Europe, North America and Latin America.

The Company completed an initial public offering of its ordinary shares on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on June 16, 2011 (the “Global
Offering”). The Company was incorporated in Luxembourg on March 8, 2011 as a public
limited liability company (a société anonyme), whose registered office is 13-15 Avenue de la
Liberté, L-1931, Luxembourg. Prior to the completion of the Global Offering, on June 10,
2011 the Company became the parent company of the consolidated subsidiaries. The
beneficial owners of the ordinary shares of Delilah Holdings S.a.r.l. (“OldCo"), the previous
parent company of the consolidated subsidiaries, contributed their ordinary shares in OldCo
to the Company in consideration for the issue of ordinary shares in the Company. See
further details and discussion in note 6.

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 27.

2. Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), which collective term includes all International
Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and related interpretations, as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB").

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs. For the purpose of preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the Company has adopted all these new and revised
IFRSs for all periods presented, except for any new standards or interpretations that are not
yet mandatorily effective for the accounting period ended December 31, 2012. The revised
and new accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
accounting period ended December 31, 2012 are set out in note 3(u).

The consolidated financial statements also comply with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

The accounting policies below have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in the consolidated financial statements.

*  For identification purposes only
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2. Basis of Preparation continued
(a) Statement of Compliance continued

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors on March 18, 2013.

(b) Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except

for the following material items in the consolidated statement of financial position as set out

in the accounting policies below:

e derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.

e the defined benefit liability is recognized as the net total of the plan assets, plus
unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses, less unrecognized
actuarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

(c) Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (functional currency). The functional currencies
of the Company’s significant subsidiaries are the currencies of the primary economic
environment and key business processes of these subsidiaries and include, but are not
limited to, United States Dollars, Euros, and Renminbi.

Unless otherwise stated, the consolidated financial statements are presented in the
United States Dollar (“USD"”), which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

(d) Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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2. Basis of Preparation continued
(d) Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions continued
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is
included in the following notes:
e Note 3(n) — Revenue recognition
e Note 8 — Business combinations
e Note 9 — Property, plant and equipment
¢ Note 10 — Goodwill and other intangible assets
e Note 12 — Inventories
¢ Note 13 — Allowances for trade and other receivables
e Note 15 — Non-controlling interests
¢ Note 18 — Obligations under defined benefit plans
e Note 22 — Fair value of financial instruments
e Note 23 — Income taxes
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that may have an effect
on the consolidated financial statements resulting in a material adjustment within the next
financial year is included in the following notes:
e Note 18 — Measurement of plan assets and defined benefit obligation
¢ Note 20 — Contingent Liabilities
¢ Note 22 — Financial instruments
e Note 23 — Utilization of tax losses

(e) Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs. For the purpose of preparing the
consolidated financial information, there were no new or revised IFRSs yet effective for the
year ended December 31, 2012. The Company has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet mandatorily effective for the current accounting period.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Company and
its subsidiaries to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements. Certain
comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the
current year. None of the changes impacts the Company’s previously reported consolidated
net sales, gross profit, operating profit, income tax expense, profit for the year, earnings per
share, net cash generated from operating activities, investing activities or financing activities,
or the statement of financial position.

(a) Principles of Consolidation
(i) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The financial information of subsidiaries is included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(a) Principles of Consolidation continued

(ii) Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Company are presented in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the period between non-
controlling interests and the equity holders of the Company.

Changes in the Company’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized.

When the Company loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset.

(iii) Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method at the acquisition
date, which is the date on which control is obtained by the Company. In assessing control,
the Company takes into consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable.

The Company measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the excess of the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Company’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over the Company’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured at the acquisition date. If the net fair value is greater than the
consideration transferred, then this excess is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of
pre-existing relationships. Such amounts generally are recognized in profit or loss.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities,
that the Company incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as
incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date.
If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement
is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss.

When share-based payment awards (“replacement awards”) are required to be
exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s employees (“acquiree’s awards”) and relate to
past services, then all or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s replacement awards is
included in measuring consideration transferred in the business combination. This
determination is based on the market-based value of the replacement awards compared
with the market-based value of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the
replacement awards relate to past and/or future service.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(b) Foreign Currency Translation and Exchange Risk

(i) Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated using foreign exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that
date. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss,
except for differences arising on the retranslation of qualifying cash flow hedges, which are
recognized in other comprehensive income. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary
items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning
of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting
period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the
date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

(ii) Foreign Operations

The assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are translated into USD at
period end exchange rates. Equity accounts denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into USD at historical exchange rates. Income and expense accounts are translated at
average monthly exchange rates. The net exchange gains or losses resulting from translating
at varied exchange rates are recorded as a component of other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and attributed to non-controlling interests, as appropriate.

(c) Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that
relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. All operating segments’
operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s management to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial information is available.

The Company’s segment reporting is based on geographical areas, representative of
how the Company’'s business is managed and its operating results are evaluated. The
Company’'s operations are organized as follows; (i) “Asia”; (ii) “Europe”; (iii) “North
America”; (iv) “Latin America”, and (v) “Corporate”, which are set out in note 7.

Segment results that are reported to management include items directly attributable to
a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items
comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses, income tax assets and liabilities,
and licensing activities from the license of brand names owned by the Company.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire
property, plant and equipment.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset. Assets under finance leases are stated at the present value of
the future minimum lease payments. Improvements which extend the life of an asset are
capitalized. Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components).

Gains and losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation and amortization are provided on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term, if applicable, as follows:

20 to 30 years
3 to 10 years
lesser of useful life or the lease term

Buildings
Machinery, equipment and other
Leasehold improvements

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually and
adjusted if appropriate. Land owned by the Company with freehold interest is not
depreciated.

The Company capitalizes the costs of purchased software and costs to configure, install
and test software and includes these costs within machinery, equipment and other in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Software assessment and evaluation, process
reengineering, data conversion, training, maintenance and ongoing software support costs
are expensed.

(e) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. For
measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, see note 3(a)(iii). Subsequent to initial
recognition, goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising
on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit (CGU), or groups of
cash-generating units, which are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and are tested annually for impairment (see note 10).
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(e) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

(ii) Intangible Assets (other than Goodwill)

Intangible assets consist of tradenames, customer relationships, patents and leasehold
rights. No recognized intangible assets have been generated internally.

Intangible assets which are considered to have an indefinite life, tradenames, are
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses and are not amortized but are tested
for impairment at least annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that
the asset may be impaired. Samsonite®, American Tourister®, High Sierra® and Hartmann®
are the significant tradenames of the Company. It is anticipated that the economic benefits
associated with these tradenames will continue for an indefinite period. The conclusion that
the tradenames are an indefinite lived asset is reviewed annually to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortization of intangible assets with finite lives as set out below.

Intangible assets which have a finite life are amortized and measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization expense is
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives from the
date that they are available for use, as this most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the assets. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:
Customer relationships 10 to 20 years
3 to 6 years
1 to 10 years

Intangible assets having a finite life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Estimated useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed annually and adjusted if
applicable.

Leasehold rights
Patents

(f) Impairment
(i) Financial Assets

(Including Trade and Other Receivables)
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is
impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. The allowance account for
receivables is used to record impairment losses unless the Company believes recovery is
remote and the impairment loss is applied directly against the financial asset.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency
by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company
would not consider otherwise, or indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(f) Impairment continued
(i) Financial Assets

(Including Trade and Other Receivables) continued

The Company considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both a specific asset
and collective level. Allindividually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment.
All individually significant receivables found not to be specifically impaired are then
collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical trends, adjusted for
management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such
that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.
Impairment losses that have been recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

(ii) Non-financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. For those CGUs or group of CGUs that to which goodwill has been allocated
and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
each year at the same time.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using an appropriate discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the
"CGU"). For the purposes of goodwill impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to the group of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. This allocation is subject to an operating segment before aggregation
ceiling test and reflects the lowest level at which that goodwill is monitored for internal
reporting purposes to the asset or CGU.

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an
indication that a corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(f) Impairment continued
(ii) Non-financial Assets continued

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the group of units, and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss that has been recognized on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods if estimates used to determine the recoverable amount change. For other assets,
impairment losses that have been recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. The cost of inventory includes expenditures incurred in
acquiring the inventories, production costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in
progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal
operating capacity. Cost also may include transfers from other comprehensive income of
any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of inventories.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realizable value and all losses of inventories are recognized as
expenses in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(h) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash held at banks, deposits held at call with banks, and
other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(i) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value. Trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(j) Interest-bearing Borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortized
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognized and redemption value
being recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(k) Financial Instruments

(i) Non-derivative Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Company initially recognizes receivables and deposits on the date that they are
originated.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on
the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets
that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Company has a legal right to offset
the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
measured at cost, less any impairment losses. Receivables are comprised of trade and other
receivables.

The Company initially recognizes debt instruments issued on the date that they are
originated. The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations
are discharged, cancelled or expire.

The Company has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: loans and borrowings
and trade and other payables. Both loans and borrowings and trade and other payables are
recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to their initial recognition, loans and borrowings are accounted for at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(k) Financial Instruments continued

(ii) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge certain of its foreign currency
risk exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted
for separately if the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the
embedded derivative are not closely related, a separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative, and the combined
instrument is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. For derivatives designated in
hedging relationships, changes in the fair value are either offset through profit or loss
against the change in fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged or
recognized in hedging reserves that are reported directly in equity (deficit) until the hedged
item is recognized in profit or loss and, at that time, the related hedging gain or loss is
removed from equity (deficit) and is used to offset the change in value of the hedged item.

Other than agreements with holders of non-controlling interests, there were no
derivatives embedded in host contracts during the periods presented. The Company has
certain put option agreements that are classified as financial liabilities in accordance with
IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, in the consolidated statement of financial
position, as the Company has a potential obligation to settle the option in cash in the future.
The amount recognized initially is the fair value of the redeemable non-controlling interests
and subsequently remeasured at each reporting date based on a price to earnings multiple
discounted to the reporting date. For agreements entered into prior to the adoption of IFRS
3, Business Combinations, on January 1, 2008, subsequent changes in liabilities are
recognized in profit or loss. For agreements entered into after January 1, 2008, subsequent
changes in liabilities are recognized through equity.

Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and any attributable transaction costs
are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are accounted for as described below.

The Company periodically enters into derivative contracts that it designates as a hedge
of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a
recognized asset or liability (cash flow hedge). For all hedging relationships, the Company
formally documents the hedging relationship and its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk
being hedged, how the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will
be assessed prospectively and retrospectively, and a description of the method of measuring
ineffectiveness. The Company also formally assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on
an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly
effective in offsetting cash flows of hedged items by determining whether the actual results
of each hedge are within a range of 80% to 125%. For derivative instruments that are
designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the
derivative is reported as a component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into
profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects
profit or loss. Gains and losses on the derivative representing hedge ineffectiveness are
excluded from the assessment of effectiveness and are recognized in current profit or loss.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(k) Financial Instruments continued
(ii) Derivative Financial Instruments continued

The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it determines that
the derivative is no longer effective in offsetting cash flows of the hedged item, the derivative
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, the derivative is de-designated as a hedging
instrument because it is unlikely that a forecasted transaction will occur, or management
determines that designation of the derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer
appropriate.

When a derivative financial instrument is not held for trading, and is not designated in
a qualified hedging relationship, all changes in fair value are recognized immediately
through profit or loss.

(iii) Share Capital

(a) Ordinary Shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

(b) Preference Shares

Prior to the Global Offering, there were Class A and Class B preference shares of OldCo
issued and outstanding. The Class A and Class B preference shares were classified as equity
in accordance with IAS 32. The Company does not have any preference shares outstanding
subsequent to the Global Offering.

(I) Employee Benefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans
are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which
services are rendered by employees.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(I) Employee Benefits continued
(ii) Defined Benefit Plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted
to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any
plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is based on a high grade bond yield curve under
which the benefits were projected and discounted at spot rates along the curve. The
discount rate was then determined as a single rate yielding the same present value. When
the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the
total of any unrecognized past service costs and the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions
to the plan. In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is
given to any minimum funding requirements that apply to any plan in the Company. An
economic benefit is available to the Company if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or
on settlement of the plan liabilities.

The Company initially recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined
benefit plans in other comprehensive income. Actuarial valuations are obtained annually at
the end of the fiscal year.

(iii) Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than pension
plans is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value,
and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is based on a high
grade bond yield curve under which the benefits were projected and discounted at spot
rates along the curve. The discount rate was then determined as a single rate yielding the
same present value. Any actuarial gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Actuarial valuations are obtained annually at the end of the fiscal
year.

(iv) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits, including severance, are recognized as an expense when the Company
is committed demonstrably, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed
plan to either terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized as an expense if the
Company has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be
accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable
more than 12 months after the reporting period, then they are discounted to their present
value where the effect of discounting is determined to be material.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(I) Employee Benefits continued

(v) Short-Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected
to be paid under short-term cash bonus plans if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(vi) Share-based Payments

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards granted to
employees is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the
related service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met, such that
the amount ultimately recognized as an expense is based on the number of awards that
meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date. For
equity-settled share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair
value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no
true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.

(m) Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination,
items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences:
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax is not recognized for taxable temporary
differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on
the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, if they intend to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(m) Income Taxes continued

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible
temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realized.

(n) Revenue Recognition

Revenues from wholesale product sales are recognized when (i) evidence of a sales
arrangement at a fixed or determinable price exists (usually in the form of a sales order), (ii)
collectability is reasonably assured, and (iii) title transfers to the customer. Provisions are
made for estimates of markdown allowances, warranties, returns and discounts at the time
product sales are recognized. Shipping terms are predominately FOB shipping point (title
transfers to the customer at the Company’s shipping location) except in certain Asian
countries where title transfers upon delivery to the customer. In all cases, sales are recognized
upon transfer of title to customers. Revenues from retail sales are recognized at the point of
sale to consumers. Revenue excludes collected sales taxes.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognized in profit or
loss.

The Company licenses its brand names to certain third parties. Net sales in the
accompanying consolidated income statement include royalties earned on licensing
agreements with third parties, for which revenue is earned and recognized when the third
party makes a sale of Company branded product.

(o) Cost of Sales, Distribution, Marketing and General and Administrative
Expenses
The Company includes the following types of costs in cost of sales: direct product purchase
and manufacturing costs, duties, freight in, freight out, receiving, inspection, internal
transfer costs, depreciation and procurement and manufacturing overhead. The impairment
of inventories and the reversals of such impairments are included in cost of sales during the
period in which they occur.
Distribution expenses are primarily comprised of rent, employee benefits, customer
freight, depreciation, amortization, warehousing costs and other selling expenses.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(o) Cost of Sales, Distribution, Marketing and General and Administrative

Expenses continued

Marketing expenses consist of advertising and promotional activities. Costs for
producing media advertising are deferred until the related advertising first appears in print
or television media, at which time such costs are expensed. All other advertising costs are
expensed as incurred. Cooperative advertising costs associated with customer support
programs giving the Company an identifiable advertising benefit equal to at least the
amount of the advertising allowance are accrued and charged to marketing expenses when
the related revenues are recognized. From time to time, the Company offers various types
of incentive arrangements such as cash or payment discounts, rebates or free products. All
such incentive arrangements are accrued and reduce reported revenues when incurred.

General and administrative expenses consist of management salaries and benefits,
information technology costs, and other costs related to administrative functions.

(p) Finance Income and Costs

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and gains on hedging
instruments that are recognized in profit or loss. Interest income is recognized as it accrues
in profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on
provisions, changes in the fair value of put options associated with the Company’s majority-
owned subsidiaries, expenses related to the Global Offering, and losses on hedging
instruments that are recognized in profit or loss. Foreign currency gains and losses are
reported on a net basis.

Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of debt instruments are included in the
initial measurement of the related financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Such costs are amortized as finance costs using the effective interest
method over the term of the related debt obligation.

(q) Earnings Per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the period, adjusted for shares held by the Company. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for shares held by the
Company, for the effects of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares, which comprise convertible
notes and share options granted to employees, as applicable.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(r) Leases

An arrangement comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if
the Company determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases in which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is
measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Other leases are operating
leases and the leased assets are not recognized in the Company’s consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Company leases retail stores, distribution centers and office facilities. Initial terms
of the leases range from one to twenty years. Most leases provide for monthly fixed
minimum rentals or contingent rentals based upon sales in excess of stated amounts and
normally require the Company to pay real estate taxes, insurance, common area maintenance
costs and other occupancy costs. The Company recognizes rent expense for leases that
include scheduled and specified escalations of the minimum rent on a straight-line basis
over the base term of the lease. Any difference between the straight-line rent amount and
the amount payable under the lease is included in other liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Contingent rental payments are expensed as incurred.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the
finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is
allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

(s) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(t) Related Parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Company
if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Company;

(2) has significant influence over the Company; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the Company’s
parent.

(ii) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions
applies:

(1) the entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, the subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(2) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member);

(3) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Company or an entity related to the Company;

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i); or

(7) a person identified in (i) (1) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be

expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(u) New Standards and Interpretations

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet
effective for the year ended December 31, 2012, and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.

(i) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2010), IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

(2009)
IFRS 9 (2009) introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Under IFRS 9 (2009), financial assets are classified and measured based on
the business model in which they are held and the characteristics of their contractual cash
flows. IFRS 9 (2010) introduces additions relating to financial liabilities. The IASB currently
has an active project to make limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements of IFRS 9 and add new requirements to address the impairment of financial
assets and hedge accounting.

IFRS 9 (2010 and 2009) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2015 with early adoption permitted. The Company has not determined the extent of the
impact on its financial statements upon adoption of this standard.

FEEERERAT 111
ZO——%%#



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

3. EESHBUREE #
(u) HFERIRRE &
(i) IFRS E10F4EMF#H % -
IFRS S8 1155 & % #F ~ IFRS 2 125%
RE M FREAHE % E (20114F)
IFRS 2810555 A — 2 HEX UEEED
FEWIRESE o AARTFEFEAARERZ T
BUBERREHBARNEEER
BRI IFRS 1155 BEBSZTHNEE
BNABEEZRERZ  HETBABETEHS
THEANETEZERER AKETRTBAHERE
ARNEERE -
s RATRBELENER (BTN HES
ZEFNEERFIRAEEESER) BE
REAQRFARZEEEREBENERAR °
s RATNEECENER (BTN HES
LT EEREAR) BUERAARR ©
AN B 30 T8 BB AR AR 2E B g 9 HL B A%
HRBEEATE
IFRS 125 EEEERENRHEA
A BETH  BEQATRRFSREEEER
R IR REIRME 28| - XAFH
AU EFEEER EER BT ALLE © IFRS
FNRHEHRAEREEEAZSHANEE A
B & BT IS E N ER o
ZEERA2013F1 A1 B2 &%
HFEEEAR AR

(i) IFRS S 13582\ FEa1E (20114F)

IFRS 2 133RiRitst & A FEMIESIMNE—
R - WENVR B AT IFRS 5 BURF H 2 F
&5 - REREB WHIIMER I -
IFRS ZE 133 A E A IFRS RESEHFAFE
STESNIEERER o AAT B AT ERMEE
EAFE (RKEE4) B9 3% o IFRS 51358
R2013F 1B 1Bz EBBNFERBEE
e

(iv) INNEVSREMS2HK=ZEHZES
(20114)

IASB EEFTIASE 15 A ERERBEZER
EreEfsBAEsNEMmEmkEER
EREETHENERT » 2BI2%IRRE
AREEF P ERBERNEMEZEKEIER -
LEXERIA201267 81 BN 2 ZBBRNEE
HARIAE AR o N0 B BT IS SEAE AR AN L 2E A
BIEATMSIE -

112 Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2012

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(u) New Standards and Interpretations continued

(ii) IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements,

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements,

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (2011)

IFRS 10 introduces a single control model to determine whether an investee should be

consolidated. The Company does not expect that the adoption of this standard will change

its current conclusion in respect of consolidated subsidiaries.

Under IFRS 11, the structure of a joint arrangement, although still an important
consideration, is no longer the main factor in determining the type of joint arrangement and
therefore the subsequent accounting.

e The Company’s interest in a joint operation, which is an arrangement in which the parties
have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities, will be accounted for on the
basis of the Company’s interest in those assets and liabilities.

e The Company’s interest in a joint venture, which is an arrangement in which the parties
have rights to the net assets, will be equity-accounted.

The Company does not expect that the adoption of this standard will have a material
impact on its financial statements.

IFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure requirements about an
entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated
structured entities. The Company is currently assessing the disclosure requirements in
comparison with existing disclosures. IFRS 12 requires the disclosure of information about
the nature, risks and financial effects of these interests.

These standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

(i) IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (2011)

IFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how fair value is measured, and replaces the
fair value measurement guidance that is currently dispersed throughout IFRS. Subject to
limited exceptions, IFRS 13 is applied when fair value measurements or disclosures are
required or permitted by other IFRSs. The Company is currently reviewing its methodologies
in determining fair values (see Note 4). IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2013.

(iv) IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

(2011)
IAS 1 has been amended by the IASB to require that an entity presents separately the items
of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if
certain conditions are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The
standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012. There will not be
any impact to the financial results of the Company upon adoption of this standard.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(u) New Standards and Interpretations continued

(v) 1AS 19 Employee Benefits (2011)

IAS 19 (2011) changes the definition of short-term and other long-term employee benefits
to clarify the distinction between the two. For defined benefit plans, removal of the
accounting policy choice for recognition of actuarial gains and losses is not expected to have
a significant impact on the Company. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the
change in measurement principles of expected return on plan assets. 1AS 19 (2011) is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

4. Determination of Fair Values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination
of fair value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been
determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods.
When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair
values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

(a) Trade and Other Receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is
determined for disclosure purposes and generally approximates carrying value.

(b) Derivatives
The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their listed market price. If a listed
market price is not available, then fair value is estimated by discounting the difference
between the contractual forward price and the current forward price for the residual
maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds).
Call options are considered derivative financial assets and are recorded at fair value.
Fair value estimates reflect the credit risk of the Company and counterparty.

(c) Non-derivative Financial Liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present
value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at
the reporting date.
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4. Determination of Fair Values continved
(c) Non-derivative Financial Liabilities continued
Redeemable Non-controlling Interests
The Company has entered into agreements that include put and call option arrangements
to acquire non-controlling interests in certain majority-owned subsidiaries exercisable at fair
value at certain predetermined dates. Pursuant to these agreements, the Company has call
options to acquire the remaining shares owned by the non-controlling interest holders and
these non-controlling interest holders have put options to sell their ownership in these
subsidiaries to the Company. In addition, the Company has the right to buy-out these non-
controlling interests in the event of termination of the underlying agreements. The table of
contractual maturities (note 22) does not include amounts for the repurchase of non-
controlling interests as they do not include contractual maturities.

The put option agreements are classified as financial liabilities in accordance with IAS
32 in the consolidated statement of financial position as the Company has a potential
obligation to settle the option in cash in the future. The amount recognized initially is the
fair value of the redeemable non-controlling interests and subsequently remeasured at each
reporting date based on a price to earnings multiple discounted to the reporting date. For
agreements entered into prior to the adoption of IFRS 3 on January 1, 2008, subsequent
changes in liabilities are recognized in profit or loss. For agreements entered into after
January 1, 2008, subsequent changes in liabilities are recognized through equity.

(d) Intangible Assets

The fair value of tradenames is based on the relief-from-royalty method of valuation. The
fair value of leasehold interests is determined using the income approach. The fair value of
customer relationships is determined using a combination of the income approach and the
multi-period excess earnings method, whereby the subject asset is valued after deducting a
fair return on all other assets that are part of creating the related cash flows.

5. Financial Risk Management Overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
e credit risk
e liquidity risk
e market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above
risks, the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk,
and the Company’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included
throughout the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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5. Financial Risk Management Overview continued

(a) Risk Management Framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are
established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Company’s receivables from customers. Maximum exposure is limited to the carrying
amounts of the financial assets presented in the consolidated financial statements.

Trade and Other Receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. However, management also considers the demographics of the Company’s
customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers
operate, as these factors may have an influence on credit risk. No single customer accounted
for more than 5% of the Company’s sales for the periods presented or accounts receivable
as of the reporting dates. Geographically there is no concentration of credit risk.

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is
analyzed individually for creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and
delivery terms and conditions are offered.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit
characteristics, including aging profile, and existence of previous financial difficulties. Trade
and other receivables relate mainly to the Company’s wholesale customers. Customers that
are graded as “high risk” are placed on credit hold and monitored by the Company, and
future sales are made on an approval basis.

(c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities.

The Company’s primary sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating activities,
invested cash, available lines of credit (note 17(b)) and its ability to issue additional shares.
The Company believes that its existing cash and estimated cash flows, along with current
working capital, will be adequate to meet the operating and capital requirements of the
Company for at least the next twelve months.
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5. Financial Risk Management Overview continued
(d) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Company periodically buys and sells financial derivatives, such as forward purchase
contracts for hedging purposes, in order to manage market risks.

(i) Currency Risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings that are denominated
in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the Company’s subsidiaries.
The Company periodically uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposure to
currency risk on product purchases denominated in a currency other than the respective
functional currency of the Company’s subsidiaries. The forward exchange contracts typically
have maturities of less than one year.
Interest on borrowings is typically denominated in the local currency of the borrowing.
Borrowings are generally denominated in currencies that match the cash flows generated by
the underlying operations of the borrowing entity.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk

The Company monitors its exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings on variable
rate debt instruments. Although the Company does not currently have any interest rate
hedging instruments, it may, from time to time, enter into interest rate swap contracts to
manage interest rate risk.

(iii) Other Market Price Risk

Equity price risk arises from available for sale equity securities held by the Company’s defined
benefit pension plans to fund obligations that are used to measure periodic net pension
costs. Pension plan liabilities are presented net of pension plan assets in the Company’s
consolidated statement of financial position. The Company’s investment strategy is to
generate investment returns on pension plan assets in order to satisfy the Company’s
defined benefit pension plan obligations. The Company engages professional pension plan
asset managers to assist in this process.

(iv) Other Pension and Post-retirement Obligations

The estimated pension obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits attributed to
employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement date without
considering future compensation levels) exceeds the fair value of the assets of the Company’s
pension plans, which is primarily the result of the performance of equity markets during
prior years. Future market conditions and interest rate fluctuations could significantly impact
future assets and liabilities of our pension plans and future minimum required funding
levels.
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5. Financial Risk Management Overview continued
(e) Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management policies is to safeguard its
ability to continue as a going concern, to provide returns for shareholders, fund capital
expenditures, normal operating expenses and working capital needs, and the payment of
obligations. The primary source of cash is revenue from sales of the Company’s products.
The Company anticipates generating sufficient cash flow from operations in the majority of
countries where it operates and will have sufficient available cash and ability to draw on
credit facilities for funding to satisfy the working capital and financing needs.

The Company’s capital needs are primarily managed through cash and cash equivalents
(note 14), trade and other receivables (note 13), inventories (note 12), property plant and
equipment (note 9), trade and other payables (note 21) and loans and borrowings (note 17).

6. Global Offering and Related Events

The ordinary shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on June 16, 2011, at which time 671.2 million shares were sold at a
unit price of HK$14.50. Out of these 671.2 million shares, 121.1 million shares were newly
issued shares sold by the Company and 550.1 million shares were previously issued shares
sold by existing shareholders. The Company’s remaining 735.9 million issued and outstanding
shares were not sold in connection with the Global Offering and at the time of the Global
Offering continued to be held by the shareholders who held such shares immediately prior
to the Global Offering.

The Company received gross proceeds of HK$1,756.0 million corresponding to a
capital increase of US$225.3 million at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. In connection with the transaction, the Company incurred costs of US$33.7
million, of which US$8.9 million were related to the listing and issue of new shares and were
recorded as a reduction of additional paid-in capital. The remaining costs of US$24.8 million
were recognized as an expense in the consolidated income statement for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

Prior to the Global Offering, the beneficial owners of the ordinary shares of OldCo
contributed their shares to the Company in consideration for the issue of ordinary shares in
the Company.

The 78.0 million preference shares of OldCo that were previously outstanding were
redeemed and canceled on June 10, 2011 in consideration for the beneficial owners of the
preference shares receiving (i) A loan notes issued by OldCo with a principal equal to the
nominal value of the A preference shares and the total share premium reserve attaching to
the A preference shares for an aggregate principal value of US$77.0 million (the “A Loan
Notes”) and (ii) B loan notes issued by OldCo with a principal equal to the nominal value of
the B preference shares plus the accrued B preference share reserve for an aggregate
principal value of US$24.0 million (the “B Loan Notes” and, together with the A Loan Notes,
the “Loan Notes”). The Loan Notes received a commercial rate of interest. The US$101.0
million outstanding balance of the Loan Notes was repaid utilizing a portion of the
Company’s proceeds from the sale of ordinary shares on completion of the Global Offering.
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6. Global Offering and Related Events continued

The Company utilized a portion of the remaining proceeds from the Global Offering,
along with existing cash on hand, to repay in full the outstanding principal balance of
US$221.6 million on its former amended senior credit facility and the outstanding principal
and accrued interest of US$59.2 million on its former term loan facility. The former amended
senior credit facility and former term loan facility were terminated following the Global
Offering.

On July 8, 2011, the over-allotment option referred to in the Offering Circular was
partially exercised by the Joint Global Coordinators on behalf of the International
Underwriters, thereby requiring the funds managed by CVC Capital Partners Limited (the
“CVC Funds”) and the Royal Bank of Scotland (“RBS"), members of the selling shareholder
group, to sell 24.7 million additional shares, which represented approximately 3.7% of the
shares initially being offered under the Global Offering before any exercise of the over-
allotment option. These additional shares were sold by the CVC Funds and RBS at HK$14.50
per share, being the offer price per share under the Global Offering. The Company did not
sell any additional shares upon the exercise of the over-allotment option. In connection with
an agreement between the Company and the Joint Global Coordinators, the Company
received proceeds of US$3.5 million on profits recognized by the Joint Global Coordinators
from the exercise of the over-allotment option (the “Stabilization Proceeds”).

7. Segment Reporting

(a) Operating Segments

Management of the business and evaluation of operating results is organized primarily

along geographic lines dividing responsibility for the Company’s operations, besides the

Corporate segment, as follows:

e Asia — which includes operations in South Asia (India and Middle East), China, Singapore,
South Korea, Taiwan, Malaysia, Japan, Hong Kong, Thailand, Indonesia, Philippines and
Australia;

e Europe — which includes operations in European countries as well as Africa;

e North America — which includes operations in the United States of America and Canada;

e Latin America — which includes operations in Chile, Mexico, Argentina, Brazil and
Uruguay; and

e Corporate — which primarily includes certain licensing activities from brand names owned
by the Company and Corporate headquarters overhead.
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7. Segment Reporting continued
(a) Operating Segments continued

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below.
Performance is measured based on segment operating profit or loss, as included in the
internal management reports. Segment operating profit or loss is used to measure
performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in
evaluating the results of the Company’s segments.

Segment information as of and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December
31, 2011 is as follows:

2 EERT :

HZE2012F12A31HLEEE
Year ended December 31, 2012

Cib)| B jllzliérflﬂw HTENM b1 Gl
UFZETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia Europe America  Latin America Corporate  Consolidated
INEBUK 2 External revenues 684,154 465,383 499,924 112,556 9,709 1,771,726
EEREF Operating profit 87,946 43,099 38,458 10,968 61,271 241,742
ER#H Depreciation and amortization 14,643 14,928 3,796 4,092 2,802 40,261
BEAREX Capital expenditures 14,317 15,173 4,533 2,953 965 37,941
FIEUEA Interest income 211 188 16 25 747 1,187
FEFI Interest expense (1,809) (139) - (296) (1,683) (3,927)
Frie®t (BxR) Income tax (expense) benefit

E1i87) (20,136) (9,889) (14,398) 1,732 (15,382) (58,073)
BEEHZE Total assets 499,149 422,793 512,975 91,795 286,452 1,813,164
B EREE Total liabilities 193,273 189,390 463,569 46,011 (165,184) 727,059

BZE201MF12A31HLEFE
Year ended December 31, 2011
46 =M

=M B North HTEM ¥ &5t
UFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia Europe America  Latin America Corporate  Consolidated
INEBUK 2 External revenues 578,316 479,089 388,190 108,601 10,951 1,565,147
EERT Operating profit 62,136 61,327 39,639 9,871 36,957 209,930
TER#H Depreciation and amortization 13,224 13,441 3,478 3,822 4,526 38,491
BEREX Capital expenditures 13,826 16,924 3,761 1,829 832 37,172
HHER Restructuring charges/

(BEEA) (reversals of charges) - (884) - — 7 (877)
FEUA Interest income 142 184 9 26 886 1,247
FERE X Interest expense (1,861) (23,158) - (540) (11,726) (37,285)
FBBiRX Income tax expense (13,447) (11,367) (465) (1,497) (8,904) (35,680)
EEHARE Total assets 498,725 407,866 509,861 83,299 44,795 1,544,546
BEH5E Total liabilities 186,597 186,618 461,947 40,857 (276,673) 599,346
(b) HbigiEH (b) Geographical Information

TREHF AT ZHENBELENBEVE
BH ()RR RRBIEBE SRS (i) A
DNRAKYIE - BERRE  BEEEURSE
2 (EENFERBEE) - EFNMENE
DERBRVEENE - EENFRBEE
HiiE B EREENERVE -

The following tables set out enterprise-wide information about the geographical location of
(i) the Company’s revenue from external customers and (ii) the Company’s property, plant,
and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill (specified non-current assets). The
geographical location of customers is based on the selling location of the goods. The
geographical location of the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location of
the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

7. SBRE «
(b) HIREF &

(i) RBMEBEFP 2T
TREABAAAEEEBNEIRMENVE

7. Segment Reporting continued

(b) Geographical Information continued

(i) Revenue from External Customers

The following table presents the revenues earned from customers in major geographical

R FESHIRE - locations where the Company has operations.
HZ12A318LEE
Year ended December 31,
UFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
M ¢ Asia:
] China 178,035 144,594
BB0 Hong Kong™ 56,473 48,392
JEEE Philippines 4,869 3,567
=) Taiwan 18,212 14,252
ENE India 102,329 109,846
FIHAS B RE United Arab Emirates 27,714 21,364
BAR T Australia 40,678 34,881
[F South Korea 122,921 93,969
SE:N Japan 66,013 51,984
SN Singapore 21,328 19,399
Hi Other 45,582 36,068
MER Total Asia 684,154 578,316
BOM : Europe:
ERF [taly 52,383 67,549
BBl France 59,580 61,024
=E Germany 64,502 61,077
IS Spain 39,075 46,973
b FBF Belgium 58,164 59,561
1 Holland 23,470 25,030
L8] United Kingdom 30,754 30,120
B th K Austria 11,901 11,338
It Switzerland 16,692 18,037
BB Russia 35,931 28,020
THHE Turkey 11,684 11,059
Hih Other 61,247 59,301
BUME ST Total Europe 465,383 479,089
JEZEM - North America:
£ United States 469,773 360,314
mEX Canada 30,151 27,876
dE=MEE Total North America 499,924 388,190
FTEM : Latin America:
=l Chile 54,998 50,158
275 Mexico 34,240 32,790
P iRE Argentina 9,823 14,218
Hith Other 13,495 11,435
T EMEF Total Latin America 112,556 108,601
ERHEM (FRERR) Corporate and other (royalty revenue):
ERE Luxembourg 9,522 10,713
=H United States 187 238
tERAMES Total Corporate and other 9,709 10,951
st Total 1,771,726 1,565,147
(1) e

Includes Macau
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7. SEBBRE

(b) HIBEF &

(i) EEMIERBEE
TRAZWAUELIINAR T ZEAER
BEE - RAMNEEFRBEETEERE
Gk

7. Segment Reporting continued

(b) Geographical Information continued

(ii) Specified Non-current Assets

The following table presents the Company’s significant non-current assets by geographical
location. Unallocated specified non-current assets mainly comprise goodwill.

12H318

December 31,
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
E3E United States 27,056 24,545
EHRE Luxembourg 588,828 532,428
ENE India 24,037 25,307
FRE China 16,544 15,623
[Fa South Korea 10,503 10,737
BE Hong Kong 9,457 9,049
]2 Belgium 51,111 45,803
= Chile 12,834 10,510
8. ¥NEH 8. Business Combinations

(a) High Sierra

R2012F7H178 » AR AETE2EHE
AR ([FHFEEEF ) B High Sierra Sport
Company ([High Sierra]) ;T EERE
o B R20125F7H318 HFEE
FE BB E High Sierra BAMLEE » F1
2NREARIBOEEBET - HIZEELCE
B High Sierra @ KB EE - RS- &
TFRERRERE THMREEERI W&
& High Sierra WFTEEEEBRNEER
ETEHNEE -

High Sierra @ —R&ER 5 HREER
PONRETZ=RMNEEAT » EERMUEXR
SERHEEESRNNEERE  BFEFINE
BEFE  BEREBESWIBELSE - I
BITE 7 E RE4E o High Sierra 2 U.S. Ski
and Snowboard Team KB H{TZREHE
& ° High Sierra k&R 1978F KL ©

(a) High Sierra

On July 17, 2012, certain of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries (the “Samsonite
Purchasers”) entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with High Sierra Sport Company
("High Sierra”), pursuant to which on July 31, 2012 the Samsonite Purchasers purchased
substantially all of the assets of High Sierra for a net cash consideration of US$108.0 million.
The Samsonite Purchasers purchased substantially all of the assets of High Sierra excluding
cash, certain receivables, and certain other retained assets and assumed all balance sheet
liabilities and certain contractual liabilities of High Sierra.

High Sierra is a U.S.-based manufacturer and distributor of casual bags and adventure
travel luggage. Its products are targeted at active lifestyle consumers including outdoor
enthusiasts, skiers and snowboarders, adventure travelers and students. It is the official
supplier of bags and luggage for the U.S. Ski and Snowboard Team. The High Sierra brand
was founded in 1978.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

8. ¥WaHa
(@) High Sierra &

KA T IREWEBER N —EE 58
YHREERSEZEUNERES > AIE
EEMKRE B TS ER AN THIZMRE o I
BEETEAATRELERRANERD
EREREETSVNERNER » FEit
1§ High Sierra @B RBREBBRZ TN - B
MR T EMNEFH S o

B Uk B8 B HA#E » High Sierra EEk17.6 8
BEnWakI2BEEURHFADTE
Z2012F12A31 BILEENGEEE -

TRB AU EE B HR AT S S B R AT

8. Business Combinations continued
(a) High Sierra continued

The acquisition gives the Company a strong brand and product offering that provides
a foothold in the North American casual bag market. It also provides the Company with
opportunities to leverage its well-established global distribution net-work and retail presence
to significantly expand the High Sierra brand in additional markets in Asia, Europe and Latin
America.

From the date of acquisition, High Sierra contributed US$17.6 million of revenue and
US$1.2 million of profit to the consolidated results of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2012.

The following summarizes the recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date.

EEBENCHERLEE -

P
KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Note
M2 - BEKREE Property, plant and equipment 195
B EE Intangible assets 10 43,000
=7E Inventories 11,087
FEURBRTR Trade receivables 13,267
HiRE&EE Other current assets 88
R Trade payables (3,123)
8= byt =R Other current liabilities (4,254)

YRR BEIHSNSELE 143
BEEL BHEMIEEETRIER
HARARE o

fisl AU 8 B 338 — S A EUS AR EE
AHFENSERBERNMERSH LS
BEEFEHAZR  IEERNRERHEER
R EMERIMNENFHESR - BIWIBSEN
ARG ERIER -

AARCHWBEERR7TABE
THEE - BEDETEHREB S High
Sierra & EA R BRREXBERNIHE
MzmrE - FHBECERBERSBE N
AT LAHIBR o
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The trade receivables comprise gross contractual amounts due of US$14.3 million, of
which US$1.0 million was expected to be uncollectible at the acquisition date.

If new information obtained within one year from the acquisition date about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date identifies adjustments to the above
amounts, or any additional provisions that existed at the acquisition date, then the
acquisition accounting will be revised.

Goodwill in the amount of US$47.7 million was recognized as a result of the acquisition.
The goodwill is attributable mainly to the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating
High Sierra into the Company’s existing business. None of the goodwill recognized is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.



8. XN&Ha
(b) HL Operating Corp. kX Hartmann

BENEERS
201258 A28 » AR R ZEMB AT ([
FBE 7 |) B HL Operating Corp. ([Hartmann.])
RISLEOHHRE - #5It - PA2012F8 A2H » S
BERZEBEHZAUES Hartmann B HIZ
EEETIRG  FRENEAR3M0EESET °

Hartmann & —2kEA Hartmann® G EEE R
DEITERE  BBE - FREREARMGNE
Bl A &) ° Hartmann H Joseph S. Hartmann 74
18775 RIN - EXEEEGmHEHEELERER
AEEERNER  HEREZEHEARKE
HEBEEMEE - ZmE B RS RSEREHRE
ER BEFETER - 0EEF » Hatmamn
ZEERAE DT

AN FREE RS A MR AN — & D38
HmkE  EeETERARE AT EAE TS
88 WARARBEREERAANZIRD
RPERZEMSMVNEZHNEE - i
Hartmann EIEAFAEERZEZB R 2RMS o

B U B8 B HAAR » Hartmann EES0BESE
T E K 0.1 BB EITEA T A D REZE2012
F12A3N BIEFENGREHE

T RS B B PTUREE B A I ARIE
BENCHERSE -

8. Business Combinations continued
(b) HL Operating Corp. doing business as Hartmann

On August 2, 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Samsonite Purchaser”)
entered into a Merger Agreement with HL Operating Corp. (“Hartmann”), pursuant to
which on August 2, 2012 the Samsonite Purchaser completed the acquisition, by way of
merger, of all of the outstanding shares of the capital stock of Hartmann for a net cash
consideration of US$34.0 million.

Hartmann is a U.S.-based manufacturer and distributor of luggage, business cases, tote
bags and leather accessories under the Hartmann® brand. Founded by Joseph S. Hartmann
in 1877, Hartmann has established the brand as a mark of quality among American luxury
consumers, with its products appealing to business and leisure consumers alike. The brand
is currently offered through multiple channels, including leading retailers, corporate clients,
Hartmann retail stores and its corporate web-site.

The acquisition gives the Company a strong brand to expand its presence in the luxury
luggage and leather goods market as well as opportunities to leverage its well-established
global distribution network and retail presence to significantly expand the Hartmann brand
both in the U.S. and internationally.

From the date of acquisition, Hartmann contributed US$8.0 million of revenue and
US$0.1 million of profit to the consolidated results of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2012.

The following summarizes the recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date.

UFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars ﬂi?e

MZE - BEKREE Property, plant and equipment 52
B EE Intangible assets 10 17,000
EA=] Inventories 4,987
PEURERTR Trade receivables 3,249
HitRE&EE Other current assets 2,414
R Trade payables (4,577)
REFBEEE Deferred tax liabilities (1,080)
HitREa s Other current liabilities (1,496)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

8. XN&Ha
(b) HL Operating Corp. kX Hartmann

BERNEER &

YRR EEINS N EEETE3I3E
BEn AHEFIBEEETAWER
AT E o

i AU EE B HR e — F N EIS B B UUE
BHEFENSERBRNFERSLE LiE
HREZELHRE  EERBEBHERE
EMEAEIMBHNEHER - AWBEEN
AR EHIEET o

AARERRBESHEEIIB5BEE
THEE - AEDZTEZEHNEBRE
Hartmann &9t 2R QA RBHEEBMERD
R T2 - TSR R BB
B #9 AT 5 BUHIRR o

(c) HEEBEE

W2 EWRBEEN2012F1 81384 - K
ARMEEHREHEFENA183208BE
T MERGEERNBI7TI3EBET -
EEEZS SRR  NAFRENUKE B 5
EENAFEAZSEKBEER NN
201241 A1 BEAERAER -

(d) WRESIEHEARE
ARABRBZE2012F12A31BEFEESE
NeABEBELNBIBEEEMEERES - B
RATEGFHESHEERSIOEEEREN
B IRBEREEER » DRIERA
I E bR ATERR ©
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8. Business Combinations continued
(b) HL Operating Corp. doing business as Hartmann continued

The trade receivables comprise gross contractual amounts due of US$3.3 million, of
which US$0.1 million was expected to be uncollectible at the acquisition date.

If new information obtained within one year from the acquisition date about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date identifies adjustments to the above
amounts, or any additional provisions that existed at the acquisition date, then the
acquisition accounting will be revised.

Goodwill in the amount of US$13.5 million was recognized as a result of the acquisition.
The goodwill is attributable mainly to the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating
Hartmann into the Company’s existing business. None of the goodwill recognized is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

(c) Proforma results

If these acquisitions had occurred on January 1, 2012, the Company estimates that
consolidated net sales would have been approximately US$1,832.0 million, and consolidated
profit for the year would have been approximately US$171.3 million. In determining these
amounts, the Company has assumed that the fair value adjustments that arose on the date
of acquisition would have been the same if the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2012.

(d) Acquisition-related costs

The Company incurred approximately US$6.4 million in acquisition related costs during the
year ended December 31, 2012. Such costs are primarily comprised of costs associated with
due diligence and integration activities, as well as professional and legal fees, and are
recognized within other expenses on the income statement.



9. Y% - BERREFH

9. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

H28 - 3000 -
HEmE
RIERHAM
Machinery,
equipment,
leasehold
+ih #%F improvements “st
UFETZS Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Land Buildings and other Total
20125 2012
BN Cost:
20121818 At January 1, 2012 8,275 49,690 320,165 378,130
=T Additions 2,449 2,562 32,930 37,941
HE Disposals - (4,384) (38,248) (42,632)
ER HihBEH e Effect of movements in exchange rates/other 176 812 4,495 5,483
MA2012%128318 At December 31, 2012 10,900 48,680 319,342 378,922
ZIT T ERME : Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
20121818 At January 1, 2012 1,208 20,863 228,084 250,155
FRITE Depreciation for the year 24 3,148 28,598 31,770
HE Disposals - (4,377) (37,585) (41,962)
ER HthE e Effect of movements in exchange rates/other 23 498 2,614 3,135
M2012%12831H At December 31, 2012 1,255 20,132 221,711 243,098
BREE ¢ Carrying value:
M2012%F12A31H At December 31, 2012 9,645 28,548 97,631 135,824
R BB
HEYE
HEREM
Machinery,
equipment,
leasehold
T it #F  improvements st
UFETZS Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Land Buildings and other Total
20114 2011
BN Cost:
M2011E1818 At January 1, 2011 7,373 62,738 277,838 347,949
B Additions 85 513 36,574 37,172
HE Disposals - (16) (10,614) (10,630)
EX HMBE L Effect of movements in exchange rates/other 817 (13,545) 16,367 3,639
R2011%128318 At December 31, 2011 8,275 49,690 320,165 378,130
ZI T ERRMIE : Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
20111818 At January 1, 2011 - 7,544 215,623 223,167
FRITE Depreciation for the year - 1,508 28,650 30,158
HE Disposals = (11) (9,470) (9,481)
R HhB e Effect of movements in exchange rates/other 1,208 11,822 (6,719) 6,311
7201151283110 At December 31, 2011 1,208 20,863 228,084 250,155
SREE : Carrying value:
M20115F12H318 At December 31, 2011 7,067 28,827 92,081 127,975
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

9. V¥ RERRGFH4«
BZE2012F12831BK2011F 1283181k
FENTESEASA531.8EEXTR30.2
BEXT  EZZLEYP 2BEBEETR
ANBEBERSRIFTAEZE2012F12A318
201112831 A IEFENHEERD o &)
T2ERDHER —BRRITBEASZAZS] o &
ATER2013FE#ET72.6 B B = T E ARG
X HPHYNM3BEETE R20125F128
31 B o FiE B D RIHEA M it R K
REERE ©

R2012%F 128318 » MEEERED
RFE -

10. BEREMBEREE

(a) B™E

P2012F12831H K 20115128318 » &

ARMNEBERET AR A2144BEET

R 153.2B8 85 - AP MANFTSH o
B ZREENT :

9. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net continued

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011
amounted to US$31.8 million and US$30.2 million, respectively. Of this amount, US$5.2
million and US$4.1 million was included in cost of sales during the years ended December

31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. Remaining amounts were presented in

distribution and general and administrative expenses. The Company has authorized capital
expenditures of US$72.6 million in 2013, of which approximately US$11.3 million has been
committed as of December 31, 2012. All land owned by the Company is freehold.

No potential impairment indicators existed at December 31, 2012.

10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

(a) Goodwiill

As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Company’s goodwill balance
amounted to US$214.4 million and US$153.2 million, respectively, of which none is

deductible for income tax purposes.

The carrying amount of goodwill was as follows:

12A318
December 31,

KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
B Cost:

M1A1H At January 1 1,122,999 1,122,999

AE (KizEs) Additions (note 8) 61,144 =

M12A31H At December 31 1,184,143 1,122,999
ZTREEE ¢ Accumulated impairment losses:

MB1ERM12A31H At January 1 and at December 31 (969,787)  (969,787)
BREE : Carrying Amount: 214,356 153,212

The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwiill allocated to each operating segment were

T as follows:

M BUM LM T =M R
UFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia Europe  North America  Latin America Consolidated
#2012512A31H At December 31, 2012 153,212 - 61,144 = 214,356
20116128318 At December 31, 2011 153,212 = - - 153,212
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10. BEREMBLEE «
(a) B8 &

HRIE IAS B 365 &Rl E (IASEE3655%) »
AATFERSELBUN T RESEER
FAFEREEXAREAEETRSEE
TE 0 ERBRIR A RS TEE 2 R RTE

E‘I’Iﬁﬁ/migﬂi °
PMBEAEMS - HAARARRBE
BREECBEEN  BESBREARDAN

EESH (AREELEEMARNER) - B
BROIMERYZENHBZEH 2R
EEEBNAR
HRGEERNSARSELBVES
TE c ZENEEREEEENNIFHN
BIHALET - WEARRBSRETER - Bl
AEHNREREBNEABUKERET S
EEHNGEHEREES - TERRARAN
BEXRTEEBHARBZ ML AIND
ERRABER CBERE) AREE T
U
° 16% HIBRBIAT B IR R AN BB AR E

o RIBBEKEXENT FRAFATT DR
ERE

s HXBEEEZEI%NEERMBRE (HHE
FITHEM TR RE ) HH -

» REHEETRESNEAHEEFHE o

EEEEZE LANBRRRIEETRE

ZRARNEE LR - EEER R LATE

BRERNEMSENTERZ TS

EWRAMERRTKRESME BEESRE

TRRIFTER AR E R RRESELBHE - mE

Eﬂi"“E’JEﬂﬂiizigfﬁﬁ/m;ﬁiﬂﬂ%ﬁik

-

r:.ﬁ

10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued
(a) Goodwill continued

In accordance with IAS 36, Impairment of Assets (IAS 36), the recoverable amounts of
the Company’s CGUs with goodwill were determined using the higher of fair value less cost
to sell or value in use, which is determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows
generated from the continuing use of the unit.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Company’s operating
segments, comprised of groups of CGUs, as these represent the lowest level within the
Company at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. The
allocation is made to those CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose.

Separate calculations are prepared for each of the groups of CGUs that make up the
consolidated entity. These calculations use discounted cash flow projections based on
financial estimates reviewed by management covering a five year period. Cash flows beyond
the five year period are extrapolated using estimated growth rates appropriate for the
market in which the unit operates. The values assigned to the key assumptions represent
management’s assessment of future trends and are based on both external sources and
internal sources (historical data) and are summarized below.

e A pre-tax discount rate of 16% was used in discounting the projected cash flows.

e Segment cash flows were projected based on the historical operating results and the five
year forecasts.

e The terminal value is extrapolated using a constant long term growth rate of 3%, which
is consistent with the average growth rate for the industry.

e The sales prices were assumed to be a constant margin above cost.

Management has considered the above assumptions and valuation and has also taken
into account the business plans going forward. Management believes that any reasonably
foreseeable change in any of the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of goodwill to exceed the recoverable amount. Judgment is required to determine
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and the changes to key assumptions
can significantly affect these cash flow projections.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

10. HERRMEREE «

(b) HibEREE

(b) Other Intangible Assets

10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

Hit\E & E a4 Other intangible assets consisted of the following:
Hitn
EERE
EF#E% EHARE Total other
Customer Hith Total subject GES intangible
UFETZS Expressed in thousands of US Dollars relationships Other to amortization Tradenames assets
RS Cost:
A2011F1 818 At January 1, 2011 111,650 5,551 117,201 538,755 655,956
SMNEE RSB RE Effect of movement in foreign
currency exchange rate - - - (525) (525)
A2011%F12831B R At December 31, 2011 and
20121 81H January 1, 2012 111,650 5,551 117,201 538,230 655,431
NE Additions 3,600 170 3,770 56,400 60,170
INEE =SB E Effect of movement in foreign
currency exchange rate = = = 405 405
#2012%F12H318 At December 31, 2012 115,250 5,721 120,971 595,035 716,006
Z5H#e Accumulated amortization:
A2011F181H At January 1, 2011 (23,916) (3,744) (27,660) - (27,660)
FRE#H Amortization for the year (7,608) (725) (8,333) = (8,333)
A2011%F12831B R At December 31, 2011 and
20121 81H January 1, 2012 (31,524) (4,469) (35,993) - (35,993)
FRE#H Amortization for the year (7,758) (733) (8,491) = (8,491)
#20125%E12H31H At December 31, 2012 (39,282) (5,202) (44,484) - (44,484)
BREIE : Carrying amounts:
#2012%12H3185 At December 31, 2012 75,968 519 76,487 595,035 671,522
A2011%12831H At December 31, 2011 80,126 1,082 81,208 538,230 619,438
REEHEZEREEBENT ¢ The aggregate carrying amounts of each significant tradename were as follows:
American
Tourister®
TR American High Sierra® Hartmann® Hith RE
UFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars ~ Samsonite® Tourister® High Sierra® Hartmann® Other  Consolidated
M20115F1818 At January 1, 2011 462,459 69,969 - - 6,327 538,755
N Foreign exchange — — - - (525) (525)
MA20115%E12831H At December 31, 2011 462,459 69,969 - - 5,802 538,230
wE Additions - - 39,900 16,500 - 56,400
SNEE Foreign exchange - - - - 405 405
#2012%12H31H At December 31, 2012 462,459 69,969 39,900 16,500 6,207 595,035
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10. BEREMBEHREE
(b) HihMEEE &
HE20125F12831BK%20115E12 831
HLEFERFEEENREERAS A BE
EnxR83BEBEER REalaRT25A
DEERY - BE2012F 128318 LT —
EEFHARRBHEERGTASIBEET
8O0EBXET 80BEEX:T 80ABET "
7TEBETRHABERCAEEET
RIBIAS 53655 » 12 HIR(EfAIRE R AT RE
AW E BRE(EN S 4 IE R HR LR
AATEREEFHTEEEFLEENTY
e & F20128128318 K2011412
A318 L EEBERERR 0 BR2012F
12B318K% 2011512 A31 B EBHREE
EiE o

11. AR « Hib & EREBUWFRIE
(a) FERED
HitEE R EWFIBEERE

10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued
(b) Other Intangible Assets continued

Amortization expense for intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011 was US$8.5 million and US$8.3 million, respectively, and is presented
as a distribution expense in the consolidated income statement. Future amortization expense
as of December 31, 2012 for the next five years is estimated to be US$8.4 million, US$8.0
million, US$8.0 million, US$8.0 million, US$7.7 million and a total of US$36.4 million
thereafter.

In accordance with IAS 36, the Company is required to evaluate its intangible assets
with definite lives for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate
that their carrying amount might not be recoverable. As of December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011 there were no potential impairment indicators and there were no
accumulated impairment losses at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

11. Prepaid Expenses, Other Assets and Receivables
(a) Non-current
Other assets and receivables consisted of the following:

12A31H
December 31,
UFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
EZ Deposits 17,909 15,415
Hith Other 4,884 3,085
Hih g E R EWGIERALE Total other assets and receivables 22,793 18,500

(b) AE
AR REMRESEERBR—FAKE
S e

(b) Current
Prepaid expenses and other current assets are expected to be recoverable or expensed
within one year.

12. & 12. Inventories
FEEHE: Inventories consisted of the following:
128318
December 31,

UFETZ25 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
BT} Raw materials 14,715 14,952
2GR Work in process 1,820 1,804
BURL M Finished goods 260,981 220,201
BEE Total inventories 277,516 236,957
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FREMBBRRHE &
12. 58 & 12. Inventories continued
P E&EEEE The amounts above include the following:
128318
December 31,
KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
BAFEREERSIRZFE Inventories carried at fair value less costs to sell 69,850 47,561

HZE2012F12831 A% 2011512 831
BLEEE FEMBRZTSEFE (AFE
WHERAR) 2HB100EBETR66ES
Xt HE2012F12831AK20115F128
31HIEFE - REZPEROMIREE S Bl
B28EBENRKOIEEET  AATAE
HSRERGFTNEELSBEMEES -

13. FEWARTR R K fh FEUW IR

i B R B L At B W SRR Y 2 51 B HIBR R
20124128318 %2011 128318 9 &
IRAEEEREOR129BBETR1I3EEE

JC °

(a) BRESSHT

2012512831 B &20115612H8318 » 5
N\ FE U R R % L At FE Lt 30 T8 A9 BB U BR R (300
MRRREME) 2815211588 XK 1650
BEXT REZAHNKRRANOT :

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 the write-down
of inventories to net realizable value (fair value less costs to sell) amounted to US$10.0
million and US$6.6 million, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011 the reversal of write-downs recognized in profit or loss amounted to
US$2.8 million and US$0.3 million, respectively, where the Company was able to sell the
previously written down inventories at higher selling prices than previously estimated.

13. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are presented net of related allowances for doubtful accounts
of US$12.9 million and US$11.3 million as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively.

(a) Aging Analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
accounts) of US$211.5 million and US$165.0 million as of December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively, with the following aging analysis by invoice date:

12A31H
December 31,
HUFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
A Current 173,185 127,926
HHA Past Due 38,311 37,074
FEURBR TR ABRE Total trade receivables 211,496 165,000

FEMDREERNSTFHEEMRY -
R20125612A31 8 BRIRRH 92
AAREHMBIT60R M o
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Credit terms are granted based on the credit worthiness of individual customers. As of
December 31, 2012, trade receivables are on average due within 60 days from the date of
billing.
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13. Trade and Other Receivables continued

(b) Impairment of Trade Receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Company is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly. The Company does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

FARKBHESBAOT : The movement in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the year:

KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011

M1B1H At January 1 11,309 12,485

EERRERE Impairment loss recognized 1,861 806
EREIHERE Impairment loss written back (298) (1,982)
®W12A31H At December 31 12,872 11,309
14. B2 RIFEEFEY 14. Cash and Cash Equivalents

128310

December 31,

UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
RITHEER Bank balances 110,561 121,188
BHRE Short-term investments 40,838 20,071
HERBSEEYHRE Total cash and cash equivalents 151,399 141,259

BB EERREARBRFRERFR - B
20128128318 K%20115E128318 * &2
B A ELATAI R S 5 A RBR ] ©

Short-term investments are comprised of overnight sweep accounts and time deposits. As
of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 the Company had no restrictions on the use
of any of its cash.

15. BARfEiE 15. Share Capital and Reserves
R12A31H » RAEMT : As of December 31, share capital was as follows:
gl OldCo WEER
Ordinary shares Preference shares of OldCo

TR In thousands of shares 2012 2011 2012 2011
M®1B1H At January 1 1,407,137 2,143,395 - 78,000
BEERZDIEREREE Conversion of preference shares to Loan Notes - - - (78,000)
OldCo R DX & Contribution of OldCo shares - (2,143,395) - -
[@ OldCo HWIRRHEIEE A 1T Issuance of share capital to equity holders

R of OldCo - 1,286,037 - -
RERBERBWEIRSMEEST  Issued for cash upon Global Offering - 121,100 - -
M12B31H At December 31 1,407,137 1,407,137 - -
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15. BEAERfEiE o
HEREZ2011F12831HIEFER
2IRBE > FHEOMCoZBR ZEHEBA
BIARREEAZERDIERRATRITEZBE
BR2E HRASHRBEFNEATHEEH
#XH1286.0EBREBER - E—FHER
SEKE27 c RATRERERBERSLH
ENNI I EERENEBRR - XAFEW
BB IEAEE 1,756 0 BB T HER
RS A RITERTIE2253F5EX
Lo BE2011EFE12A3MBLEEE  AAFH
MAEBRRZEERA3TAEET ) HAF
SOEEBETHEFR EHRETER IS
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AEERCREBZE2011F12831BILEEE
ZEEENERAERARX °
HEZBREE  OldCo 780 ER
BEEREN2011F6A 100 EE Rk
DEREAREZEEARBERZE 2N
B - BEREEZ101.0BBETRERLERH
BEURQARKERBETREHESTBRZ
8RB — S EE -

(a) B
2012512831 B &20115128318 » &
AR FEH99,872,899,995 % K EB AR BATIR
#%.1,407,137,004 R B EE0.01 = THE
BATRBITENIZER
ZERFEABERAATDNEELR
BRET—Z - MEERTEBERIIEER
Zinfy o ARHEETEABRBROIE
K~ SRS ATE R ESR E DK ©

(b) EBSERH
() AEEER
7201181818 - OldCo# A 77,000,000%
BRO0IETHEE EBRITREITENA
HELK - 2HERITROMNBRREHME
ABBEERAFREROABBERIEE
AMEH AR 2 OldCo 2 B EIREEIT »
RERBARRTANRIREREAA
& > OldCo MR R T aesams 2 B S5
BEEABEE LR - RIBIASE325E - AFEE
ERBELEAERS IEABELERER
201146 8 10 B EE K8 o
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15. Share Capital and Reserves continued

In connection with the Global Offering during the year ended December 31, 2011, the
beneficial owners of the ordinary shares of OldCo contributed such shares to the Company
in consideration for the issue of ordinary shares in the Company, which, upon completion
of the reorganization prior to the Global Offering, totalled approximately 1,286.0 million
ordinary shares. Please refer to note 27 for further details. In the Global Offering,
approximately 121.1 million additional ordinary shares were offered and sold by the
Company. The Company received gross proceeds of HK$1,756.0 million corresponding to a
capital increase of US$225.3 million with the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. In connection with the transaction, the Company incurred costs amounting to
US$33.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, of which US$8.9 million were
related to the listing and issue of new shares and were recorded as a reduction of the
additional paid-in capital. The remaining costs of US$24.8 million were recognized as an
expense in the consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31, 2011.

In connection with the Global Offering, the 78.0 million preference shares of OldCo
were redeemed and cancelled on June 10, 2011 in consideration for the beneficial owners
of the preference shares receiving the Loan Notes. The US$101.0 million outstanding
balance of the Loan Notes were repaid utilizing a portion of the Company’s proceeds from
the sale of ordinary shares on completion of the Global Offering.

(a) Ordinary Shares
At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Company had 99,872,899,995 shares
authorized but unissued and 1,407,137,004 ordinary shares with par value of US$0.01 per
share issued and outstanding.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares in issue rank equally and in full for all dividends or other
distributions declared, made or paid on the shares in respect of a record date.

(b) Preference Shares

(i) Class A Preference Shares

At January 1, 2011, OldCo had 77,000,000 shares of US$0.01 par Class A preference shares
authorized, issued and outstanding. All issued shares were fully paid.

Class A preference shares were issued for a share premium which OldCo reserved
against for future distribution to holders of Class A preference shares. The controlling
shareholders of OldCo could not force a dividend or effect a redemption of the Class A
preference shares as a result of restrictions on the applicable shareholders’ deed as well as
Luxembourg company law. The Class A preference shares were classified as equity in
accordance with IAS 32. All Class A preference shares were redeemed and cancelled in on
June 10, 2011.
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15. Share Capital and Reserves continued

(b) Preference Shares continued

(ii) Class B Preference Shares

At January 1, 2011, OldCo had 1,000,000 shares of US$0.01 par Class B preference shares
authorized, issued and outstanding. All issued shares were fully paid.

Class B preference shares were entitled to an 8% cumulative return on the aggregate
amount of US$165.0 million compounded annually, which was allocated to a reserve for
Class B preference shareholders. Payment of the cumulative return would occur only upon
a liquidation or repurchase of the Class B preference shares. The controlling beneficial
shareholders of OldCo could not force a dividend or effect a redemption of the Class B
preference shares as a result of restrictions on the shareholders’ deed as well as Luxembourg
company law. The Class B preference shares were classified as equity in accordance with IAS
32. All Class B preference shares were redeemed and cancelled on June 10, 2011.

(c) Treasury Shares
There are no treasury shares held by the Company.

(d) Distributable Reserves
Details of the equity components of Samsonite International S.A. as included in the
consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are set

@D FENT o out below.
1
Reserves
REZER
(BEEE)
Retained
FEIMAARA earnings
[ Additional  (accumulated ERARE
UFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Share capital  paid-in capital deficit) Total Equity
M2011E181H At January 1, 2011 = -~ = =
BITRNERERBE Issuance of share capital in conjunction with
the Global Offering 14,071 971,091 - 985,162
EERBEFANRS KA Transaction costs associated with
the Global Offering - (8,899) - (8,899)
RRESE AELEE Loss attributable to equity holders - - (25,660) (25,660)
M2011FE12831B R At December 31, 2011 and
2012%181H January 1, 2012 14,071 962,192 (25,660) 950,603
A REEE AMEHB DR Distributions to equity holders - = (30,000) (30,000)
IRIESFE AELEE Loss attributable to equity holders - - (2,890) (2,890)
M2012%12831H At December 31, 2012 14,071 962,192 (58,550) 917,713

FHEEEBEERAR*EE20125F12
B31BR2011%12 831 B ILEENRER
BABMGGEERANERE D RAD B8 EHRE
BEEMN2IBEETR25.7TEBETERE °

R2012F 1283180 » A IREFED
B23EET  MHBEERERAE AR
B Rk FT R R ARIE AR A R M S EFR 4
BISTEBH -

* EREE

The consolidated profit attributable to the equity holders of Samsonite International
S.A. for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 included a loss of
US$2.9 million and US$25.7 million, respectively, which are dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

At December 31, 2012, distributable reserves amounted to approximately US$2.3
billion as shown in the statutory financial statements of Samsonite International S.A. and
calculated in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

*  For identification purposes only
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15. Share Capital and Reserves continued

(e) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations.

(f) Other Reserves
Other reserves comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.

(g) Non-controlling Interests
The Company currently operates in certain markets by means of majority-owned subsidiaries
that are operated in conjunction with a non-controlling partner in each country. Under these
arrangements, the Company contributes brands through trademark licensing agreements
and international marketing expertise and the partner contributes local market expertise. All
interests acquired were paid in full at the time of the acquisition and each of these
subsidiaries are operated on a self-financing basis. There are no current or future requirements
for the Company to contribute any further investment amount to any of these entities.

The agreements governing certain majority-owned subsidiaries include put and call
options whereby the Company may be required to acquire the respective non-controlling
interests at amounts intended to represent current fair value. As of December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, the financial liabilities recognized related to these put options were
US$45.0 million and US$29.5 million, respectively.

The call options were deemed to have a fair value of nil at each reporting date as the
agreements call for redemption at fair value upon the option being exercised.
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16. Earnings Per Share
(a) Basic
The calculation of basic earnings per share in the current period is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company, less the guaranteed return on
the previously outstanding Class B preference shares of OldCo.

The weighted average number of shares has been calculated as follows:

RO BTEBRD

ERBERBITROMMET
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HIARR 2 IFEF IR

RHESA AEEEA
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(b) #8

R B =20126F12831H R20115128
NHIEFEWEBEHET ABITES M
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() BEBRDIK
M2012F3H27H  XRAAEETEEE
FRI A D IR FEERNR2012F6 A 158 A
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HZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, except share and per share data 2012 2011
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the period 1,407,137,004  1,286,036,999
Weighted average impact of issuance of shares in

the Global Offering (note 6) - 66,024,386
Weighted average number of shares at end of the period 1,407,137,004 1,352,061,385
Profit attributable to the equity holders 148,439 86,748
Less earnings on Class B preference shares - (6,489)
Adjusted profit attributable to the equity holders 148,439 80,259
Basic earnings per share (Expressed in US Dollars per share) 0.11 0.06

In accordance with IAS 33, Earnings Per Share, the ordinary shares of the Company
outstanding prior to the Global Offering have been retroactively restated to the earliest
period presented. In conjunction with the listing of the Company’s shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on June 16, 2011, the Company issued 121.1 million
ordinary shares for HK$14.50 per share.

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share as there were no
outstanding dilutive instruments during the years ended December 31, 2012 and December
31, 2011.

(c) Dividends and Distributions
On March 27,2012, the Company’s Board of Directors recommended that a cash distribution
in the amount of US$30.0 million, or US$0.02132 per share, be made to the Company’s
shareholders of record on June 15, 2012 from its ad hoc distributable reserve. The
shareholders approved this distribution on June 7, 2012 at the annual general meeting and
the distribution was paid on July 6, 2012.

No other dividends or distributions were declared or paid during the year ended
December 31, 2012.
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RE M RRMIE &
17. BRRER 17. Loans and Borrowings
(a) FEmENGETS : (a) Non-current obligations:
128318

December 31,
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
RS ERIE Finance lease obligations 97 78
IR BN EA 23 BA1 K Less current installments 33 7
FERBERRMER Non-current loans and borrowings 64 71

20076 - RAFERTITLEAADEE
FIMB AR 0OEEETESHNRHE
AATERITIRM3B0EBETEAERIE
& o RATEIKEHBEMT 4R & ISR R B
ZE SR M2012F12831H K20114F
128318 RTERRESEFIHMEAR
BREBRIBI6 1 BEBETR27EESE
=

(b) MENEES

In 2007, the Company entered into an arrangement with a bank to provide funding in the
amount of US$33.0 million to the Company’s Chilean subsidiary. The Company provided
US$33.0 million to the bank to secure the debt. The Company has offset these amounts in
the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position. As of December 31, 2012
and December 31, 2011 the balance both on deposit with the bank and due on the loan to
the Chilean subsidiary was US$16.1 million and US$23.7 million, respectively.

(b) Current Obligations

RABWREEHMOT : The Company had the following current obligations:
128318
December 31,

UFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
RREERE Revolving Credit Facility 25,000 -
IERBMETS HIBENER 2 BRI FK Current installments of non-current obligations 33 7
HibE AREE Other lines of credit 10,297 15,008
MENEREEE Total current obligations 35,330 15,015
RIERE B E AL 2N Less deferred financing costs (3,096) (3,319)
BIHAE R R A Current loans and borrowings 32,234 11,696

AATETHB A BER LB
BNZEE=FERATLEERE - 258
EEEANB AR A EEBEEERMEE
Ed > BEEX HRITER RESmEN
RIRFRBEE - KEEEEADD BEX
R RELE - R20125128318 k20114
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Certain subsidiaries of the Company maintain credit lines with various third party
lenders in the regions in which they operate. These local credit lines provide working capital
for the day to day business operations of the subsidiaries, including overdraft, bank
guarantee, and trade finance and factoring facilities. The majority of these credit lines are
uncommitted facilities. The total aggregate amount outstanding under the local facilities
was US$10.3 million and US$15.0 million at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively. The unused available lines of credit amounted to US$51.9 million and US$59.6
million as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.
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17. Loans and Borrowings continued
(b) Current Obligations continued

On July 2, 2012, the Company increased its existing revolving credit facility (the
“Revolving Facility”) from US$100.0 million to US$300.0 million. The facility can be
increased by an additional US$100.0 million, subject to lender approval. The Revolving
Facility has an initial term of three years, with a one year extension available at the request
of the Company and at the option of the lenders. The interest rate on borrowings under the
Revolving Facility is the aggregate of (i) (a) LIBOR (or EURIBOR in the case of borrowings
made in Euro) or (b) the prime rate of the lender and (ii) a margin to be determined based
on the Company’s leverage ratio. The Revolving Facility carries a commitment fee of 0.175%
per annum on any unutilized amounts, as well as an agency fee. The Revolving Facility is
secured by certain assets in the United States and Europe, as well as the Company’s
intellectual property. The Revolving Facility also contains financial covenants related to
interest coverage and leverage ratios, and operating covenants that, among other things,
limit the Company’s ability to incur additional debt, create liens on its assets, and participate
in certain mergers, acquisitions, liquidations, asset sales or investments. The Company was
in compliance with the financial covenants as of December 31, 2012. At December 31,
2012 and December 31, 2011, US$25.0 million and US$0 were borrowed on the facility,
respectively. At December 31, 2012, US$269.0 million was available to be borrowed on the
Revolving Facility as a result of the US$25.0 million outstanding borrowing and the utilization
of US$6.0 million of the facility for outstanding letters of credit. At December 31, 2011,
US$82.4 million was available on the Revolving Facility as a result of the utilization of
US$17.6 million of the facility for outstanding letters of credit.

18. Employee Benefits
Employee benefits expense, which consists of payroll and other benefits, amounted to
US$215.0 million and US$201.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively. Of these amounts, US$20.4 million and US$20.9 million
was included in cost of sales during the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31,
2011, respectively. Remaining amounts were presented in distribution and general and
administrative expenses.

Average employee headcount worldwide was approximately 6,860 and 6,200 for the
years ending December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.
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18. Employee Benefits continued

(a) Long-Term Incentive Schemes

On September 14, 2012 the Company established a Share Award Scheme, as approved by
the shareholders, that entitles certain Directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries to be granted Company share options or restricted stock units (“RSUs"”). There
were no such options granted as of December 31, 2012. On January 8, 2013, the Company
granted 15,532,227 ordinary share options to certain directors, key management personnel,
and other employees. The exercise price of the options granted is HK$17.36. Such options
are subject to graded vesting over a 4 year period, with 25% of the options vesting on each
anniversary date of the grant and have a 10 year term.

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes

(i) Plan Descriptions

Certain subsidiaries of the Company have pension plans and post-retirement health benefit
plans which provide retirement benefits for eligible employees, generally measured by
length of service, compensation and other factors. The Company follows the recognition
and disclosure provisions of IAS 19, Employee Benefits (IAS 19). Under IAS 19, actuarial
gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. The measurement date for
all pension and other employee benefit plans is the Company’s fiscal year end.

A U.S. subsidiary of the Company sponsors a defined benefit retirement plan, the
Samsonite Employee Retirement Income Plan, that covers certain employee groups.
Retirement benefits are based on a final average pay formula. The Company also maintains
a supplemental retirement plan for certain management employees. These plans were
closed to new entrants effective January 1, 2010. Effective December 31, 2010, both plans
were frozen to future accruals.

A U.S. subsidiary of the Company also provides health care and life insurance benefits
to certain retired employees who meet certain age and years of service eligibility requirements.
The plan was closed to new entrants with regards to life insurance benefits effective January
1, 2009 and closed to new entrants with regards to medical benefits effective December 31,
2009. Eligible retirees are required to contribute to the costs of post-retirement benefits. The
Company’s other post-retirement benefits are not vested and the Company has the right to
modify any benefit provision, including contribution requirements, with respect to any
current or former employee, dependent or beneficiary. As of December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, the percentage of health insurance cost that the retiree must contribute
was 100%.
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18. Employee Benefits continued
(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(i) Plan Descriptions continued

A Belgium subsidiary of the Company sponsors a pre-pension defined benefit retirement
plan to certain employees who meet certain age and years of service eligibility requirements.
Benefits are calculated based on a final pay formula and are contributed until the employee
reaches the legal retirement age.

The U.S. plans are administered by trustees, which are independent of the Company,
with their assets held separately from those of the Company. These plans are funded by
contributions from the Company in accordance with an independent actuary’s
recommendation based on annual actuarial valuations. The latest independent actuarial
valuations of the plans were as of December 31, 2012 and were prepared by independent
qualified actuaries, who are members of the Society of Actuaries of the United States of
America, using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial valuations indicate that the
Company’s obligations under these defined benefit retirement plans are US$243.5 million
and US$242.5 million as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively,
which are 77.5% and 75.4% funded by the plan assets held by the trustees at December
31,2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

(ii) Amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position

12A31H
December 31,

UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011

RBERIEZRE Present value of unfunded obligations (16,325) (13,730)
R EREREZRE Present value of partly funded obligations (240,860)  (228,723)
TEEECAYE Fair value of plan assets 188,807 182,728
RAESEERAE Net pension liability (68,378) (59,725)
STEIEEMELE 2 KRR Experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities 7,354 (2,660)
STEIEEMEE 2 KBARE Experience adjustments arising on plan assets (7.384) (1,089)

BRSEEFHEURAGREMHEMRRRIIE
ERFIF o HARD TR {2 H Uk T
RETERERR » MAQARMEAEIRE
ERFEE o

FMBHEEERR—FEEE R
> HRARRMRERF BBTIRE RS
URBEEBERR TR AREEME  Hit
TEBESZEREERR T BB 2B
BEABERRE - RNAFBEFR2013FE MR K
SRENRERIGRBENR176BEETRK
#2014FE2017F  BENF164BEE
TE173EBET ©

The net pension liability is recorded in employee benefits in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Company does not have net unrecognized actuarial losses as the
Company recognizes all actuarial gains and losses in other comprehensive income.

A portion of the above liability is expected to be settled after more than one year.
However, it is not practicable to segregate the amount from the amounts payable in the
next twelve months, as future contributions will also relate to future services rendered,
future changes in actuarial assumptions and market conditions. The Company estimates
that the benefit payments for the pension and post-retirement benefits will be approximately
US$17.6 million during 2013 and between US$16.4 million and US$17.3 million each year
from 2014 through 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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18. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(i) Amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of financial

IE & position continued
BRASEEFHOTHAT The net pension liability is shown below:
2012%12A318
December 31, 2012
EEBR AR FLFIBHE K
XEBRhE EF EF
2F US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement @t
KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
EREEAREZRE Present value of the defined benefit obligation (243,515) (2,511) (11,159)  (257,185)
FEIEEATYE Fair value of plan assets 188,807 - - 188,807
FaE Net liability (54,708) (2,511) (11,159) (68,378)
2011%12A31H
December 31, 2011
EEBRINE EE R BFR A
ZERINE &F =F
B/ US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
ERENREZEE Present value of the defined benefit obligation (231,157) (2,510) (8,786)  (242,453)
FSEIEEAYE Fair value of plan assets 182,728 - - 182,728
FaE Net liability (48,429) (2,510) (8,786) (59,725)
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18. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations

H=2012412A318L5FE
Year ended December 31, 2012
EER KR FLFIBFIR K
EEBRhE =F BF
&7 US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
BRAESE Change in benefit obligation:
R1 A1 B ZBRIEE Benefit obligation at January 1 231,157 2,510 8,786 242,453
RS A AR Service cost - - 437 437
FAIJSE%:N Interest cost 9,838 102 403 10,343
sTEISEE MR Plan participants’ contributions - 274 - 274
BEER Actuarial loss 32,102 292 1,890 34,284
BAEF Benefits paid (29,582) (667) (567)  (30,816)
SMEFE Foreign exchange adjustments - - 210 210
RW12A31 8 2@ARIE Benefit obligation at December 31 243,515 2,511 11,159 257,185

HZE201MF12A318LEFE
Year ended December 31, 2011

ZERARE b BFR AR

EEEKRSE & B&FI

=/ US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement #st
UFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total

BRAERE Change in benefit obligation:

A1 81 B 2 ERIEE Benefit obligation at January 1 223,321 2,390 9,037 234,748
BR#% AR 7R Service cost - - 445 445
FE R A Interest cost 11,075 116 432 11,623
sTEISEE M Plan participants’ contributions = 873 = 873
BE (k=) BE Actuarial (gain) loss 13,819 314 (191) 13,942
BAHER Benefits paid (17,058) (1,183) (642)  (18,883)
SN FAEE Foreign exchange adjustments - - (295) (295)
M12831 8 2@REE Benefit obligation at December 31 231,157 2,510 8,786 242,453
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

REMBRRME &
18. EEEH = 18. Employee Benefits continued
(b) EBARSHEIRTEHEBNE & (b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(iv) sHEIEEZSH (iv) Movement in Plan Assets
BE201246 120318155
Year ended December 31, 2012
EEBR AR FLFIBF
EEBR*E =F BIRER
&7 US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement @st
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
EEESE ! Change in plan assets:
B1B1EZEB8IEEZQAFE  Fair value of plan assets at January 1 182,728 - - 182,728
FTEIEE 2 AR EIR Expected return on plan assets 9,743 - - 9,743
RIS E 2 BE W& Actuarial gain on plan assets 7,384 - - 7,384
EEMHIK Employer contributions 18,534 393 567 19,494
FTEIZEE MR Plan participants’ contributions - 274 - 274
EAER Benefits paid (29,582) (667) (567)  (30,816)
MW12A31B25tEIEEZAFE Fair value of plan assets at December 31 188,807 - - 188,807
HZE2011F12831 A LFE
Year ended December 31, 2011
XEIRARE (ol |55
XEEKRE &R RIRER
=/ US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
TEIEESE ! Change in plan assets:
M1B1AZEtEIEEZ2AFE  Fair value of plan assets at January 1 157,624 - - 157,624
FTEIEE 2 TEREIR Expected return on plan assets 8,303 - - 8,303
RS E 2 BE WS Actuarial gain on plan assets 1,089 -~ = 1,089
EEMHR Employer contributions 32,770 310 642 33,722
sTEISEE MR Plan participants’ contributions = 873 = 873
EEF Benefits paid (17,058) (1,183) (642) (18,883)
M12A31B 25T E8IEEZAFE Fair value of plan assets at December 31 182,728 - - 182,728
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18. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(v) Net actuarial gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income

Y (R518)
#F2012512A3181LEE

Year ended December 31, 2012

EERKE LEFIRE

EEEKE it BkaET

#&=F US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement @t
UFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
MBI 2R £58 Cumulative amount at January 1 91,579 (3,129) (48) 88,402
FrREEER Net actuarial loss 24,718 293 1,818 26,829
M12A31 A2 &5t &8 Cumulative amount at December 31 116,297 (2,836) 1,770 115,231

HZE201MF12A318LEE

Year ended December 31, 2011

ZEERE (a3

ZEEKS B BIRER

B/ US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement #st
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
MBI 2Rt £58 Cumulative amount at January 1 78,848 (3,443) 111 75,516
FEE (&) B5i8 Net actuarial (gain) loss 12,731 314 (159) 12,886
M12B31B 285 £58 Cumulative amount at December 31 91,579 (3,129) (48) 88,402
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

18. EEEH =

(vi) REEWERPHERZHX

(b) BASFTEIRERBHEE 2

18. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

(vi) Expenses recognized in the consolidated income statement

#F20125£12A3181LEE
Year ended December 31, 2012
EERKE LEFIRE
EEBRHKE Lt BkEs
&7 US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement @st
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
BRA% A AN Service cost - - 437 437
FIE AR AR Interest cost 9,838 102 403 10,343
FTEIEE 2 AR EIR Expected return on plan assets (9,743) - - (9,743)
EE R Amortization of net loss - - 103 103
FEHIE AR A4 EE Total net periodic benefit cost 95 102 943 1,140
BZE201MFE12A318LLEE
Year ended December 31, 2011
XERARE {53
ZEERKE Ep| BIKER
LR US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
KUFETZS] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
BR 3% AR AR Service cost - - 445 445
B RA Interest cost 11,075 116 432 11,623
FTEIEE 2 FBHAE 3R Expected return on plan assets (8,303) - - (8,303)
RN a1 G Amortization of net gain - - (32) (32)
B EA K AR Total net periodic benefit cost 2,772 116 845 3,733

REFEWERT - BISIRUT IHE R

The expense is recognized in the following line items in the consolidated income statement:

BE12A31HLEFE

Year ended December 31,

UFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
—MERATERIX General and administrative expenses 1,137 2,231
HAhpx Other expenses 3 1,502

1,140 3,733

RIS BIEEADF B A E KR
WREAR (AREERSENERLA
(TERSBRAERAT]) B1993FHE -
HERSEZHHARQTERE) UEEETE
REMEZEENEMBARBER ° 81993
FHl > ZrT B BEAEFLAF (RATRAE

—EB40) B —AB4D ©
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Pension expense included in other income and expense relates to the actuarial
determined pension expense associated with the pension plans of two companies unrelated
to the Company’s current operations whose pension obligations were assumed by the
Company as a result of a 1993 agreement with the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation
(the “PBGC"). The plans were part of a controlled company of corporations of which the
Company was a part of, prior to 1993.
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18. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

(vii) Actuarial assumptions used

EEIRARE L F B
XERRE Rl BIRER
Ll US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits
20124 2012
AERERI12A318 2EF Weighted average assumptions used to
FRAE 2 IR B - determine benefit obligations as of
Hep: December 31:
ARIR = Discount rate 3.48% 3.48% 3.00%
HELRE Rate of compensation increase TEANA  TEANA =
Bt LiRZE Rate of price inflation TEANA  FEANA -
AEAEREZ12A31BILEEZ Weighted average assumptions used to
TR IEHARE AR A 2 iR 2 determine net periodic benefit cost for
R Hep e the year ended December 31:
ARIR 2 Discount rate 4.42% 4.42% 4.75%
EEZRBRABIHRE Expected long-term rate of return on assets 6.40%  FEANA  FEANA
HEERE Rate of compensation increase TEANA  FEANA -
20114 2011
BERER12A318 2 &R Weighted average assumptions used to
RYE 2 INREFITERE determine benefit obligations as of
Hrep: December 31:
BRIR Discount rate 4.42% 4.42% 4.75%
HEBRE Rate of compensation increase - TEANA -
B LHR=E Rate of price inflation TEANA  TEANA 2.00%
AERESBZ12A31BILEEZ Weighted average assumptions used to
B E BRRE R B AR 2 A S 39 B determine net periodic benefit cost for
CE - the year ended December 31:
BEIR = Discount rate 5.16% 5.16% 4.38%
EEZEHARERE Expected long-term rate of return on assets 6.30% FEANA TEANA
HELBRE Rate of compensation increase - TERANA =

REBEFEMS - ARDEEZERARR
HEHRER6.4% - HHRHEHERIRAE
SEEMIEELNEERBND RS TTHIAZR
& o ZERIERBEDREE B AREH
£ - FHRHERERTI A RRA R E R
R ERE . REES 2T HRR=R
HEREMETHRBRR - REAQANRE
FEt R BER - R ZEHRER - EA T
FREFHRPNEOENBEEEE -
20125128318 R201ME12A31B W&
ENBEREREDFIR11%K8% °

The Company’s overall expected long-term rate of return on assets is 6.4% for the U.S.
plans. The expected long-term rate of return is based on the portfolio as a whole and not
on the sum of the returns on individual asset categories. The return is based exclusively on
historical returns, without adjustments. The expected long-term rate of return is a long-term
assumption which reflects the Company’s best estimate of the average rate of earnings
expected on funds invested to provide for the projected plan obligations. In assessing this

rate, appropriate consideration was given to the returns achieved in recent years as well as

returns expected to be achieved in the long-term, based on the Company’s investment
guidelines and objectives. The actual rate of return on assets for December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011 was 11% and 8%, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

18. Employee Benefits continued
(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(vii) Actuarial assumptions used continued

The discount rate is based on a high-grade bond yield curve under which benefits were
projected and discounted at spot rates along the curve. The discount rate was then
determined as a single rate yielding the same present value.

For post-retirement benefit measurement purposes, a 7.7% annual rate of increase in
the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for the year ended
December 31, 2012. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 4.5% for the year
ended December 31, 2028 and remain at that level thereafter.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported
for the post-retirement health care plans. A one percentage point change in assumed health
care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

2012 2011

H#h01% RWP1% EH1%
1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase

B %
1% decrease

RIS R A S A E AR DD

Effect on total of service and

HRE o S interest cost components 1 1) 1 (1)
HRINBERRIE 2 S& Effect on post retirement benefit obligation 19 (19) 15 (15)

FEREAAE (FZEEARFEEE
Rit 2 B AiEESRE R B EREEENET
RERE) 2RZER2012F12A8318 K
201112831 B 25t ElEE 2D F{E68.2
BEETKS.7TABET ©

(vii) SEIR A EFBHFEEZATHEEE
ERENE

The estimated benefit obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits attributed to
employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement date without
considering future compensation levels), exceeded the fair value of plan assets as of
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 by US$68.2 million and US$59.7 million,
respectively.

(viii) Fair values of the assets held by the U.S. pension plan by major asset category

2012%12A318
December 31, 2012

BESER

Targeted AFE
allocation Fair value

(F£7T)
(US$’000)
peE Equity -%-40% 18,409
[& 7E W & Fixed Income -%-100% 111,566
EEN Asset allocation 20%-40% 57,405
Hith Other -%-10% 1,427
st Total 100% 188,807
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18. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

(viii) Fair values of the assets held by the U.S. pension plan by major

asset category continued

2011128318
December 31, 2011

BES

Targeted NFE

allocation Fair value

(FE7)

(US$°000)

peRE Equity —%-40% 28,692
Eijallvé Fixed income —%-100% 102,687
BEESER Asset allocation 20%-40% 46,986
Hth Other —%-10% 4,363
5t Total 100% 182,728

EESERNEENETEEEREEE
BERERRNTEEHREERHESNTE
HmMEE - EES B2 ENEHER - Eks
RAAEEFRERRERMREBENBES
BREAER -

ZET BN HABER BIRE R AT SRS
REER/FRBEENFEMERERNR
18 o FA2013%F > FHH M EREENRE - £H
RINBEFIR LR B st BlR M R R AR E
RABNHSSEEET 03EEERLK
0.6EEZETT °

(ix) E=&EHR

The asset allocation targets are set with the expectation that the plan’s assets will fund
the plan’s expected liabilities with an appropriate level of risk. Expected returns, risk and
correlation among asset classes are based on historical data and input received from our

investment advisors.

The funding policy for the plans is to contribute amounts sufficient to meet minimum
funding requirements as set forth in employee benefit and tax laws. In 2013, the minimum

requirement expected to be contributed is approximately US$8.8 million, US$0.3 million
and US$0.6 million to the U.S. pension, U.S. post-retirement and Belgium plans, respectively.

(ix) Historical Information

128318
December 31,

KUFETZ25 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
EREAREZHRE Present value of the defined benefit

obligation (257,185) (242,453) (234,748) (234,485) (232,427)
FTEEEZATE Fair value of plan assets 188,807 182,728 157,624 134,724 131,284
FEE Net liability (68,378)  (59,725)  (77,124) (99,761)  (101,143)
STEIBEMELEZERFE  Experience adjustments arising on

plan liabilities 7,354 (2,660) 9,897 1,332 5,337
SEIEERELZERFE  Experience adjustments arising on

plan assets (7,384) (1,089) 2,675 9,277 (59,161)
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18. Employee Benefits continued
(c) Samsonite LLC's US Pension Plan Settlement Agreement

Samsonite LLC (a U.S. subsidiary of the Company) and the PBGC are party to a Settlement
Agreement, under which PBGC was granted an equal and ratable lien in the amount of
US$19.0 million on certain domestic assets of Samsonite LLC and certain of its U.S.
subsidiaries (excluding any equity interests in subsidiaries and any inventory or accounts
receivable of Samsonite LLC or its U.S. subsidiaries), together with Samsonite’s intellectual
property rights in the U.S. and Samsonite’s rights under licenses of such intellectual property
to affiliates or third parties. The PBGC's lien is equal and ratable with the lien granted over
such assets to Samsonite’s senior secured lenders. Other provisions of the agreement restrict
the transfer of U.S. assets outside of the ordinary course of business. The Company is in
compliance with these requirements as of December 31, 2012.

The agreement will expire upon (a) the Company obtaining investment grade status on
its senior unsecured debt, (b) the date the plan has no unfunded benefit liabilities for two
consecutive plan years, (c) the date on which the Company becomes part of a controlled
company whose unsecured debt has investment grade status, or (d) the date the plan is
successfully terminated.

19. Commitments

(a) Capital Commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 not
recognized as liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position, as they do not
meet the recognition criteria, include the following amounts:

128318
December 31,
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
2514 Contracted for 11,326 2,460
EREER RN Authorized but not contracted for 61,274 40,523
BEARRIEBEE Total capital commitments 72,600 42,983
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19. Commitments continued

(b) Operating Lease Commitments

The Company’s lease obligations primarily consist of non-cancellable leases of office,
warehouse and retail store space and equipment. As of December 31, 2012 and December
31, 2011, future minimum payments under non-cancellable leases were as follows:

128318
December 31,
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
—FR Within one year 59,373 53,074
18226 1-2 years 47,743 41,808
2E55F 2-5 years 78,421 81,804
SELLE More than 5 years 21,830 24,063
EIEHERIEREE Total operating lease commitments 207,367 200,749

ARATARBESE THLY - ETHL
TEERERERNSEFEEMESHAE
& FIRER - HUBESERAR RS o

HZE2012FK%2011F12A31HILFE »
ISR A IR EREE THESHX S
BB 2 EBEAR/A0EEET - ETEE
FAEIRMERHER 2 L WERIMNERTES - B
Z20125 128318 K201 128318 1k F
B hEEMNENEESIBB20BEETR
28FHBET  HEEWHEERX -
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A2 EE Lankhorst Pure Composites B.V. i &
RTHEMBRARDRER CunPERIREEE
EmI T RS RSN ERAAZE R R
fi# o SEARPRRABHRE » NDBMDHFERE
s REFNZEES A » BB RIEE
A EF AL B AR RGE T FHRER

BZE2012F12A31BLEEE - £AAF
I R FYE AT E At B KERFA ©

Certain of the leases are renewable at the Company’s option. Certain of the leases also
contain rent escalation clauses that require additional rents in later years of the lease term,
which are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rental expense under cancellable and non-cancellable operating leases amounted to
US$83.2 million and US$74.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Certain of the retail leases provide for additional rent payments based on a
percentage of sales. These additional rent payments amounted to US$2.9 million and
US$2.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively,
and are included in rent expense.

20. Contingent Liabilities

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to various forms of litigation and
legal proceedings. The facts and circumstances relating to particular cases are evaluated in
determining whether it is more likely than not that there will be a future outflow of funds
and, once established, whether a provision relating to specific litigation is sufficient. The
Company records provisions based on its past experience and on facts and circumstances
known at each reporting date. The provision charge is recognized within general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement. When the date of the
incurrence of an obligation is not reliably measureable, the provisions are not discounted
and are classified in current liabilities.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company reached an amicable
settlement with Lankhorst Pure Composites B.V. with regard to the proceedings that were
pending in relation to the ownership of the patents relating to the process used by the
Company to manufacture products using Curv® material. While the terms of the settlement
are confidential, the Company remains full owner of the patents at issue in the dispute, and
the settlement does not impact in any way the Company’s right to utilize its manufacturing
process.

The Company did not settle any other significant litigation during the year ended
December 31, 2012.
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21. FEMIRAR R H BB RIA

21. Trade and Other Payables

128318
December 31,
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
ERFE Accounts payable 268,588 212,974
HitEFE R E A Other payables and accruals 85,074 66,953
HAebpENFiE Other tax payables 8,826 6,633
R ERR R B EATRIEARE Total trade and other payables 362,488 286,560

BZE2012F12A31BILEE  #IEBERE
MEAER BHE201MF128318 LF
E CEREIEEETEAEBR  URB
BT B BRFEER2000F SAEKEM
EEM{ESHEBITANTR °

No restructuring charges were recognized during the year ended December 31, 2012. For
the year ended December 31, 2011, US$0.9 million of restructuring charges were reversed
to reflect a refund from certain local governmental agencies for upfront employee related
payments made in connection with restructuring initiatives in 2009.

Included in accounts payable are trade payables with the following aging analysis as of

EAFRESEEMERR  EN®EHZ  the reporting dates:
BREC DATOT ¢
12RA31H
December 31,

UFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
BNER Current 200,927 158,067
BIER Past Due 24,322 10,163
PR ERFRAARR Total trade payables 225,249 168,230

2012512 831 B WERBRFFEHR
BHEZH TR 105 B R ZIES -

22. €M TH

(a) FRIEMIEEER
TREENRAEERAEERR - RS
B BEAEERBEENT :

Trade payables as of December 31, 2012 are on average due within 105 days from the
invoice date.

22. Financial Instruments

(a) Exposure to Credit Risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

128318
December 31,
KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
B 5 Rk HbERIE Trade and other receivables 222,159 171,552
ReRkReZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 151,399 141,259
INEREIEH Foreign currency forward contracts - 6,448
373,558 319,259
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22. 2fTH & 22. Financial Instruments continued

(a) FEMEERERE # (a) Exposure to Credit Risk continued
RIER - ZHEEE SIS Z EBERR The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by
WRAEERMIER : geographic region was:
12A31H
December 31,
UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
M Asia 73,279 63,980
&M Europe 49,103 47,068
16 =M North America 67,462 36,582
FLTEM Latin America 21,652 17,370
R ER R ABRE Total trade receivables 211,496 165,000
(b) RIBHIRENIESEMR (b) Exposure to Liquidity Risk
TTERETESHERE (BEGTTEMFIE  The following are the contractual maturities of derivative and non-derivative financial
370 HWENEI BRI T ¢ liabilities, including estimated interest payments.
2012%F12A318
December 31, 2012
REE SYHRESRE DR1E SELLE
Carrying  Contractual Less than 12245 2FE55 More than
HUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years

ESTELBERE ©  Non-derivative financial

liabilities:
FETBRRAR Trade and other
Hth T FRIE payables 362,488 362,488 362,488 - - -
REREE Revolving Facility 25,000 25,000 25,000 - - -
HifEEREE Other lines of credit 10,297 10,297 10,297 - - -
RIXEE Minimum operating
HERIE lease payments - 207,367 59,373 47,743 78,421 21,830
INEREIEH Foreign currency forward
contracts:
afE Liabilities 1,694 95,799 95,799 - - -
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22. &R TR a 22. Financial Instruments continued
(b) RiBEWRENE SR & (b) Exposure to Liquidity Risk continued
20114128318
December 31, 2011
IREE SHNRERE DR1E SEUE
Carrying Contractual Less than 1&22%F 2E5% More than
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
FELTESBEME ©  Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
FEFBRRR Trade and other
H A FIE payables 286,560 286,560 286,560 - - -
BEMEE5E Other lines of credit 15,008 15,008 15,008 - - =
REEE Minimum operating
HENE lease payments - 200,749 53,074 41,808 81,804 24,063
INERELN - Foreign currency forward
contracts:
&= Assets 6,448 82,246 82,246 - - -
af& Liabilities 776 9,353 9,353 - - -
TRERHEBSREBY HWITETAES The following table indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with
BENIRERETES EIE S WEIRT o derivatives that are cash flow hedges, are expected to occur and impact profit or loss.
IREE FEAHRSRE DR1E SEME
Carrying Expected Less than 1226 2855 More than
UFETZ25] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
2012%12H31H : December 31, 2012:
af& Liabilities 1,694 95,799 95,799 - - -
20114128318 : December 31, 2011:
BE Assets 6,448 82,246 82,246 - - -
=L Liabilities 776 9,353 9,353 - - -
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22. €M TH «

(o) FRIEEVE RS
AARERTERAERBRNEEN GRS
B HAQNAUBREARLREAZEN
BRRIMERBIT

22. Financial Instruments continued
(c) Exposure to Currency Risk

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arising from the currencies that more

significantly affect the Company’s financial performance was as follows based on notional

amounts of items with largest exposure:

2012512A318

December 31, 2012
EXTT ARH
Euro Renminbi
(FET) (AR®TRT)
(Euro’000) (RMB’000)
/e Cash 40,850 88,563
FEUWR AR TR R ELAth FELUN R IE - JFRE Trade and other receivables, net 35,848 90,258

REIEER (BA) 78
FES BRI E AR

Intercompany receivables (payables)
Trade and other payables

(10,916) (6,731)
(44,214) (93,841)

BAFEAR R 3R LB Statement of financial position exposure 21,568 78,249
201145128318
December 31, 2011
BT ARY
Euro Renminbi
(F&T) (AR%T )
(Euro’000) (RMB'000)
Be Cash 19,255 54,215
FEURBRFN R H b FEUN FRIE - SBEE Trade and other receivables, net 34,492 83,430
ARIEEW () K8 Intercompany receivables (payables) (5,885) =

FE{FERFR Trade payables 28,568 (72,965)
BISARR R E R Statement of financial position exposure 76,430 64,680
RERERANEREZMNT : The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:
FHER HEAAHER

Average rate Reporting date spot rate

2012 2011 2012 2011
56 Euro 1.2911615 1.4000146 1.3197 1.2957
AR Renminbi 0.1587069 0.1547979 0.16051 0.1588800
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22. &fiTR #
(d) SMERBEDH
BT RETHEIONEDRSEE20125F
12831 B% 2011412 B31 B ILEERER
EM33EEBETRI2EEERT  BARIS
M2012% 128318 R2011EF128318 &
RERIEMN22 8EEETTR22.1BEET ° %
APMBRAEEMASREE (LHEFIZE)
HETE - BTiRE10% S E & PENE
FRANEREBNEREESEBERN
2o

AR EETHEIO, @ EE2012
F£128318K2011412 831 B ILFERE
gD BEM 1 BEEETRIIEERT
RR2012F 12831 A K2011F128318H
BRI/ EEXRTIR22BEES
T ZAMBRAEEMASER (LHR
FIR) #RFTE o ARMRE10% BE7ZH
B ERRRLEREANEEEESSE
HERHRE -

(e) Rk
ADTH B EMT ARABRRMT :

22. Financial Instruments continued

(d) Foreign Currency Sensitivity Analysis

A strengthening of the Euro by 10% against the US Dollar would have increased profit for
the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 by US$3.3 million and US$3.2
million, respectively, and increased equity as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011
by US$22.8 million and US$22.1 million, respectively. The analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. A 10% weakening in the Euro would
have an equal but opposite impact to profit for the period and equity as of these reporting
dates.

If the Renminbi had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar profit would have
increased for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 by US$2.1
million and US$1.1 million, respectively, and equity as of December 31, 2012 and December
31, 2011 would have increased by US$2.7 million and US$2.2 million, respectively. The
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. A 10%
weakening in the Renminbi would have an equal but opposite impact to profit for the
period and equity as of these reporting dates.

(e) Interest Rate Profile
The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments was:

128318
December 31,
HUFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
EETIAR: Fixed rate instruments:
EWMEE Financial assets - =
SRIBE Financial liabilities - =
FETIER: Variable rate instruments:
SRIEE Financial assets 40,838 20,071
EHas Financial liabilities (35,394) (15,008)
5,444 5,063

(f) AFEEREEZLE
FEEREEREBND PEEERAEEE

4

A"
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(f) Fair Value Versus Carrying Amounts
All financial assets and liabilities have fair values that approximate carrying amounts.



22. &M TR

(9) AFEZEREE

AFERRFTEATESHEENERFERS

PHESEAWBREEEEEXTHE

¥ o IFRS B —EATFHEEREE - 228

I AUSTEAFEZMERERAERZ

BESR - ZEREBHTHERT S HE

AEESEBZALARRERS SR (5B

—WAIFE)  URSREATATERE&H

AERWERESER (B=4BITE)

AFESHREBH=(EHRBMOT :

s E—RABIMABIBEARATEENNE
BiHEM =2 ER 2 EESR B ENERT
B2 HRE (RAE) »

o MBI A BB AT EIEE —RBIHER
BENEESEENTEERBERRZH
ABE -

s BE=LRIMABIBEAEEREBENTIH
R ABE o

ATEFEEATESRERTZER
PEDERHATESNEEEMEBEAZ
BRIEER@ASE

HARBESRIASEEY - BURERR - &

RIE - EREEREEZNEEARE

HEYE > Hit ST A ZIREEEAFE

B o

INEREIENN A FERBSZRITR
BT IBHRET o

22. Financial Instruments continued

(g) Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. IFRSs establish

a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair

value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to

measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three

levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its entirety falls
is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts payable,
short-term debt, and accrued expenses approximates fair value because of the short maturity
or duration of these instruments.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is estimated by reference to market
quotations received from banks.
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22. &M TR
(9) AFEFREE &
T &R 252012128318 k2011

22. Financial Instruments continued
(g) Fair Value Hierarchy continued

The following table presents assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a

F12A3BRFEELEUDNFEFTEMNE  recurring basis (including items that are required to be measured at fair value) as of December

EREE (BESAEULFEFENEE) :

31, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

RREHEATIRIETENATE
Fair value measurements at reporting date using

28R
EENERE
TIBHRE HipTHz
(SE—4R5) EXEABR AOTERE
Quoted prices (B=4RR) PN PN G
in active Significant (B=85A)
20124 markets for other Significant
12A318 identical observable  unobservable
December 31, assets inputs inputs
LTFETZS Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EE Assets:

RERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 151,399 151,399 - -
mEE Total assets 151,399 151,399 - -
=N Liabilities:

IMERERE R Foreign currency forward contracts 1,694 1,694 - -
mes Total liabilities 1,694 1,694 - -

RBEREATIISEFENAFE
Fair value measurements at reporting date using
F2AEE
BEENER HAth A] #5752
5 HRE EPNPN ¢ REIE kS
(SE—#31) (SE=#3) EPN PNt
Quoted prices Significant (BE=45)
20114 in active other Significant
12A31H markets for observable unobservable
December 31, identical assets inputs inputs
UTFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BE Assets:

BERBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 141,259 141,259 = =

INESRER S H Foreign currency forward contracts 6,448 6,448 = =
BEE Total assets 147,707 147,707 - -
=L Liabilities:

INEREER Foreign currency forward contracts 776 776 - -
waE Total liabilities 776 776 - -

DNFEMGFIRE-BERBRIEEEH
MEENKRUBTENERMEL » Z5 5T
MEFER SR I EERERAFEHERS
o EGEEEREE o RROEMEE
HEHMETERERTE -

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market
information and information about the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective
in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore
cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.
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(9) AFEEHRTE =

RAFE T I BB A RERART L B2
BIXrEUETHENGERREWERREN |
WEEBRSREL W - ¥PEREIRIE
IS5 2@ T A - AR ERE - R
2012512831 B R20115E 128310 » WET
BENAFESAEEBI 7TAEETKROSES
£ REEOETR6AEERET °

22. Financial Instruments continued
(g) Fair Value Hierarchy continued

Certain non-U.S. subsidiaries of the Company periodically enter into forward contracts
related to the purchase of inventory denominated primarily in USD which are designated as
cash flow hedges. The hedging effectiveness was tested in accordance with IAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The fair value of these instruments was a
liability of US$1.7 million and US$0.8 million and an asset of US$0 and US$6.4 million, as
of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

23. Fifa# 23. Income Taxes
(a) REFEWIERPHIBIE (a) Taxation in the Consolidated Income Statement
128310
December 31,
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
AHB R X — BBFIEH ¢ Current tax expense — Hong Kong Profits Tax:
NHAHARS Current period (2,566) (923)
AHAT R X — 3RO ¢ Current tax expense — Foreign:
ZRHRHA ] Current period (50,255) (44,203)
BITHAR A Adjustment for prior periods (5,738) (844)
(55,993) (45,047)
EAERIE (%) % - Deferred tax (expense) benefit:
RERBEERER Origination and reversal of temporary differences (10,563) 8,733
BiZxe Change in tax rate (222) 70
RERIELESIBEERE) Change in unrecognized deferred tax assets (606) (9,115)
ERBERBERNRIEAEE Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses 11,877 10,602
486 10,290
BETEHAX Total income tax expense (58,073) (35,680)

REZ2012F12831BILEE » ERYIE
AREERFNTME > NAAESHER B
ARBREEFBEEL/2EBETETU
e o KA BN E P BETEHEERE
AR U BT HA R 83 A 2 HL R SR E R B IR
HIFEERTER - W E HE A A ae AR IREF
ERBBINEEFEEEL/2EEETT ° &£
BZERZE  AQABHEH  BRZE
BREREEEBEE - BERERNIELR
BEEL/2EBETEFR 123BBERE
BETSHASNINGERER » MEERSE
B EREMNIEERIBEE34IAEETAIER
Hitt2EWER 2 RS R TER o
HZE2012%12831HK%20115E12 831
B FENEBNSHBEREFEAMGTE
RFUBAIETR165% TE - EHNME LT
KR IR IR BB B A IR TR R 8 o

During the year ended December 31, 2012, based upon an evaluation of both positive and
negative evidence, the Company concluded that US$47.2 million of previously unrecognized
deferred tax assets should be recognized. As part of the Company’s analysis, it evaluated,
among other factors, its recent history of generating taxable income and its near-term
forecasts of future taxable income and determined that it is more likely than not that it will
be able to realize an additional US$47.2 million of its deferred tax assets over the next
several years. After considering these factors, the Company concluded that recognition of
these deferred tax assets was appropriate. Of the US$47.2 million of previously unrecognized
deferred tax assets, US$12.3 million was recognized through income tax expense on the
income statement and US$34.9 million, which relates to deferred tax assets for pension
plans, was recognized through other comprehensive income on the statement of
comprehensive income.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011 is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation in
the relevant countries.
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23. Fii8Hi =

(b) HIRFRXHEMRBLAIGRHIZERBETE

23. Income Taxes continued

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and profit before taxation at applicable

HY#RR tax rates
128318
December 31,
KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
FRHEA Profit for the year 166,627 103,618
HBATSHIF X Total income tax expense (58,073) (35,680)
BRETSRL AT @A Profit before income tax 224,700 139,298
RARABERABRTEN Income tax expense using the Company’s applicable
58X tax rate (62,406) (38,112)
BIEEER Tax incentives 14,514 9,582
HEEH Change in tax rates (222) 70
BIEREEE Change in tax reserves 2,234 (977)
AN EZE Non-deductible differences (9,708) (623)
RERFR — ZRBEERA Unrecognized benefit — Global Offering costs - (6,099)
BRBERERNBIEEE Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses 11,877 10,602
RERRIBEESE Change in unrecognized tax assets (606) (9,115)
FENF Withholding taxes (4,708) (2,589)
Hith Other (3,310) 2,425
BIEHERETE Under provided in prior periods (5,738) (844)
(58,073) (35,680)

BZE2012F12831BK2011E 1283181k
FENTERED BIZAQATNEAHE
27.8% K 27.4% 5T E o BAREDERAED

AV R ERBRME o

(0 REMEEWBEDZHHER (FX)

The provision for taxation for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011
is calculated using the Company’s applicable tax rate of 27.8% and 27.4%, respectively. The

applicable rate is based on the Company’s weighted average worldwide tax rate.

(c) Income tax (expense) benefit recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

KR
2012 2011
FRa8L FriSHt
(%) % (Ax%) &%
Income tax Income tax
BRFAT (expense) p#iE BRELAT (expense) FREi%
UFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Before tax benefit Net of tax Before tax benefit Net of tax
R EZEBAISTE]  Recognition of previously
KB ERER unrecognized deferred tax
IRIER1E on defined benefit plans - 34,899 34,899 - = -
EREEFIFTE Defined benefit plan
BEEE actuarial losses (26,829) 10,439 (16,390) (12,886) (207) (13,093)
HEREEH Cash flow hedges (6,267) 1,953 (4,314) 5,401 (1,379) 4,022
BINEFS IS Foreign currency translation
EHLER differences for foreign
operations 8,134 - 8,134 (15,357) - (15,357)
(24,962) 47,291 22,329 (22,842) (1,586) (24,428)
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23. Fii8Hi =
(d) BERESERERE

BSEEREEERSENT ¢

23. Income Taxes continued
(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

128318
December 31,
UFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
BLEFIEERE Deferred tax assets:
REERE Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,294 1,224
FE Inventory 5,969 1,342
MERRE Plant and equipment 3,267 1,273
BARERBRARERER Pension and post-retirement benefits 27,064 6,821
HiEEE Tax losses 3,436 951
1 Reserves 18,229 5,192
Hith Other 5,240 1,227
BIBIK e Set off of tax (10,197) (4,007)
BIELERBEE Total gross deferred tax assets 55,302 14,023
EERIEALE : Deferred tax liabilities:
=R RE Plant and equipment (14,383) (15,024)
B ERE Intangible assets (101,772)  (103,640)
Hith Other (7,851) (5,650)
FIEIK e Set off of tax 10,197 4,007
HIRERITE S & Total gross deferred tax liabilities (113,809) (120,307)
FIELERIBEEE (B18) Net deferred tax asset (liability) (58,507) (106,284)

HZE2012F12831H K% 2011512831

Movement in temporary differences for the years ended December 31, 2012 and

HIEFENERERZE) December 31, 2011:

201145 REAZE 201245

12A318 &g 12A31H

iEER Wi Recognized in “heR

Balance ’R other Balance

December 31,  Recognized in  comprehensive December 31,

KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 profit or loss income 2012

REIREME Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,224 1,070 - 2,294

=Fa Inventory 1,342 4,627 - 5,969
L E =Y Property, plant and equipment (13,752) 2,636 = (11,116)
\BIEE Intangible assets (103,640) 1,868 - (101,772)

EBIRE R ERRERER Pension and post-retirement benefits 6,821 (25,167) 45,338 26,992

HIEEE Tax losses 951 2,485 - 3,436

& Reserves 5,192 13,037 - 18,229
Hith Other (4,422) (70) 1,953 (2,539)
FELEREEE (BF) Net deferred tax asset (liability) (106,284) 486 47,291 (58,507)
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23. Fii8Hi =
(d) BERESERER &

23. Income Taxes continued
(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities continued

20104 REA2E 20114
128318 R 5 R 128318
iheR Mi8#  Recognized in S
Balance £ other Balance
December 31,  Recognized in  comprehensive  December 31,
LUFZETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2010 profit or loss income 2011
REREE Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,650 (426) - 1,224
FE Inventory 1,487 (145) = 1,342
M2~ BERE Property, plant and equipment (17,980) 4,228 - (13,752)
B EE Intangible assets (108,899) 5,259 - (103,640)
RIS KRR IKEIER Pension and post-retirement benefits 10,986 (2,579) (1,586) 6,821
BIEEE Tax losses 4,165 (3,214) - 951
& Reserves 8,544 (3,352) = 5,192
Hib Other (14,941) 10,519 - (4,422)
FIELERIBEE (BF) Net deferred tax asset (liability) (114,988) 10,290 (1,586)  (106,284)
RERIEEFIEEE Unrecognized Deferred Tax Assets
AR THTEE PIELER B S = M R Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items:
128310
December 31,
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
AR TR ER Deductible temporary differences 5,101 101,289
BiIEEs 1A Tax losses 53,046 78,780
FRGER Balance at end of year 58,147 180,069

RIEBRTHE - AR ERE=EESH
B EEBIREE WAL EREESHE
0 AARQE A A RER AR R AER BT
RREZEEENER -

B ARIREE (ERRRARER)

The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these items because it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Company can utilize
the benefits from them.

Available tax losses (recognized and unrecognized):

12A318
December 31,
KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
xH United States - 16,997
&M Europe 55,853 43,142
M Asia 1,875 3,946
BT =M Latin America 7.452 16,738
#Et Total 55,180 80,823

MIEEHEREEHE RO IELRE
H o BUMBSIE#E B 20165 B/ o SRS
BEERBEN - LT EMEIBEHE2017
FiRBfER ©
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Tax losses expire in accordance with local country tax regulations. European losses will
expire beginning in 2016. Asian losses will be available indefinitely. Latin American losses
will expire beginning in 2017.



23. Fifef

(d) EBEBESERERE &
RERIELEHEE S
AARRQBAEH RS HSBAEEREERA
BRRTSHBHRER - R2012F 128318
R20115F128310 © BB ARRERH
FIEERBEE 1 EBETR43EBET
RIFHERR ©

24. MBBARMBER
REEWERREE2ERERT RO
BRARSEBABELIINTX

23. Income Taxes continued

(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities continued

Unrecognized Deferred Tax Liabilities

At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 a deferred tax liability of US$6.1 million and
US$4.3 million, respectively, related to investments in subsidiaries is not recognized because
the Company controls whether the liability will be incurred and it is satisfied that it will not
be incurred in the foreseeable future.

24. Finance Income and Finance Costs
The following table presents a summary of finance income and finance costs recognized in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

BZ12A318LLEE
Year ended December 31,

UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
RUASRESE PR Recognized in income or loss:

RATFERAFEWA Interest income on bank deposits 1,187 1,247

BAFSURA Finance income 1,187 1,247
ERMAsENAERX Interest expense on financial liabilities 3,927 37,285
FROLEEN AT EEE Change in fair value of put options 8,908 8,644
INEETEFRE Net foreign exchange loss 3,356 2,164
HEIRBEFENRX (KiEE6) Expenses related to the Global Offering (note 6) - 24,805
BEERRE (MiEe) Stabilization Proceeds (note 6) - (3,474)
Hiher & R Other finance costs 2,038 2,455

B E A Finance costs 18,229 71,879

RiEEPERNTSE AT Net finance costs recognized in profit or loss 17,042 70,632
REMEEWEFRER Recognized in other comprehensive income:

IRINEB N TE R E R Foreign currency translation differences for foreign

RERBHTN AT EZE

FOELfth 2 T U ok R RE R O B IS LA T
B8 B PT S8

RE b2 WS T RERR R B 5 B A
(IA) B3 HIBRBIE

THIALRE -

RATREFEA

FEEEIR R

REMEEREHERNTEE M
(X)) -+ MNERBLIA

operations 8,134 (15,357)
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges (6,267) 5,401
Income tax on finance income and finance costs

recognized in other comprehensive income 1,953 (1,586)

Net finance costs (income) recognized in other
comprehensive income, net of tax 3,820 (11,542)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 3,034 (9,277)
Non-controlling interests 786 (2,265)

Finance costs (income) recognized in other
comprehensive income, net of tax 3,820 (11,542)

HEREBERAT 16
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

25. X
HZE2012%12H8318K 20111283181k
FE > REBHANSFEIER GTA) T

£LIF :

25. Expenses
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

HZ12A31HILEE
Year ended December 31,

UFET27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
EEEERE Depreciation of fixed assets 31,770 30,158
B & E Amortization of intangible assets 8,491 8,333
1% 25 6l 57 B Auditors’ remuneration 3,471 7,751
HRERER Research and development 14,610 13,407
BREYENEEREER Operating lease charges in respect of properties 83,245 74,035
FEW R TR YR {E 18 Impairment losses on trade receivables 1,861 806
B E BRI MREREE Impairment losses on trade receivables written back (298) (1,982)
BN EERERIERE Provision for impairment losses on inventories made 10,043 6,577
BOFSRERERE Provision for impairment losses on inventories written back (2,832) (321)

BEARDTINBZERT KPMG REZE
2012F 12831 BIEEEFIRENEZRE
BRENERANT :

The fees in relation to the audit and related services for the year ended December 31,
2012 provided by KPMG, the external auditors of the Company, were as follows:

UFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

FEFZR P EE R R Annual audit and interim review services 3,037
EFEZ B AR TS Non-audit related services 434
et Total 3,471
26. FEH RS 26. Related Party Transactions

(a) BFEEEASHIRS
BRETESKEMETREEASNREHH
S ARBRTERERMEFREEF - AR
KL EBRINE ERRR R B -

TEEEEEERARAEERSHER
B - TEEEASNFHMNELE :

(a) Transactions with Key Management Personnel
In addition to their cash compensation, the Company also provides non-cash benefits to
Executive Directors and other key management personnel, and contributes to a post-
employment defined benefit plan on their behalf.

Key management is comprised of the Company’s Directors and Senior Management.
Key management personnel compensation comprised:

BZE12A310LEE
Year ended December 31,

HUFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
EEWE Director’s fees 400 251
e RBE R H B YRR Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind 4,820 4,666
AL Bonus” 2,271 2,299
LARRAR = A5 Share-based payments - 200
RINEFT IR Contributions to post-employment plans 150 152

7,641 7,568
0 AR DFMRIBREE - M Bonus is based on the performance of the Company.
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26. BAEFRXS &

(b) EEHS

REEBATEGIE 16116 ESHLWE
mF

26. Related Party Transactions continued
(b) Directors’ Remuneration
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance is as follows:

#E2012512A31HILEE
Year ended December 31, 2012
FhEN ~ EAER
HipFFl BIKE
Salaries, TR
allowances Contributions
EEHe and other VAR Y32 to post-
Expressed in thousands of US Directors’ benefits TE4I™M  Share-based employment st
UFETZ25) Dollars fees in kind Bonus™ payments plans Total
HITEE Executive Directors
Timothy Parker Timothy Parker - 954 159 - - 1,113
Kyle Gendreau Kyle Gendreau - 483 277 - 28 788
Ramesh Tainwala Ramesh Tainwala - 960 688 - - 1,648
HHITEE Non-Executive Directors
Keith Hamill Keith Hamill 100 - - - - 100
Nicholas Clarry Nicholas Clarry - - - - - -
Bruce Hardy McLain  Bruce Hardy McLain - - - - - -
BUIHITEE Independent Non-Executive
Directors
Paul Etchells Paul Etchells 100 - - - - 100
=R Miguel Ko 100 - - - - 100
HEE Ying Yeh 100 - - - - 100
F25 Total 400 2,397 1,124 - 28 3,949
0 RARADENRBREE - M Bonus is based on the performance of the Company.
HEEEBRAERAF 163
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

FREMBBRRHE &
26. FEFARS & 26. Related Party Transactions continued
(b) EEE & (b) Directors’ Remuneration continued
BZE201MF12A318LEFE
Year ended December 31, 2011
o~ JRRER
HpBYF= RINE
Salaries, FTEMERR
allowances Contributions
EBWE and other BABR 62 3245 to post-
Expressed in thousands of US Directors’ benefits TEALO Share-based ~ employment st
HUFETZ25] Dollars fees in kind Bonus® payments plans Total
HITEE Executive Directors
Timothy Parker Timothy Parker - 1,094 154 200 - 1,448
Kyle Gendreau Kyle Gendreau - 462 481 - 27 970
Ramesh Tainwala Ramesh Tainwala - 853 532 - - 1,385
FHHITEE Non-Executive Directors
Keith Hamill Keith Hamill 71 - - - - 71
Nicholas Clarry Nicholas Clarry - - - - - -
Bruce Hardy MclLain ~ Bruce Hardy McLain - - - - - -
BUHHTESE Independent Non-Executive
Directors
Paul Etchells Paul Etchells 60 - - - - 60
= R Miguel Ko 60 - - - = 60
=R Ying Yeh 60 - - - - 60
g Total 251 2,409 1,167 200 27 4,054
O RARAATMRBAEE - M Bonus is based on the performance of the Company.
BHZE2012F12H831HKX2011%12 831 No director received any emoluments from the Company as an inducement to join or

BLEFE  SEEEFAATREBMEM@MEME  upon joining the Company during the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31,
ERMASMARR R E 2 2E - REME 2011 No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the periods presented.
B SIREEHREREERREMME & No director received any compensation during the years ended December 31, 2012 or
£2012%12831H52011512A31HIEF  December 31, 2011 for the loss of office as a director of Company or of any other office in
B HMEEERBRIAATNESHEREM  connection with the management of the affairs of the Company.

H BN =) BB R %5 B B U BE AT

-
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26. FHEFXS #

() =EHAL
BZE2012F12831BK2011E 1283181k
FE AARALERERFATEE=FE
= HENHEESRERE - BXAFTAR
NEHBRSHFATWHESFHBENT ¢

26. Related Party Transactions continued

(c) Individuals with the Highest Emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Company include three directors during the years
ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, whose emoluments are disclosed
above. Details of remuneration paid to the remaining highest paid individuals of the

Company are as follows:

BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

UFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
e - RBER HME YRR Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind 712 944
B4 Bonus ™ 819 672
RINEFT IR Contributions to post-employment plans 32 9

1,563 1,625

0 BARADRANRBERERE o

REEREE » FREATHENSITESB
250,000 7t » EZE 2012512 31 B %2011
F12A31HILFE » MEZFZEALTEM
MIEBEAEBHERERMASMALRLF
BHVSEE o

(d) HibEELRS

() H2007%F10H248 » & A 7 B CVC
Capital Partners Advisory Company &] 32
B UmAAREEREZAR
EHEFEMRY - FE%150,0005 7T
EEEHEEN2011F6 16 AL ©

(i) <A TWENEFMIE /AR Samsonite South
Asia Pvt. Ltd. [@ Abhishri Packaging Pvt.
Ltd (HAARMBITESAREARKRH
R B # & Ramesh Tainwala st 4
([Tainwala 4 |) HYSR iR E 2 R =)
iR HERMR R AR
PREE - HE - IEIRIEREWRGIENAE
BSREMT

M Bonus is based on the performance of the Company.

The emoluments of each individual exceeded US$250 thousand for each of the years
presented. No amounts have been paid to these individuals as compensation for loss of
office or as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company during the years ended
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

(d) Other Related Party Transactions

(i)  On October 24, 2007, the Company entered into a monitoring agreement with CVC
Capital Partners Advisory Company to provide ongoing consulting and management
advisory services to the Company for an annual fee of US$150 thousand. The
monitoring agreement was terminated on June 16, 2011.

(i) The Company’s Indian subsidiary, Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd., purchases raw
materials and finished goods from, and sells certain raw materials and finished goods
to, Abhishri Packaging Pvt. Ltd, which is managed and controlled by the family of Mr.
Ramesh Tainwala, Executive Director and President, Asia-Pacific and Middle East of the
Company (“Mr. Tainwala”).

Related amounts of purchases, sales, payables and receivables are the following:

BZ12A318LLEE
Year ended December 31,

UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
i Purchases 4,005 4,867
HE Sales 548 271
12A318
December 31,
KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
FERFRE Payables 483 543
WA Receivables 145 67

HERERERAE 165
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26.
(d)
(iif)

RAEH RS o

HRAESRS &

Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd.JR[E]
Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited Hj
ERI M ° Bagzone Lifestyle Private
Limited A Tainwala &4 RKEIE
R34 o Tainwala o4 Kk H R IEINGE
& Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. & 48
AT ABEERENME AR
IR AER o

26. Related Party Transactions continued
(d) Other Related Party Transactions continued
(iii) Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. also sells finished goods to Bagzone Lifestyle Private

Limited. Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited is managed and controlled by the family of
Mr. Tainwala. Mr. Tainwala and his family also own a non-controlling interest in
Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. and the Company’s United Arab Emirates subsidiary.

HZ12A31HILEE
Year ended December 31,

UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
e Purchases - 117
HE Sales 10,636 7,347
e Rent 49 992
12A318
December 31,
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
FEFRIE Payables - -
FERGRTE Receivables 6,895 4,131
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HZE2012F12831BR%2011F12 831
BEFE  EFREZNNI0BEEET
F19BEEXTFH Tainwala TERE
RIRBEENERE  UER Qi BT
£ o 2012512831 R2011% 128
318 » MEREZ Y Tainwala FERE
RIEB K IE B2012F12A8318 &
20115128318 ' 018 B % Tt K05
BEELDBIAREBRENARXARS
FEWERE o

Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. HEE%!
B F Planet Retail Holding Pvt. Ltd.
( [Planet Retail| ) ° Tainwala 5c4
A Planet Retail WEERRE - HZE
2012512 A31BKR2011512831H
LFE OUBRELHHEENESES
BB TABERROIBESET - R
20125128318 K2011F12A31
H » 2 BIUEL Planet Retail B IE
7,00035 7t} 33,0003 7T ©
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(iv)

Approximately US$1.0 million and US$1.9 million was paid to entities owned by Mr.
Tainwala and his family, for office space rent for the years ended December 31, 2012
and December 31, 2011, respectively. As of December 31, 2012 and December 31,
2011, no amounts were payable to Mr. Tainwala and his family. As of December 31,
2012 and December 31, 2011, US$0.1 million and US$0.5 million, respectively, were
recorded as a receivable in the form of a security deposit.

Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. sells finished goods to Planet Retail Holding Pvt. Ltd.
(“Planet Retail”). Mr. Tainwala is the majority shareholder of Planet Retail. Sales to this
entity amounted to US$0.1 million and US$0.1 million for the years ended December
31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. As of December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, US$7 thousand and $33 thousand, respectively, were receivable
from Planet Retail.



26 BAEFRXS &
(d) HibBESRS #

(v)

HREERBITA01NELRADAEA
RBUR R T B TEAMRNETA T
BEEARDATR2011FE12A31BNEE
BRHI15.8% °

Az S EES BN R EREHRN
SEHREATESEEME - Bi5RHR
EHPEANEARAURESST - FiE#E
ERIGIRIR o

26. Related Party Transactions continued

(d) Other Related Party Transactions continued

(v) The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, which was the issuer of certain letters of credit under
a letter of credit facility with the Company during 2011, also owned 15.8% of the
ordinary shares of the Company as of December 31, 2011.
All outstanding balances with these related parties are priced at an arm’s length basis
and are to be settled in cash within six months of the reporting date. None of the
balances are secured.

27. ARERZFEER 27. Particulars of Company Entities
HEE%
Ownership%

AT & Company name [EIER Country 2012 2011
FEBERERA R ERE Luxembourg BAT IS YN
Samsonite International S.A. Parent Parent
Samsonite Sub Holdings S.4.r.. ERE Luxembourg 100 100
Delilah Europe Holdings S.a.r.l. ERE Luxembourg - 100
Delilah Europe Investments S.4.r.l. ERE Luxembourg 100 100
Delilah US Investments S.4.r.. EHRE Luxembourg 100 100
Astrum R.E. LLC xH United States 100 100
Bypersonal S.A. de C.V. S Mexico 100 100
Direct Marketing Ventures, LLC & United States 100 100
Equipaje en Movimiento, S.A. de C.V. S Mexico 100 -
Global Licensing Company, LLC =E United States 100 100
HL Operating LLC =& United States 100 -
Jody Apparel I, LLC =& United States 100 100
Lonberg Express S.A. BI=E Uruguay 100 100
Limited Liability Company Samsonite B 2B T 3T Russian Federation 60 60
McGregor I, LLC E3E] United States 100 100
PT Samsonite Indonesia EEfEfa Indonesia 60 60
Samsonite (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd B2k Malaysia 100 100
Samsonite (Thailand) Co., Ltd. %H Thailand 60 60
Samsonite A/S 2 Denmark 100 100
Samsonite AB iy Sweden 100 100
Samsonite AG It Switzerland 99 99
Samsonite Argentina S.A. P R 3E Argentina 95 95
Samsonite Asia Limited BB Hong Kong 100 100
Samsonite Australia Pty Limited BN Australia 70 70
Samsonite Brasil Ltda. ey Brazil 100 100
Samsonite B.V. Gl Netherlands 100 100
Samsonite Canada, Inc. mEXR Canada 100 100
Samsonite CES Holding B.V. il Netherlands 60 60
Samsonite Chile S.A. BF Chile 85 85
Samsonite China Holdings Limited B Hong Kong 100 100

*  For identification purposes only

E1HEF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

27. ATERZFHEH «

27. Particulars of Company Entities continued

BERE%
Ownership%
AT EH Company name EIES Country 2012 2011
Samsonite Colombia S.A.S. SHmtt I Colombia 100 -
Samsonite Company Stores, LLC =& United States 100 100
Samsonite Espana S.A. FYEF Spain 100 100
Samsonite Europe N.V. e l]:53 Belgium 100 100
Samsonite Finanziaria S.r.l. BEARF Italy 100 100
Samsonite Finland Oy E2Y: ] Finland 100 100
Samsonite Ges.m.b.H. Edih A Austria 100 100
Samsonite GmbH =E Germany 100 100
Samsonite International Trading (Ningbo) Co. Ltd. FRE] China 100 100
Samsonite IP Holdings S.a.r.l. ERE Luxembourg 100 100
Samsonite Japan Co., Ltd. =[N Japan 100 100
Samsonite Korea Limited RERE Korea, Republic 100 100
Samsonite Latinoamerica, S.A. de C.V. 27 E Mexico 100 100
Samsonite Limited HE United Kingdom 100 100
Samsonite LLC E3E] United States 100 100
Samsonite Macau Limitada BPY Macau 100 100
Samsonite Mauritius Limited EERHR Mauritius 100 100
Samsonite Mercosur Limited BrRE Bahamas 100 100
Samsonite Mexico, S.A. de C.V. 275 Mexico 100 100
Samsonite Middle East FZCO FIR RSB REl United Arab Emirates 60 60
Samsonite Norway AS B Norway 100 100
Samsonite Pacific LLC =E United States 100 100
Samsonite Philippines, Inc. JEREE Philippines 60 60
Samsonite S.A.S. JEE France 100 100
Samsonite S.p.A. BEARF Italy 100 100
Samsonite Seyahat Urinleri Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi  +EH Turkey 60 60
Samsonite Singapore Pte Ltd 3 Singapore 100 100
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited BE India 60 60
Samsonite Southern Africa Ltd. [FZE;3 South Africa 60 60
Samsonite Sp. z 0.0. Vi) Poland 100 100
Samsonite-Hungaria Borond KFT &) 55 Hungary 100 100
SC Chile Uno S.A. &F Chile 100 100
SC Inversiones Chile Limitada A Chile 100 100
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27. ATIERZHHEE # 27. Particulars of Company Entities continued
2012612 A31HK 201151231 HEFH  The particulars of the investment in subsidiaries held by Samsonite International S.A. at
FEERERAR FERMBARRMNIKRE  December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are set out below.

HRFHIRESIAT -

20125 2011 &

12H318 12A31H

December 31, December 31,

UFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011
IELEHIRMD - BERA Unlisted shares, at cost 866,682 866,682

FES MY 2 R B BR A R E bR K
TEREIRE - REREETERS o
EBRHFBANTFRE BENEBEHM

fixed terms of repayment.

Trade and others payables due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no

The particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities

BATMEBEHINT o of the Company are set out below.
=EfRAR S B HA

NE BB S Date of BRA FEEK P =

Company name Country Incorporation Share Capital Principal Activities Note

Delilah Europe Investments S.a.r.l. ERE 2009 21,804,401% 7t 2] *x
Luxembourg UsSD21,804,401 Holding

Delilah US Investments S.a r.l. ERE 2009 78,160,399 T =i i
Luxembourg UsD78,160,399 Holding

Samsonite LLC S 1987 0%t =R *x
United States usD nil Holding

Samsonite Asia Limited BB 1996 20587t Bax | *x
Hong Kong HKD20 Distribution

Samsonite Australia Pty Limited B 1984 () Bk} o
Australia AUD nil Distribution

Samsonite Chile S.A. =l 2007 23,928,441, 7108RLkR  £FE 5 o
Chile CLP23,928,441,710 Production/

Distribution

Samsonite Company Stores, LLC ESE]| 1985 0%t PaK:| L
United States usD nil Distribution

Samsonite Espana S.A. AT 1952 3,122,195@ T k| o
Spain EUR3,122,195 Distribution

Samsonite Europe N.V. £l R B 1966 OBt £E D o
Belgium EUR nil Production/

Distribution

Samsonite GmbH = 1966 25,5658 7T aK-! *x
Germany EUR25,565 Distribution

Samsonite International Trading FE 2006 AR#%7,910,1507T k| R KA

(Ningbo) Co. Ltd. China CNY7,910,150 Distribution

Samsonite IP Holdings S.a r.l. ERE 2009 114,115,900 7T THEE T AR *x
Luxembourg uUsD114,115,900 Licensing

Samsonite Japan Co., Ltd. SN 2004 500,000,000 & k| *x
Japan JPY500,000,000 Distribution

Samsonite Korea Limited RERE 1997 1,060,000,000%2 & k| o
Korea, Republic of KRW1,060,000,000 Distribution

Samsonite Limited e 1986 20,0005 8% axic| *x
United Kingdom GPB20,000 Distribution

*  For identification purposes only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

27. ATERZFHEH «

27. Particulars of Company Entities continued

sEfELSZ B 8
REEH EIES Date of BN FEER PiEE
Company name Country Incorporation Share Capital Principal Activities Note
Samsonite Mexico, S.A. de C.V. E£FF 1986 201,903,387 " th R £E D *x
Mexico MXN201,903,387 Production/
Distribution
Samsonite S.A.S. JEE 1965 720,0008k 7t Ak} *x
France EUR720,000 Distribution
Samsonite S.p.A. BEAF 1980 780,000&k T Bax 'z o
[taly EUR780,000 Distribution
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited ~ ENE 1995 345,520,200EN E &L HE/ D L
India INR345,520,200 Production/
Distribution
Samsonite Sub Holdings S.a r.. ERE 2011 55,417,991% 7t =R *
Luxembourg UsSD55,417,991 Holding
Fff= Note

* HAABREERSS °
** HAARRERSS °
x RBERYHEREEARARIEEERE -

A EERRERAS * BIRAREE)
AATNR2011E3BSHEMRE B3
1TIRZR 560,0003< T © % £6,000,0008% &
FREEO.01 TR ° A Al HEER A
#1,000,000,000% 7t (BIEERBRA) ©

72011468118 » F2353614595828% &
BRAKKE BT - BBEARD AR
A B {$60,0003 7t () #E AN = 2,396,207,216.83
=TT 5 (i) BIKEHARQ B MM R AE
BiE  #E—HE2353674595.82%TT ; &
(i) BR 4R A E2,353,614,595. 82 E 7T ° AR D FE
TEBRZSHA L P ER 4 1R - 533,353,554,595.82
3T » H335,355459,5821% (B4R T BB IRAK)
SIRTEE0.01 ETTHIBRMAERK

R2011E6H 148 HEZBREE B
BITRABA LMD IREFEMRZE
12,860,369.99% 7t » B $51,286,036,999h% &
BR - FERETAREBBRERSTE B
1,012,800,369.993 7t * FH101,280,036,999 %
(BREERERA) BREE0.OIETHR M
#HRK ©

RERBERZ KO TR2011F68
16 &R A E R AN E1TEEIM 21,100,005 8%
Bp e RERBEZHE > CERBEBREB
14,071,370.043 7t * B$51,407,137,004 8% Z
B - ADEEERAE1,012,800,369.995
7T ° F1101,280,036,999% (BIEE R A)
FIRMEEC.01 ETHIRR MDA ©

FEEEBRERATCNBRAREZR
2012% 12 31 HIL FEMBEMEE -

* EHEES
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* Directly held by the Company.
*x Indirectly held by the Company.
**% A limited liability company and wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

Changes in the Share Capital of Samsonite International S.A.

At its incorporation on March 8, 2011, the issued share capital of the Company was
US$60,000 divided into 6,000,000 shares having a nominal value of US$0.01 each. The
Company had an authorized share capital of US$1,000,000,000 (including the subscribed
share capital).

On June 11, 2011, the issued share capital (i) was increased to US$2,396,207,216.83,
(ii) was further reduced to US$2,353,674,595.82 for the purpose of offsetting the losses
resulting from the incorporation costs of the Company and (i) was finally reduced to
US$2,353,614,595.82, comprised of 235,361,459,582 ordinary shares, by way of
reimbursement of the amount of US$60,000 to the founder of the Company. The authorized
share capital of the Company remained unchanged at this stage and amounted to
US$3,353,554,595.82 comprised of 335,355,459,582 shares (including the subscribed
share capital) with a nominal value of US$0.01 each.

On June 14, 2011, in connection with the Global Offering, the issued share capital was
decreased to US$12,860,369.99, comprised of 1,286,036,999 ordinary shares for the
purpose of the creation of a distributable reserve. The authorized share capital remained
unchanged at this stage and amounted to US$1,012,800,369.99 comprised of
101,280,036,999 shares (including the subscribed share capital) with a nominal value of
US$0.01 each.

On June 16, 2011, upon the Global Offering, the Company issued an additional
121,100,005 shares by way of the authorised share capital. Upon completion of the Global
Offering, the subscribed share capital was US$14,071,370.04, comprised of 1,407,137,004
ordinary shares. The authorized share capital of the Company amounted to
US$1,012,800,369.99 comprised of 101,280,036,999 shares (including the subscribed
share capital) with a nominal value of US$0.01 each.

There were no changes in the share capital of Samsonite International S.A. during the
year ended December 31, 2012.

*  For identification purposes only
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28. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring subsequent to December 31, 2012, the
statement of financial position date, through March 18, 2013, the date this financial
information was authorized for issue by the Board of Directors.

On January 8, 2013, the Company granted 15,532,227 options to certain directors, key
management personnel, and other employees. The exercise price of the options granted is
HK$17.36. Such options are subject to graded vesting over a 4 year period, with 25% of the
options vesting on each of the first four anniversary dates of the grant.
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A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities, equity and non-controlling
interests of the Company for the last five financials years is as follows:

T
124318
December 31,
UFZETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HEFE Net sales 1,771,726 1,565,147 1,215,307 1,029,374 1,249,565
EA Gross profit 951,005 856,948 689,679 515,550 624,186
EFZE Gross profit margin 53.7% 54.8% 56.7% 50.1% 50.0%
BEER (BR) Operating profit/(loss) 241,742 209,930 543,602 (34,691) (1,397,464)
THALTEEEE Profit/(loss) for the year
Al (BE) attributable to:
BEFEEA Equity holders 148,439 86,748 355,022 1,202,433 (1,433,733)
FEfE R RS Non-controlling interests 18,188 16,870 11,792 6,902 9,717
WEE Total assets 1,813,164 1,544,546 1,665,001 1,139,370 1,031,445
Haes Total liabilities 727,059 599,346 902,149 730,720 2,463,569
REESE AEGERE  Equity (equity deficiency) attributable
(FEmE1E) to equity holders 1,051,593 918,131 740,208 391,537 (1,447,818)
R ER Non-controlling interests 34,512 27,069 22,644 17,113 15,694
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